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Enrollment Projections

Grade Level Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year at capacity

TOTAL 132 154 176 198 198 198

Eighth Grade 0 0 0 22 22 22

Seventh Grade 0 0 22 22 22 22

Sixth Grade 0 22 22 22 22 22

Fifth Grade 22 22 22 22 22 22

Fourth Grade 22 22 22 22 22 22

Third Grade 22 22 22 22 22 22

Second Grade 22 22 22 22 22 22

First Grade 22 22 22 22 22 22
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Primary Contact Name

Proposed Leader Name *

Proposed School Leader Current Job/Position *

List any principal/leadership programs the proposed leader is currently enrolled in or have completed

Opening Year *



 

Grade Level Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year at capacity

Kindergarten 22 22 22 22 22 22

Team Members Roaster

Name Title Position Email Address

Adam Ezell Consultant Technical Writer adam@wecharter.com

Donnie McQueen Manager Planning and Support torchlight.director@gmail.com

Tyrone Tucker Board Chair Planning tiemuhammad@aol.com

Board Members Roaster

Name Street Address Zip Code Email Expertise

Tyrone
Tucker

602 Wright Street,
Wilmington

28401 tiemuhammad@aol.com
Business
Management

William
Banks

1010 Bellmark Ct.,
Leland

28451 billblanks96@aol.com Financial

Lillian
Graham

1028 Graham Rd.,
Riegelwood

28456 ligraham43@gmail.com
Educational
Administration

Elise
Lonon

602 Wright Street,
Wilmington

28401 seabreezelise@hotmail.com Education/Teacher

Majorie
Graham

534 Smith Road,
Riegelwood

28456 majoriedarius@bellsouth.net
Special
Education/Teaching
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1. Application Contact Information

Q1. Organization Type

Q2. Name of the nonprofit organization
BEAM Academy

Q3. Has the organization applied for 501C3 nonprofit status?

Q4. The next few questions will inquire about the person who will serve as the primary contact for this
Application. The primary contact will serve as the contact for follow-up, interviews, and notices regarding
this Application.
Please provide the Primary Contact's Title/Relationship to Non-Profit

Executive Manager

Q5. Primary Contact's
Mailing AddressCity, State, Zip

P.O. Box 19191

Raleigh, NC 27619

Q6. Primary Contact's Primary Telephone Number
919.538.8060

Q7. Primary Contact's Alternate Telephone Number
919.850.9960

Q8. Geographic County in which charter school will reside
Bladen County

Q9. LEA/District Name
Bladen County School District- LEA#090

Q10. Projected School Opening Month
August 2022

Q11. Will this school operate on a year-round schedule?
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Q12. Describe the rationale for the number of students and grade levels served in year one and the basis
for the growth plan outlined above.

The proposed school plans to open in August 2022 with 132 students or an average class size of 22

students in grades K-5 and subsequently expand one-grade level each year until reaching Grade 8 in year

Four. Blanden County is a sparsely populated County with Bladen County Schools reporting 2,888

students in Grades K-8 for its most recent reporting year. BEAM Academy's total student enrollment in

year 5 represents about 6.8 percent of Bladen County School's Grade K-8 student population. However,

the school will also pull from Pender and Columbus counties. Pender County does not currently have a

free school of choice with just under 10,000 students. Columbus County has two schools of choice that are

are around 20 miles away from our proposed location. Columbus County has a student population size of

5,000 students. The closest elementary school to Bladen County is Acme Elementary which recently

achieved a D and did not meet growth. With few schools of choice in this area and the school's proximity

to these two counties, our board is con�dent that our modest goal of 132 students is achievable.

In summary, our research and analysis, including student achievement gaps, student underperformance,

and expressed interest from parents and the local community, lead us to conclude that our proposed

student enrollment goals and growth plan are both reasonable and feasible

Q13. Projected Enrollment Demographics

Q14. Certification of Originality
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7. EMO/CMO

Q15. Name of the EMO/CMO
Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC

Q16. EMO/CMO
Mailing Address

City State Zip

P.O. Box 19191

Raleigh, NC 27619

Q17. EMO/CMO Phone Number
919.538.8060

Q18. EMO/CMO Contact Person
Donnie McQueen, Executive Manager

Q19. EMO/CMO Email Address
torchlight.director@tlaedu.org

Q20. EMO/CMO Website
www.tlaedu.org

Q21. Explain how the contract with the specified EMO or CMO will be in the best educational and financial
interest of the charter school

Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC operates Torchlight Academy in Raleigh, North Carolina. Torchlight

Academy has consistently achieved "high academic growth" with an educationally disadvantaged student

population of Grade K-8 students for the past 4 reported school years. Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC

has assembled a team of experienced professionals to help the local community plan, organize, and

�nance the start of a high-quality public charter school in Bladen County. Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC

is working closely with the BEAM Academy Board of Directors at the request from the local community to

support their desire to improve educational opportunities in Bladen County by opening a public charter

school. Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC has and will continue to support the local community e�ort by

providing technical support and assistance, and �nancial support to get the proposed school open.

Q22. Attach Appendix A4.1: Executed Management Contract
 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
NC Public Charters

Upload Required

Evidence :

Powered by  EdLusion 8/5/2020



 

Q23. What other EMO/CMOs were pursued and why did the applicant select this one? Please include
information regarding other management organizations' fees and financial/academic records that led to
the selection of the proposed EMO/CMO as the best fit for this proposed school

The BEAM Academy Board of Directors examined multiple charter school management organizations,

including their fee structure, upfront support, and academic performance history, especially with

educationally disadvantaged students. Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC was selected because they o�er

immediate, direct, and personal support to our community and earned our commitment to them. The

Torchlight team was knowledgable, provided our Board professional development, and worked directly

with us to develop the school design model which bubbled upon from our community as the best

approach to meet the needs of the local community. Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC was the best �t with

our community and Board of Directors in that we share a common vision for opening an agricultural

focused public charter school in our local community.

Q24. Provide and discuss student performance, governance performance and financial data from other
schools managed by the management company to demonstrate how this organization is a good fit for the
targeted student population. Nationally, what are the highest and lowest performing schools of the
EMO/CMO? Why are these two schools so different in overall achievement?

Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC operates Torchlight Academy, a grades K-8 public charter school located

in Raleigh, North Carolina. Torchlight Academy serves a high poverty minority student population

primarily consisting of Black and Hispanic students. The school's N.C. Public School Report Card shows the

school achieved a "C" performance score and "exceeded expected academic growth for the past 4

reporting years. We are aware of Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC's past relationship with Essie Mae Kiser

Fox Charter School in Rowan County, and their parting with the management company after having

received the management company's support and assistance in getting the school started. Essie Mae Kiser

Fox Charter School made academic "growth" in its �rst year of operation under the leadership of the

management company. We are also aware of Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC's Executive Manager, Mr.

Donnie McQueen's, a�liation with Global Educational Resources, LLC's operation of the State's �rst public

charter school assumption with Three Rivers Academy in Bertie County. Three Rivers Academy assume the

operation of Heritage Collegiate Leadership Academy which has been consistently and chronically low

performing when Three Rivers Academy stepped in. While Three Rivers Academy did not make expected

growth in its �rst year of operation we recognize the school's student population had a consistently low

performance for multiple years and the situation likely should have triggered the implementation of an

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
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alternative accountability model. Nevertheless, Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC is independent of Global

Educational Resources, LLC. All these experiences militate toward Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC's

increased experience in managing and supporting public charter schools.

Q25. Describe how the governance structure will be affected, if at all, by the EMO/CMO, and particularly
discuss how the board of directors of the charter school will govern the school independently of the
EMO/CMO.

BEAM Academy's Board of Directors recognizes it carries the ultimate responsibility for the operation of

the public charter school. The management company is a vendor which the Board will hold accountable.

The Board will conduct regular board meetings and maintain a schedule of important board functions

including, budgeting, providing oversight of operations, and making ultimate decisions regarding

curriculum and instructional programs. The Board will carry out its �duciary duties and comply with N.C.

Non-Pro�t Corporations Act, N.C. Public Charter School Act, and other applicable federal, state, and local

laws. The management company and school's relationship is governed under the terms of a written

management agreement. The ultimate authority and responsibility of the operation of the school rest with

the Board of Directors of BEAM Academy.

Q26. Provide a description of the relationship that will exist between the charter school employees and the
Management Organization

All teachers employed by the school will work under the direct supervision of the School Leader (School

Administrator, Principal, Superintendent, School Director). The School Leader is jointly employed by the

BEAM Academy Board of Directors and the management company. The School Leader is trained by the

management company and is the management company's agent and representative responsible for

carrying out the day-to-day operation of the school under the terms of the management contract. Most

other personal are directly employed by the management company. The Board will maintain a Grievance

Policy and Procedure to address issues that impact all employees working at the school regardless of

technical employment status. The Board is responsible for all employees, in any capacity, which works at

the school to have regular background checks, performance evaluations, and proper professional

development.

Q27. Explain how the contract includes measurable objectives whereby the charter school board can
evaluate annually the performance of the EMO/CMO, and if necessary, terminate the contract without
significant obstacles

BEAM Academy Board of Directors will set concrete and measurable annual performance goals in the

areas of student academic performance, �nancial management, operations, and other areas of

management. BEAM's Board will conduct an annual evaluation of the management company's

performance. The primary goal is to improve student performance and increase the e�ciency of the

school's operations. The Board will provide the management company opportunity for corrective action as

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
NC Public Charters

Powered by  EdLusion 8/5/2020



 
may be appropriate. The Board reserves the right to terminate the management contract if, in the Board's

judgment, the management company has breached the contract or the performance has fallen below an

acceptable standard.

Q28. Is the facility provided by the EMO/CMO?

Q29. Attach Appendix A4.2 Facility Buyout Agreement, if applicable
The facility has not been acquired. There is no Buyout Agreement at this time.

File Name: Appendix A4.2 Facility Buyout Agreement  File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text
Max File Size: 50  Mandatory: No

Q30. List the fund balance and surpluses for each school managed by the EMO/CMO over the last three
years in North Carolina.

2016=$468,049

2017=$257,418

2018=$280,450

2019=

Q31. Attach Appendix A4.3: EMO/CMO Financial HistoryProvide as Appendix A4.3 the financial history and
statements of the EMO/CMO over the last three years. Specifically, if contracting with an EMO, provide
confirmation that the EMO is in good standing by providing bank statements from the prior three years.

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5
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Q32. Attach Appendix A4.4: IRS Form 990 Provide as Appendix A4.4 the IRS Form 990 (or equivalent
documents if the organization does not file a 990) for the prior three years

 File Type: pdf, image, word  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 10
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Reference Letter - 07.21.2020.pdf TorchlightAcademy 2017 Audit.… Torchlight Academy 2016 Audit.…

Torchlight Academy 2018 Audit.… IRS Form 990.pdf

Upload Required
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8. General-Mission Purposes, and Goals

8.1. Mission and Vision

Q33. The mission statement of the proposed charter school is as follows (35 words or less)
The School’s mission is "To provide a community-rooted school that will Build Excellence and Agricultural

Mastery (BEAM) among all students.”  

Q34.  What is the vision of the proposed school? What will the school look like when it is achieving the
mission?

Our vision of the school is that students who matriculate through BEAM Academy will have a strong

educational foundation in reading, math, science, and social studies and be prepared for the challenges of

high school, college, and beyond. Our students will have an advanced understanding of Agriculture and

will be prepared to make choices about the future. Many students grow up and remain in Bladen County.

Bladen County ranks number 5 in agricultural sales in the state. About 50% or half of Farm Operators are

over 65 years old. Agriculture represents about 10% of the industry in the area. Providing our students an

early education in agriculture gives them a foundation for participation in the local economy as Farmers

and Growers, but it prepares them to explore careers in agricultural-related industries and owners and

business entrepreneurs. Understanding the agricultural sciences gives people a level of independence

associated with being prepared to produce their own food. Our school will be community-rooted and the

educational program will give an educational foundation related to the local economy.

Q35. Provide a description of Targeted Population in terms of demographics. In your description, include
how this population will reflect the racial and ethnic composition of the school system in which it is
located. Additionally, how it will reflect the socioeconomic status of the LEA, SWD population, and ELL
population of the district? See G.S. 115C-218.45(e).

The local district is about 57% White, 38% Black, and 4% Two or more races. Our student population will

mirror the local school district. Over 50% of students will likely be from low-income families and be eligible

for free or reduced-price lunch under the National School Lunch Program similar to the local school

district. We anticipate about 13% of students will be students with disabilities. Less than 10% will be

eligible to participate in our English language learners program similar to the local school district. Nearly

100% of our students will likely be educationally disadvantaged.

Q36. What are the enrollment trends and academic performance outcomes of surrounding schools in the
selected community? What elements of your educational model will meet the needs of your target student
population? 
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Bladen County Schools' student enrollment for grades K-8 for 2017 was 3,218, for 2018 it was 2,994, and

for 2019 it was 2,878. The district is experiencing a declining student enrollment likely associated with

providing poor quality education. The district school overall underperformed the State for the last three

years of available testing data. For example, of 13 schools in Bladen County, a total of 6 were low

performing schools in the 2018-2019 school year. Economically disadvantaged students, students with

disabilities, and English language learners in Bladen County performed below the State standard. in 2017

about 57.5% of Bladen County students score at grade level pro�ciency as compared to 58.8% for the

State. In 2018, 48.8% of Bladen students score at grade level pro�ciency as compared to 58.8% for the

State. In 2019, about 49% of Bladen students reached grade level pro�ciency as compared to 60.4% for

the State. Bladen County schools have been consistently falling behind the State pro�ciency standard with

a gap of 6.3% in 2017, 10.3% in 2018, and 11.4% in 2019. The district's SAT scores are below the standards

for regular admission to the State's university system. The local district is failing minority and

impoverished communities within its jurisdiction making school choice a viable consideration for parents

seeking to improve the quality of life for their children. BEAM Academy's general educational model of

project-based learning will meet the needs of targeted students by improving student engagement and

providing student meaningful interventions through the school's Response-to-Intervention Program.

Q37. What will be the total projected enrollment at the charter school and what percentage of the Average
Daily Membership (ADM) does that reflect when compared to the Local Education Agency (LEA) of the same
offered grade levels? (i.e. If the proposed school will be grades 9-12, only compare the total enrollment to
the total enrollment of the LEA in grades 9-12).

BEAM Academy is targeting 132 students in grade K-5 in year one of its operations. Bladen County

Schools' total enrollment for 2019 in grades K-5 was 1,858 students. BEAM's enrollment will represent

about 7% of the local school district's same grade level student population. Our maximum student

enrollment in grades K-8 is 198 as compared to the local school district's 2,878 students. At max

enrollment, BEAM is about 7% of the local school district population. BEAM will be located in the

southwestern section of the county and is likely to ultimately draw students from other counties because

of wider area demand for school choice. Our budget focus on drawing our student enrollment from

Bladen County.

Q38.  Summarize what the proposed school will do differently than the schools that are now serving the
targeted population. What will make this school unique and more effective than the currently available
public-school options?

Bladen County Schools has a disproportionately high out-of-school student suspension rate for Black

students which tends to be over-represented in economically-disadvantaged students. In addition, the

local district's performance will educationally disadvantaged students is below the State standard. BEAM

Academy will provide a culturally responsive school culture and engage students through the agricultural

sciences. The distinction between BEAM and local school district schools will be school culture and the
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engagement of educationally disadvantaged students. Achievement gaps and data trends show that

Bladen County Schools is having di�culty reaching its minority student population and achieving grade-

level pro�ciency. BEAM Board and Sta� will be prepared to meet the needs of its student population

through Professional Development provided through the management company. BEAM's contract

management company's �agship school Torchlight Academy has consistently outperformed its local

school district with a demographically similar target student population of educationally disadvantaged

students.

Q39. Describe the relationships that have been established to generate support for the school. How have
you assessed demand for the school? Briefly describe these activities and summarize their results

BEAM Academy's Board bubbled up from the community with individuals concerned about educational

opportunities for educationally disadvantaged students. The group has been building a network of local

students which includes parents and community leaders. BEAM's Board reached out to gain the support

of Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC to help facilitate the planning of the school, navigate the charter

application progress, and provide ongoing support for the school.

Q40. Attach Appendix A: Evidence of Community/Parent Support.
Provide evidence that demonstrates parents and guardians have committed to enrolling their children in
your school. You must provide evidence through a narrative or visual of this educational need through
survey data, or times and locations of public meetings discussing this proposed charter school. (Please do
not provide more than one sample survey form).

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5

8.2. Purposes of the Proposed Charter School

Q41. In one page or less, describe how the proposed charter school will achieve one or more of the six
legislative purposes, as specifically addressed in the NC charter school statute GS 115C-218, and the
proposed school's operations..
The Six Legislative Purposes of a Charter School are:1. Create new professional opportunities for teachers,
including the opportunities to be responsible for the learning program at the school site.2. Hold schools
accountable for meeting measurable student achievement results.3. Provide parents and students with
expanded choices in the types of educational opportunities that are available within the public-school
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system.4. Improving student learning.5. Increasing learning opportunities for all students, with a special
emphasis on at-risk or gifted students.6. Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods.

BEAM Academy will ful�ll the legislative purpose of “[Providing] parents and students with expanded

choices in the types of educational opportunities that are available within the public school system.” The

school will achieve this stated legislative purpose by providing an academic program infused with

Agricultural Science. The Agriculturally based public charter school will represent an expanded choice to

parents that is familiar, locally relevant, and distinct from the local school district.

8.3. Goals for the Proposed Charter School

Q42. Provide specific and measurable goals for the proposed school for the first 5 years of operation
outlining expectations for the proposed school's operations, academics, finance, and governance. Address
how often, who, and when the information will be communicated to the governing board and other
stakeholders.

The governing board of BEAM Academy will adopt a matrix of goals for which the school’s lead

administrator shall submit an annual report to the governing board and the school’s stakeholders

(including parents) each year at a date and time to be �xed by the board. The annual report shall report

the school’s progress toward achieving said goals. BEAM Academy goals to be reported upon for each of

the �rst �ve years are as follows:

Operations 

           The school’s lead administrator shall include progress on the operations matrix goals as part of its

monthly report at each governing board meeting. The operating goals are as follows:

1.     Meet 100% of all requirements for facility inspections for �re, health, and safety.

2.     Meet 100% of health and sanitation requirements for the school's child nutrition program.

3.     Meet 100% of safety requirements for the school’s bus transportation program including bus

inspections.

4.     Meeting 100% of state licensure requirements for sta�, including teachers and other personnel

requiring a professional license.

5.     Meet 100% of requirements for recordkeeping including student records, exceptional children

records, business, and �nancial records.

Academics 
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           The school’s lead administrator shall include progress on the academic matrix goals as part of its

monthly report at each governing board meeting. The academic goals are as follows:

1.     The school will test greater than 100% of all students required to be tested under the N.C.

Accountability Program.

2.     Each student subgroup matriculating at the school will achieve a minimum of 1.2 times growth over

the previous year or the beginning of year benchmark test.

3.     Each student subgroup matriculating at the school will exceed the performance composite of the

local school district for the same subgroups by 5 points.

4.     All non-state tested grades will show 1.2 times growth over their beginning year benchmark test by

the end of the school year.

5.     All non-state tested grades year-end performance composite will exceed their initial benchmark

performance composite by 5 percent.

Finance

           The �nance goals shall be reviewed each quarter by the governing board where indicated:

1.     The governing board will adopt an annual operating budget each �scal year for the next �scal year by

June 15  of each year.

2.     The school’s annual single audit, completed by a Local Government Commission approved

Independent Certi�ed Public Accountant, will show no de�cit and zero “0” adverse �nding.

3.     The school will have zero “0” non-compliance �nding in its �nancial operations for all state, local, and

federal programs.

4.     The governing board shall receive 12-month �nancial reports each year, one for each month of the

year which shows the school's �nancial position including the approved budget, funds received, and funds

expended.

5.     The governing board shall monitor its Dun & Bradstreet Credit Report each quarter and assure that

all its current bills are paid on time and the school maintains a high credit rating.

Governance

           The governance goals shall be reviewed by the governing board each quarter where indicated:

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
NC Public Charters

th

Powered by  EdLusion 8/5/2020



 
1.     The board shall conduct a minimum of ten (10) regular board meetings per year.

2.     A total of 100% of governing board members will complete an annual con�ict of interest disclosure by

June 30  each year.

3.     The governing board will complete an annual self-evaluation by June 30  each year.

4.     The governing board will complete a formal evaluation of the lead administrator by June 30  each

year.

5.     The governing board shall complete a formal service evaluation of the contracted educational

services provider by June 30  each year.

Q43. How will the governing board know that the proposed public charter school is working toward
attaining their mission statement?

At the core of our mission is to Build Excellence and Agricultural Mastery. The school seeks to build

academic excellence among our scholars by providing a rigorous and hands-on experience for our

students through project-based learning. The board will know the school is achieving its mission when

students are surpassing LEA grade pro�ciency averages and when students are fervently pursuing their

studies.
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9. Educational Plan

9.1. Instructional Program

Q44. Provide a detailed description of the overall instructional program of the proposed charter school,
including:

major instructional methods
assessment strategies, and
explain how this instructional program and model meet the needs of the targeted student population

BEAM Academy’s overall instructional program is built around Project-Based Learning. The program is

student-centered and designed to address the unique identi�ed needs of students in Bladen and the

surrounding counties. The instructional program is built around the National Agricultural Literacy

Curriculum and Common Core State Standards for reading and math. The instructional program includes

developing core values such as teaching students to respect themselves and others, to motivate students

to strive for excellence and self-improvement, and to promote the concept of life-long learning. The

overall instructional program includes hands-on learning, and interactive classroom environment, and

regular use of technology as part of the instructional experience.

EDUCATIONAL STANDARDS

           

National Agricultural Literacy Curriculum

           The National Agricultural Literacy Curriculum Matrix includes standards in science, social studies,

and nutrition. The curriculum is linked to the Common Core State Standards in reading and math. BEAM

Academy’s overall instructional program will use this curriculum to facilitate learning and provide a

framework for instruction in science, social studies, and nutrition. The curriculum’s links to the Common

Core will facilitate our teachers' infusing agricultural themes into the school’s reading and math programs.

On a daily basis, students will receive instruction which includes: Agriculture and the Environment;

Cultural, Society, Geography, and the Environment; Food, Health, and Lifestyle; Plants and Animals for

Food, Fiber, and Energy; and Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math. The National Agricultural

Literacy Curriculum has been widely used with positive results for educationally disadvantaged students.

(Kovar and Ball, 2013).
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Common Core States Standards

           BEAM Academy’s overall instructional program will utilize the Common Core State Standards for

reading and math. The Common Core State Standards are aligned to the North Carolina Accountability

Model. These Standards are part of the North Carolina Standard Course of Study and will help facilitate

our students and teachers to follow a path that aligns with State End-of-Grade (EOG) Testing. These grade-

level standards will serve as the basis for daily reading and math instruction throughout each school year.

MAJOR INSTRUCTIONAL METHODS

           BEAM Academy’s major instructional method is Project-Based Learning. All students will participate

in grade-level projects which are at the core of the overall daily instruction.

Students at each grade level will participate in projects which are part of an overall Community Garden

which will be developed at the school. This hands-on method involves students cultivating seeds,

preparing the soil, planting a garden, and discussing and engaging in classroom work related to their

Project-Based Learning Project as a central theme in all subject areas of study. The Community Garden

will facilitate multiple grade level Project-Based Learning Projects for students. For example, a 1st-grade

project may be focused on leaves and plant symmetry. A 3rd-grade project may focus on soil composition.

A 4th-grade project may focus on plant seeds.

           Teachers will utilize other classroom instructional methods such as Direct Instruction, Cooperative

Learning, Technology Facilitated Instruction, Small Group Instruction, and others. The overarching

instructional method is Project-Based Learning.

Reading
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           BEAM Academy will focus on reading, writing, and literacy as the major gateway instructional area to

assure that all students gain excellent skills in reading, writing, and English Language Arts. The school will

use the Wilson Reading System to teach reading. Wilson Reading is a “structured literacy program based

on phonological coding research and Orton Gillingham principles.” (Wilson Reading Systems, 2020). The

program provides a systematic and structured method to teach reading to students who are at risk and

who come to school without a strong foundation for reading. The Wilson Reading System will meet the

needs of our students because it is designed to address skills de�cits that act as barriers to student

progress in reading. Students at BEAM Academy will have a minimum daily 90 minutes block of

Reading/ELA. The school will use culturally relevant reading materials and agricultural theme-based

literature which relate to the school’s Project-Based Learning program.

Mathematics

           BEAM Academy will utilize the “Growing with Mathematics” program by McGraw Hill to teach

mathematics in grades K-5 and related McGraw Hill products in grades 6-8. The McGraw Hill program is

aligned to North Carolina Standards and the Common Core State Standards. The program easily adapts to

the Project-Based Learning environment and the schools’ Agricultural theme. The school will provide a

minimum of 60 minutes of grade-level math instruction and interactive activities each day with each

student to facilitate student academic progress in mathematics. Agricultural Science involves developing

substantial mathematics skills and the Project-Based Learning approach gives students an opportunity to

learn math with practical applications. This approach to learning math has had success with educationally

disadvantaged students. (Wright Group, 2005). 

Science

           BEAM Academy’s instruction in science will follow the National Agricultural Literacy Curriculum and

the North Carolina Standard Course of Study Science Standards. MAP Assessment alignment will

facilitation measuring student progress consistent with the North Carolina Accountability Model and the

North Carolina Science EOG. Students will participate in daily 60 minutes of science instruction blocks. In

addition, the hands-on participation in Agricultural-based Project-Based Learning provides students a type

of science lab instructional time on a daily basis.
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ASSESSMENT STRATEGIES

           BEAM Academy will utilize the Northwest Evaluation Association Measures of Academic

Performance (MAP) Assessment system to assess student progress in grades K-8 in reading and math. The

MAP Science assessment will be used to assess student progress in grades 1-8. The MAP Assessment

system will serve as the school’s benchmarking assessment system for all grades and its summative

assessment for grades K-2. Students will participate in the North Carolina Read-to-Achieve Program

including 3rd-grade student participation in the Beginning-of-Grade (BOG) testing program. Students in

grades 3-8 will participate in the North Carolina End-of-Grade (EOG) Testing Program. Students in grades 5

and 8 will participate in the North Carolina Science End-of-Grade (EOG) Testing Program. The school will

use a test developed by the National Center for Agricultural Literacy to determine student progress in

mastering the grade-level curriculum objectives of the National Agricultural Literacy Curriculum.

           The school will conduct assessments of all students during the �rst week of school as an initial

benchmark. Teachers and the school Principal will utilize data collected from this initial benchmark test to

guide instruction in core competencies established in the curriculum standards and to move students

toward grade-level competency. Four MAP Assessment administrations will occur throughout the school

year as a means to check student progress to provide teachers and sta� guidance on students’

educational needs relative to grade-level progress and student growth.

HOW THE INSTRUCTIONAL MODEL MEETS STUDENT NEEDS

           BEAM Academy’s target student population is educationally disadvantaged students who often

disengage from traditional public education as illustrated by low student performance in surrounding

traditional public schools. The Project-Based Learning Method involves a hands-on approach to learning

which engages students who are di�cult to reach with the traditional approach to school and learning.

Student engagement is a critical factor in student academic progress. We have selected programs in

Reading/ELA, Math, and Science that present a di�erent approach than the surrounding traditional public

schools. Research-based best practices data o�er signi�cant support which demonstrates that our

Project-Based Learning Model will meet the needs of our targeted student population.
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           Kovar and Ball (2013), in a review of two decades of agricultural literacy research, determined that

agricultural literacy programs are an e�ective tool for student engagement in the elementary school

grades. Children are fascinated with the hands-on approach to learning about agriculture. Students

learning about agriculture tend toward a healthier lifestyle. These �ndings are consistent with the needs

of educationally disadvantaged students in Bladen and surrounding counties.

           Stebbin, Stormont, Lembke (2012) found that use Wilson Reading systems with disadvantaged

students resulted in improved reading comprehension skills, basic reading skills, word decoding, and

reading �uency. Our use of the Wilson Reading system to meet the needs of educationally disadvantaged

students in Bladen and surrounding counties is support by the research literature.

           Irons and Atkins (2003) found “Growing with Mathematics” an e�ective tool in increasing student

math scores for educationally disadvantaged students. In addition, McGraw Hill has a well-established

record for high-quality educational products. Our use of the “Growing with Mathematics” program to meet

the needs of our students is grounded in research-based educational best practices.

           Project-Based Learning enjoys strong research-based best practice support from the literature. For

example, ChanLin (2008) found that a group of 10-11 years old students in a Project-Based Learning

project developed signi�cant research skills and met their academic goals. Bell (2010) found that student-

centered learning in a project-based learning project resulted in improved student problem-solving skills.

Darling-Hammond (2019) found positive results in project-based learning for students learning science.

           Overall, BEAM Academy’s instructional program is supported by research-based best

practices. BEAM board and sta� will work diligently in implement the program with integrity and

quality. We anticipate our instructional program and model will meet the needs of our targeted student

population. 

Q45. Curriculum and Instructional DesignDescribe the basic learning environment (e.g., classroom-based,
independent study), including class size and structure for each grade span (i.e. elementary, middle, high)
the school would ultimately serve.

           BEAM Academy initial proposes to serve Grades K-4 and subsequently expand to Grade 8 by adding

one grade level each year after the �rst year of operations. Most daily instruction is classroom-based

which includes a mix of independent study, cooperative learning projects with other students in small

groups, Direct Instruction by the classroom teacher. The school plans one-to-one Chromebooks.

Technology integration and technology facilitated instruction is an integral part of the instructional

program. The school Project-Based Learning Program involves grade level student projects as part of a

Community Garden.
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           The basic learning environment is student-centered and includes students’ participation in a variety

of di�erent settings within the school. All settings include teacher and sta� supervision and facilitation.

The average class size is 18-22 students. Students and teacher teams will be categorized into three

separate grade spans including K-2, 3-5, and 6-8. 

           The learning environment will be academically rigorous. We plan to select furnishing which

accommodate student movement and �exible classroom con�gurations. Teachers will have the capacity

to assemble student seating in the traditional classroom format, create workstations, create a circle

classroom structure, establish a conference table arrangement, create a U Shape classroom structure, or

establish team style groupings. This �exibility will enable the teachers and instructional leaders to

optimize the learning environment to �t the lessons being presented.

           Each classroom has its regular classroom teachers. In addition, an instruction coach and designated

instructional leadership team members will regularly visit classroom, provide teacher support, and help

facilitate the highly rigorous learning environment.

Q46. Identify how this curriculum aligns with the proposed charter school's mission, targeted student
population, and North Carolina Accountability Model. Provide evidence that the chosen curriculum has
been successful with the target student population, how the plan will drive academic improvement for all
students, and how it has been successful in closing achievement gaps

           The School’s mission is to “provide a community-rooted school that will Build Excellence and

Agricultural Mastery (BEAM) among all students.” Agriculture is the main economic base in Bladen County,

North Carolina. Our students and their families have historic ties to agriculture. Our targeted students are

educationally disadvantaged which may include, economically disadvantaged students, students with

disabilities, English language learners, migrant and immigrant students, and students who may be from

groups which have experienced historical discrimination and exclusion. The North Carolina Accountability

Model requires that students achieve grade level performance. For public charter schools, the ability to

retain the State Board of Education approved charter rest upon outperforming the state and local school

district. Our chosen curriculum was selected because of the promise its shows for facilitating student

performance beyond the state and local standard.
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           The school’s use of the MAP Assessment benchmark will allow the school to conduct a data-driven

instructional program which will help teachers and the school’s leadership facilitate academic

improvement for all students. The data collected through MAP Assessment will enable the school to work

to successfully close achievement gaps. MAP is a nationally norm referenced assessment system.

Teachers and the school’s leadership can accurately compare and contrast BEAM Academy’s student

academic progress to other groups across the nation, identify achievement gaps, and set speci�c

academic goals to close those achievement gaps.

Q47. Describe the primary instructional strategies that the school will expect teachers to master and
explain why these strategies will result in increased academic achievement for the targeted student
population for each grade span (i.e. elementary, middle, high) the school would ultimately serve

           BEAM Academy teachers will be expected to master use of Project-Based Learning as the school’s

major overarching instructional strategy. Project-Based Learning will result in increased academic

achievement for the targeted student population for each grade span the school will serve by facilitating

student engagement in a hands-on approach to learning. 

Q48. Explain how the proposed instructional plan and graduation requirements will ensure student
readiness to transition from grade to grade and to the next grade span upon program completion

BEAM Academy requires student to substantially complete all mastery of grade level standards at each

grade level. The school shall adopt a student promotion and retention policy and procedure which

requires students to obtain a “C” letter grade or higher to pass from one grade level to the next grade level

by core subject. Student which do not meet minimum requirements may be retained or be required to

participate in summer school or after school enrichment to move to the next grade level or grade span.

Q49. Describe in a brief narrative below on how the yearly academic calendar coincides with the tenets of
the proposed mission and education plan.

The school calendar is based upon 1025 hours of annual instruction as provided by North Carolina

General Statutes. Our yearly academic calendar coincides with the tenets of the school’s proposed mission

and education plan by providing adequate time for teacher professional development, teacher planning,

benchmark testing, and instructional time.

Q50. Describe the structure of the school day and week. Include the number of instructional
hours/minutes in a day for core subjects such as language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies.
Note the length of the school day, including start and dismissal times. Explain why the school’s daily and
weekly schedule will be optimal for student learning.
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BEAM Academy’s school day begins at 7:00 a.m. and the day ends for students at 3:00 p.m. The academic

day for students consists of approximately 8 hours per day, Monday through Friday from the end of

August to mid-June. Reading/ELA consists of a 90-minute daily time block. Math consists of a daily 60-

minute time block. Science is a 60-minute daily time block. Social Studies is a 60-minute daily time block.

The school daily and weekly schedule provide optimal academic time for core subject and the operation of

an academically rigorous instructional program.  

Q51. Describe a typical day for a teacher and a student in the school’s first year of operation
The typical day for a teacher at BEAM Academy consists of providing about 6 hours of instruction to

students, one hour of planning time, one-half hour for lunch, and two 15-minute breaks. The typical day is

academically rigorous with an emphasis on e�cient use of instructional time.

Q52. Will this proposed school include a high school?

Q53. High School Greaduation and Post Secondary ReadinessDescribe how the proposed charter school
will meet the Future-Ready Core requirements. Provide details on how the students will earn credit hours,
how grade-point averages will be calculated, what information will be on transcripts, and what elective
courses will be offered

BEAM does not o�er a high school program. However, its goal is to lay a strong foundation for students to

prepare them for participation in high-school and beyond.

Q54. Explain how the graduation requirements will ensure student readiness for college or other
postsecondary opportunities (trade school, military service, or entering the workforce).

BEAM does not o�er a high school program.

Q55. Explain what systems and structures the school will implement for students at risk of dropping out
and/or not meeting the proposed graduation requirements

BEAM will support drop out prevention by providing a strong academic foundation for its students to

insulate them from drop out due to di�culty with academic performance.

Q56. AttachmentsAttach Appendix B: Curriculum Outline per Grade Span (for each grade span the school
would ultimately serve). 
One sample curriculum outline (in graph form) in the Appendices for one core subject (specific to the
school’s purpose) for each grade span the school would ultimately serve. 

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 28  Total Files Count: 5
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Q57. If applicable, attach Appendix C: 9-12 Core Content Electives
Provide a visual description of what courses (both core content and electives) will be offered at the charter
high school to ensure students meet the proposed charter school’s graduation requirements. Please
ensure the projected staff and budget aligns with the course offerings. 

BEAM does not o�er a high school program.

Q58. Attach Appendix D: Yearly Academic Calendar (minimum of 185 instructional days or 1,025 hours) 
 File Type: pdf, image, word  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 3

Q59. Attach Appendix E: Daily and Weekly Schedule
Provide a sample daily and weekly schedule for each grade band (K-5, 6-8, and 9-12) the school ultimately
plans to serve. 

9.2. Special Populations and “At-Risk” Students

Q60. Explain how the school will identify and meet the learning needs of students who are performing
below grade level and monitor their progress. Specify the programs, strategies, and supports you will
provide for these students

BEAM Academy will use a Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model to manage teacher and sta� response to

data collected from initial benchmark tests and end of marking period benchmark testing. The school will

collect data through its assessment program and plan which will enable the school’s instructional leader
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and teachers to speci�cally identify students who are performing below grade level very early in the

school year. The assessment data will identify student academic performance as compared to their grade

level peers. The RTI system is the management plan to address data-driven academic interventions to help

students perform at or above grade level by the end of the academic school year. Intervention strategies

are tiered and may include whole class instruction, small group instruction, individual instruction, tutoring,

technology-assisted instruction, and other intervention methods designed to facilitate student academic

progress. 

Q61. Describe the extent to which one or more of the founding board members has experience working
with special populations (students with disabilities, students with 504 Plans, ELs, students identified as
gifted, and students at risk of dropping out). If no founding board members have experience working with
special populations, describe the school’s pre-opening plan to prepare for special populations.

BEAM Academy’s pre-opening plan to prepare for special populations is based upon the expectation that

the school will attract special student populations in a similar ratio as exists in the traditional local school

district. The school will hire a licensed exceptional children’s teacher with the quali�cations to serve as the

school’s exceptional children’s director. The exceptional children’s director, under the supervision of the

Lead Administrator, will prepare the school to provide a full range of services to exceptional children

services and proper accommodations to Section 504 students who may enroll in the school. The board will

adopt a policy and procedure for identifying exceptional children and 504 students during the student

registration process prior to the start of school (after the lottery). The school will hire a licensed EL teacher

who is quali�ed to serve as the EL Program Coordinator. During the student registration process, all

students will be required to complete the Home Language Survey. The Home Language Survey is the

foundational tool that starts the process of identi�cation of EL students in need to services. The

Instructional Leader will select a team of teachers to form the school’s Professional Learning Community

to formulate strategies to identify and accommodate academically gifted students. The school’s 21

Century instructional program is designed to accommodate gifted students by establishing a means for

students to matriculate as slow as their cognitive abilities require but also as fast as their cognitive abilities

enable them. The school’s overall academic program and school culture are designed to address the

needs of educationally disadvantaged students.

Q62. Explain how the instructional plan and curriculum will meet the needs of English Learners (EL),
including the following:a. Methods for identifying EL students (and avoiding misidentification).b. Specific
instructional programs, practices, and strategies the school will employ to ensure academic success and
equitable access to the core academic program for EL students.c. Plans for monitoring and evaluating the
progress and success of EL students, including exiting students from EL services.d. Means for providing
qualified staffing for EL students.
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BEAM Academy will be fully prepared to address the needs of EL students within the context of the

school’s instructional plan and curriculum. The school’s objective is high student academic performance

for each subgroup. The school will facilitate EL’s students’ full access and participation in the instructional

plan and curriculum by providing services that eliminate the language barrier which may block access to

the instructional plan and curriculum. First, parents of students will complete the Home Language Survey

during the school registration process after the student has been accepted for enrollment at the close of

the school lottery. Students whose �rst language is not English or for whom English is not spoken at home

as identi�ed on the Home Language Survey are tested using the W-Apt and Wida Screener. The school will

use the state scoring standards to determine if a student is eligible for EL services and at what

level. Students identi�ed as in need of EL services shall be provided the level of services indicated. The

school will provide push-in services for EL students in the regular classroom. The school will provide pull-

out services for students whose EL Plan provides for it. Students will be tested each year using the ACCESS

test to determine progress and adjust the level of services. The ACCESS test will be used as an exit

assessment tool for students who have gained adequate levels of English language pro�ciency to

independently function in the classroom. The school will seek teachers with dual certi�cations which

include EL certi�cation during the initial teacher hiring process.

Q63. Explain how the school will identify and meet the needs of gifted students, including the following:a.
Specific research-based instructional programs, practices, strategies, and opportunities the school will
employ or provide to enhance their abilities.b. Plans for monitoring and evaluating the progress and
success of gifted students; and means for providing qualified staffing for gifted students.

BEAM Academy will identify and meet the needs of gifted students by providing an instructional program

which is designed to enable students to matriculate as slow as their cognitive abilities require but also as

fast as their cognitive abilities enable. The school will treat all student as being academically gifted.

9.3. Exceptional Children

Q64. Identification and RecordsExplain how you will identify students who are enrolled within the charter
school that have previously been found to be eligible for special education services or are protected under
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. 

After the initial enrollment application and lottery, parents of students who are accepted will be required

to completed student registration within 10 days of formal written notice of acceptance. Student

registration forms will include questions which seek to identify whether the student has been previously

found to be eligible for special education services or are protected under the Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act. Subsequently, the school will send a student records request to the student’s prior

school which speci�cally includes a request for any exceptional children’s or 504 records. Finally, the
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Exceptional Children’s Director will review all previously mentioned records to determine the student’s

status. Prior to the �rst day of school, the Student Information Management sta� will run list of students

who are identi�ed as Exceptional Children and 504 from the databases of POWERSCHOOLS and

ECATS. On day one of the start of school, Exceptional Children and 504 Students will receive required

services and accommodations.

Q65. Provide the process for identifying students who may be eligible for special education services as
identified in the federal 'Child Find' mandate. Be sure to include how student evaluations and assessments
will be completed. Include how the school will avoid misidentification of special education students.

The school will post ‘Child Find’ posters at strategic locations within the school, on the school’s website,

and discuss ‘Child Find’ at an open house and parent orientation meetings. The school’s sta�, including all

teachers and instructional sta�, will receive professional development in ‘Child Find.’ Parents, teachers,

instructional sta�, and other professionals working with a student may refer the student for evaluation for

eligibility for Exceptional Children’s services or 504 status. The school will adopt a speci�c policy and

procedure regarding referrals. Once a referral is made and the parent has provided consent, the eligibility

determination process will be completed within 90 days as required by law. The Exceptional Children’s

Director will obtain reports from all teachers who are teaching the student. The student will be

immediately scheduled for testing by the school’s contracted educational psychologist. The Exceptional

Children’s Director will obtain any written reports from outside professionals that can be provided by

parents. The Exceptional Children’s Director shall make every e�ort to ensure that a complete record is

made and the eligibility determination meeting (Individual Education Plan-IEP) is timely held. Student

evaluations and assessments will be completed by professionals. The school will maintain, on �le at the

school, a copy of the School Psychologist’s professional license, the Certi�cations of all personnel involved

at the school level involved in processing the referral, and the Exceptional Children’s Director shall review

the complete record along with another quali�ed sta� or consultant to verify there are no

misidenti�cations of special education students. 

Q66. Provide a plan detailing how the records of students with disabilities and 504 Accommodation plans
will be properly managed, including the following:a. Requesting Records from previous schoolsb. Record
Confidentiality (on site)c. Record Compliance (on site)

The school will manage Exceptional Children’s and 504 student records in accordance with federal and

state law. All sta� will receive professional development prior to the state of school to assure that sta� is

familiar with the Federal Educational Right to Privacy Act (FERPA) and our privacy laws regarding the

handling of student records and information sharing issues. The school will request records from the

student’s previous school during the �nal student registration process (after lottery) which includes a

speci�c request for records that show Exceptional Children or 504 status. The records clerk will establish a

separate, locked, records room for all Exceptional Children’s and 504 Accommodations records. The

records clerk shall immediately �le Exceptional Children and 504 student records in secure locked �ling
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cabinets. The room will have restricted access, including a speci�c sign-in and sign-out procedure. Record

con�dentiality shall be maintained by the restricted access to records and the professional training of

those who have access to the records. The Exceptional Children’s Director or quali�ed designee shall

make a review of Exceptional Children’s records each marking period to determine that each record is in

compliance with federal and state requirements. For example, the review shall include but is not limited

to, a determination that all eligibility determinations were completed within the required 90 days. The

review will examine whether all proper signatures were obtained from parents and IEP teams. The review

will determine whether all DEC forms (DEC forms have been renamed in the new ECATS system) were

timely and properly completed. The school will adopt a written internal compliance audit protocol.

Q67. Exceptional Children’s ProgrammingExplain how you will meet the learning needs of students with
mild, moderate, and severe disabilities in the least restrictive environment possible.

The properly constituted IEP Team is charged by law with making the determination of how each

individual Exceptional Child’s learning needs are met in the least restrictive environment possible. All sta�

which may be involved on an IEP team will have proper training and credentials. All sta� will have received

training in the concept and requirements for a Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE). Each IEP

Team will take into consideration whether a student’s disabilities are mild, moderate, or severe when

creating, modifying, amending, or discontinuing an IEP. Special Education Students receive their status

because an eligible disability has been shown to adversely impact student learning. The purpose of the IEP

is to attempt to remediate the adverse impact of the disability on the student’s ability to learn. It shall be

the policy of the school to use data-driven instruction will all students, including students with disabilities

and 504 Accommodations. The School’s Lead Administrator shall coordinate with the Exceptional

Children’s Director to regularly review student progress data (at least each marking period) to determine

whether Exceptional Children, as a subgroup, are making adequate progress. The school will o�er a full

range of Exceptional Children’s Services. Exceptional Children Teachers may push-in to regular classroom

or students may be pulled-out of regular classrooms for special instructional services dependent upon the

student’s IEP. The school will also have a self-contained classroom available if needed. Students may be

homebound as needed. The school and the IEP Team will be responsive to the individual needs of

students and provide services to students in the least restrictive environment as determined by the IEP

Team.

Q68. Describe the specific educational programs, strategies, and additional supports the school will
provide to ensure a full continuum of services for students with disabilities. How will the school ensure
students’ access to the general education curriculum?

The school will provide regular classroom push-in services, regular classroom pull-out services, small

group instruction, tutoring, self-contained classroom, and homebound services as needed based upon the

student’s IEP. The school’s general education curriculum will be the basis of the school’s educational

program for Exceptional Children as well as all other students. Regular education and special education
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students are tested using the State’s end-of-grade testing unless a student’s IEP has approved alternative

testing. Students whose disabilities require alternative testing may be provided a modi�ed version of the

general education curriculum which is consistent with the approved alternative testing. On a continuum,

Special Education Students with less severe needs will participate in the general education curriculum in

the regular classroom. These students may be pulled-out for speech therapy or occupational therapy as

indicated in the IEP. Other students with greater needs may be pulled out of the regular classroom for

modi�ed reading or math instruction in a small group setting based upon the IEP. There may be students

with severe needs who may be educated in a self-contained classroom. All teachers and instructional sta�

shall be required to provide students access to the general education curriculum and prepare students for

success on the end-of-grade test. The only exception to full participation in the general education

curriculum is where an IEP Team has determined that student is in need of a modi�ed curriculum and

alternative testing. The school will be immediately prepared to provide regular SWD services in the

classroom, provide separate setting services, homebound services, resource services, and provide

contracted support services for speech, occupational therapy, psychological services, and so forth.

Q69. Describe the methods and support systems that will be in place to ensure students with disabilities
receive a Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE).

FAPE is an acronym for the legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)

to provide a Free and Appropriate Education. Special Education and 504 students will not be charged any

student fees that regular education students are not charged. The school will pay the cost for all services

provided in the IEP or 504 Plan.  The school, through the IEP Team, will ensure students receive an

education which is appropriate to their disabilities in the professional opinions of the IEP Team. The

school, through the IEP Team, shall ensure, to the extent possible, that Special Education and 504

students are educated in a public-school setting. The exception is if a private school placement is deemed

in the best interest of the student and properly approved. If a private school placement is necessary, the

cost is born by the school. The methods and support systems used to assure FAPE include the school’s

general education program, its Exceptional Children’s Program, the availability of related services

providers, having quali�ed and properly credentialed sta�ng, proper sta� training, appropriate policies

and procedures, and proper program supervision. The education we provide to our Exceptional children

and 504 students is designed to prepare them for the future, including higher education, career,

employment, and personal independence.

Q70. Describe how implementation of the Individualized Education Plan (IEP) will be monitored and
reported to the student, parents and relevant staff.
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The Exceptional Children’s Director is responsible for oversite of the implementation of the IEP. The

Exceptional Children’s Director will conduct a conference at least once each marking period to discuss

student progress with parents and the students. The Exceptional Children’s Teacher, regular education

teachers, and other appropriate sta� will participate in weekly data-review sessions where all students’

progress is discussed including students with disabilities. The Exceptional Children’s Teacher will maintain

services schedules. There shall be services schedules for related services. The Exceptional Children’s

Director shall review IEP’s and services schedules each month to ensure that all Exceptional Students are

receiving proper services according to their IEP. The Exceptional Children Director shall report on the

progress of Exceptional Children at least once each month on an agreed-upon schedule. Exceptional

Children are a state established student subgroup within the school for testing and accountability

purposes. The school will make every e�ort to ensure that Exceptional Children and 504 students receive

a high-quality education and are able to perform on end-of-grade test to the best of their abilities.

 

Q71. Describe the proposed plan for providing related services and to have qualified staffing adequate for
the anticipated special needs population.

The board recognizes that hiring quali�ed sta� and providing proper training and planning is critical to a

successful exceptional children’s program. The human resources committee will conduct a nationwide

search through teachers-teachers.org, conduct interviews of quali�ed candidates, and select the best-

quali�ed sta� based upon our overall program and proposed school culture. The Exceptional Children’s

Director shall solicit services proposals from quali�ed related services providers. The school will select the

best-quali�ed providers. The school will also maintain a standby list of providers to timely provide proper

related services. Related services include but are not limited to the services of an educational psychologist,

a speech pathologist, audiologist, occupational therapist, and optometrist.

9.4. Student Performance Standards

Q72. Describe the student performance standards for the school as a whole.

BEAM Academy’s mission is operational in the school’s student performance standards. We de�ne

“student performance standards” to include the governing board’s expectation of the level of student

performance required to move progressively thru our educational program. Our standards are comprised

of several factors including (1) classroom performance, (2) benchmark test performance, (3) state end-of-

grade test performance, and (4) general school compliance such as attendance, discipline, and so forth.
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Classroom Performance

           The schoolwide classroom grading policy is required to be consistent across all grades. The school

will operate according to the following grading scale:

Grading Scale

Letter Grade

Point System

A=90+

B=80+

C=70+

D=60+

F=Below 60

Benchmark Test Performance
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           Benchmark test performances will be a component of the students’ performance grades. The

governing board will adopt a plan and policy that properly integrates the Benchmark assessments into the

marking period grades.

State and School Summative End-of-Grade Test

           BEAM Academy will assign a weight to the end-of-grade test to be counted towards �nal individual

report cards. The school’s lead administrator and/or his/her designee shall examine classroom

performance, benchmark performance, and end-of-grade test to make a �nal decision on promotion to

the next grade level.

Q73. Explain the use of any evaluation tool or assessment that the proposed charter school will use in
addition to any state or federally mandated tests. Describe how this data will be used to drive instruction
and improve the curriculum over time for the benefit of students.

The school’s testing coordinator will conduct a beginning benchmark assessment and end of marking

period benchmarks stemming from the N.C. Standard Course of Study created in School Net or through

NWEA/MAP. In addition to the School Net Assessments, the school will use the State End-of-Grade Test

and other state or federal mandated testing. Data collected from the benchmark tests will be used to drive

instruction. For example, teachers and the school’s instructional leaders will establish a pacing guide

during the summer which schedules the teaching of the mastery of the standards. Students are tested at

the beginning of the year to determine each students’ status with respect to mastery of the

standards. Data from the benchmarks will be used to target instruction and promote mastery of the

standards. The teachers and instructional leaders will make a check-list of the standards which will be

marked o� as each student demonstrates mastery through a subsequent benchmark. The teachers and

instructional leaders will collaborate to facilitate student mastery of all grade-level standards prior to the

End-of-Grade test. Students that fall behind will be provided special interventions such as small group

instruction and tutoring to achieve mastery. The school’s Professional Learning Community, which

consists of teachers and instructional sta�, will share experiences and iterate upon lessons learned to

improve pacing guides in the subsequent school year.

Q74. Explain the policies and standards for promoting students, including students with special needs,
from one grade level to the next. Discuss how and when promotion criteria will be communicated to
parents and students.
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Promotion and retention criteria will be presented to parents at the beginning of the school year during

open house and at monthly parent meetings. The policies and standards for promotion and retention will

be contained in the Parent-Student Handbook which shall be distributed to all parents and students at the

beginning of the school year. The Handbook will also be available on the school website. In order to be

promoted to the next grade level, students must achieve su�cient progress to demonstrate that they are

likely to succeed in the next grade level. The governing board will establish a �nal policy, but the minimum

criteria is a composite 70 percent on the school report card. The �nal report card grade will include

classroom work, benchmark assessment results, and end-of-grade test results. The school’s lead

administrator or designee is responsible for making �nal decisions regarding promotion and

retention. Any retentions will be required to be accompanied by a detailed explanation of what

remediation should take place to progress the student to the next grade. Students in danger of failing will

be identi�ed in January of each year and provided an opportunity to modify or develop a personal

education plan with corrective actions which will allow the student to be promoted if completed.

Q75. Provide the public charter school's exit standards for graduating ALL students. These standards
should set forth what students in the last grade served will know and be able to do. Be sure to include
plans for students at risk of dropping out.

The exit standards for all students transitioning from the school’s terminal grade level is having achieved

70% mastery of all prior year’s course work, 70% or greater report card grades, and 70% passing of the

requirements for the terminal grade level. The school will adopt the N.C. Standard Course of Study as a

statement of what a student should know and be able to do at the end of the school’s terminal grade in

reading/ELA, math, and science. Students at-risk are subject to the same standards as all other

students. The school will ensure that at-risk students have advance notice of their academic status by

January of each year and are a�orded a plan to take corrective actions. The school will enter a STUDENT,

PARENT, TEACHER, SCHOOL COMPACT which outlines what supports the school and the teachers will

provide to ensure students are successful.

9.5. School Culture and Discipline

Q76. Describe the culture or ethos of the proposed school. Explain how it will promote a positive academic
environment and reinforce student intellectual and social development

BEAM Academy’s school culture will be built around the theme of the Agricultural Sciences and promote

the principles of hard work and setting goals. We will build a strong family-like school culture that nurtures

students, encourages their progress, and inspires their con�dence. We will reinforce of intended culture

with messaging on posters, and other visual representations. We will provide messages through lectures,
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assemblies, and school community events. We will provide training in school etiquette to students and

parents. We will work to ensure we have a strong professional sta� that deliberately builds the school

culture we seek.

Q77. Explain how you will create and implement this culture for students, teachers, administrators, and
parents starting from the first day of school. Describe the plan for acculturating students who enter the
school mid-year.

The teachers and sta�, including bus drivers, cafeteria workers, and custodians are provided professional

development prior to the arrival of students at the beginning of the school year to provide guidance on

their respective roles and responsibilities regarding creating a school culture. The guidance includes

school etiquette and how to interact with parents and students. All entering students and their parents

are provided an orientation with the expectation that the school, parents, and students sign the STUDENT,

PARENT, TEACHER, SCHOOL COMPACT. The school’s culture is created by sta� modeling behaviors and

constantly teaching the school’s etiquette. The sta� begins promoting the school’s culture on the �rst day

of school and consistently models behaviors that are consistent with the school’s proposed culture and

ethos. Mid-year students and their parents will receive the orientation. The school will have standards for

students greeting each other, teachers and sta�, parents, and other adults. The school will have regular

family type discussions. The school will establish observances which celebrate progress during the school

year, including pep rallies, and other events that boost student and sta� morale and transmits the

school’s culture and ethos.

Q78. Provide a brief narrative that delineates how student conduct will be governed at the proposed
charter school and how this plan aligns with the overall mission and proposed Education Plan of the
charter school. Be sure to include:a. Practices the school will use to promote effective discipline.b. A
preliminary list and definitions of the offenses which may result in suspension or expulsion of students.c.
An explanation of how the school will take into account the rights of students with disabilities in regard to
these actions that may or must lead to suspension and expulsion.d. Policies and procedures disseminating
due process rights, including grievance procedures, for when a student is suspended or expelled.

BEAM Academy will publish its Student Code of Conduct at the beginning of each school year. The Code

will be provided to both parents and students. The school will conduct a schoolwide training on the

Student Code of Conduct. Students and parents will have the ability to have input in amending the

Student Code of Conduct each year. The Student Code of Conduct is a social contract between students,

parents, and the school. Our mission is “To provide students with a strong academic foundation infused

with the introduction of the Agricultural Sciences.” In order to achieve our mission, it is necessary that the
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school set standards and maintain a standard of decorum and good conduct. The school’s education plan

includes use of project-based learning. The school entire program is designed to create a culture of

personal discipline.

BEAM Academy will recognize the 16 reportable o�enses and their de�nitions required by N.C. Gen.

Statutes, for North Carolina public schools. The Student Code of Conduct, at a minimum, will distinguish

(1) Minor O�ense, (2) Major O�enses, and (3) O�enses Requiring Long-Term Suspension or Expulsion. The

governing board will adopt and publish a Parent/Student Grievance Policy and Procedure which

establishes due process rights and the procedures for �ling and processing complaints or appeals of

disciplinary actions. The Grievance process shall be included in the Parent/Student Handbook and

provided to parents and students at the beginning of the school year and will be available on the school’s

website. Presentation of the Student Code of Conduct and Grievance Procedure shall be included in the

mandatory student and parent orientation. Parents and students will sign an acknowledgment of having

been explained and receiving a copy of the Student Code of Conduct and the Parent/Student Grievance

Policies and Procedures. Any student that is suspended long-term or expelled will be provided a copy of

the Parent/Student Grievance Policy and Procedure which explains their appeal rights.

9.6. Certify

Q79. This subsection is entirely original and has not been copied, pasted, or otherwise reproduced from
any other application

Q80. Explanation (optional):
This application has been prepared in conjunction with Torchlight Academy School, LLC, the contract

educational services provider. This application may contain similarities of other applications for schools

under contract with the management company. We have worked diligently to assure the program

proposed in this application will meet the needs of targeted students.
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10. Governance and Capacity

10.1. School Governing Body

Q81. Name of Private Non-profit
Private Non-profit Corporation (NCGS 115C-218.1)
The nonprofit corporation must be officially authorized by the NC Secretary of State upon application

submission.

BEAM Academy

Q82. Mailing Address
P.O. Box 19191

Raleigh, NC 27619

Q83. Street Address
105 Star Street

Q84. City/State/Zip
Raleigh, NC 27610

Q85. Phone (xxx-xxx-xxxx)
919-538-8060

Q86. Fax: (xxx-xxx-xxxx)
919-850-9961

Q87. Name of Registered Agent and Address
Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC

P.O. Box 19191

Raleigh, NC 27610

Q88. The private non-profit listed as the responsible organization for the proposed charter school has
501(c)(3) status.

Federal Tax-Exempt Status (NCGS 115C-218.15)
If the non-profit organization has yet to obtain 501(c)(3) status, the tax-exempt status must be obtained

from the Internal Revenue Service within twenty-four (24) months of the date the Charter Application is
given final approval. 
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Q89. If applicable, attach Appendix F Federal Documentation of Tax-Exempt Status 
N/A

Q90. Federal Tax ID:
Not obtained yet.

10.2. Governance

The private nonpro�t corporation or municipality is the legal entity that has responsibility for all aspects of the

proposed charter school. Its members should re�ect the ability to operate a charter school from both business

and education perspectives. 

Q91. Using the attached resource as a template, please complete the table depicting the initial members of
the nonprofit organization

The initial board member temple has been completed and attached.

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 3

Q92. Describe the governance structure of the proposed charter school, including the governing board’s
functions, primary duties, roles and responsibilities as it relates to overseeing the charter school. Include
how the board will recruit, hire, and supervise the lead administrator

The Board is comprised of �ve board members of equal voting power. If the board ever reaches an even

number, the board chair will hold the power to break a tie vote. The board’s primary functions include:

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
NC Public Charters

No

N/A. The applicant is a tax-exempt municipality

Upload Required

Resources :

Evidence :

BEAM Academy_Initial Members…

Powered by  EdLusion 8/5/2020



 
- Creating school policies and procedures

- Budget Approval/Creation

- Financial & Academic Oversight

- Community Engagement

- Overall school responsibility

The school will conduct a nation-wide search for their Lead Administrator. The Lead Administrator will

have experience in agricultural curriculum and rural county education. Job postings for the Lead

Administrator will be posted in local newspaper, advertised at local events, and posted on national job

sites. The school will attract this principal by o�ering a salary that allows for a high-quality of life in Bladen

County and near the coast of North Carolina.

The board will supervise the Lead Administrator by reviewing regular reports of board stipulated goals

and metrics. These metrics will include the SMART goals listed earlier in the application. Other metrics will

be added as the school matures and receives community feedback.

Q93. Describe the size, current and desired composition, powers, and duties of the governing board
The current governing board is 5 members with 3 women and 2 men. These board members have

extensive education experience ranging from special education to school administration. All of the board

members have been local to Bladen County or the surrounding area for their entire lives and are well-

versed in the community’s history. One board member has lived in the area before the schools local to

East Arcadia were shut down and knows the potential this community has to learn. Our board’s combined

community leadership, knowledge, and educational experience has positioned the board to engage the

community and operate a school that understands the students of Bladen County.

The board’s primary responsibility is overall oversight of the charter school. The ultimate responsibility

and decision-making lie with the board of directors. The board’s most important responsibilities include

academic outcomes, �nancial viability, community engagement, and operational compliance.

Q94. Describe the founding board’s individual and collective qualifications for implementing the school
design successfully, including capacity in such areas as school leadership, administration, and governance;
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curriculum, instruction, and assessment; performance management; and parent/community engagement. 

As previously stated, the board is primarily comprised of career educators. These educators range from

teachers to administrators that have served Bladen County for decades. Their combined experience has

prepared them to analyze and iterate upon the academic curriculum for this speci�c community. The

majority of the board members lives have been spent in Bladen County. In addition to educational

experience is entrepreneurial and management experience provided by the board chair.

Q95. Explain how this governance structure and composition will help ensure that a. The school will be an
educational and operational success; b. The board will evaluate the success of the school and school
leader; and c. There will be active and effective representation of key stakeholders, including parents.

The board is comprised of educators and a retired school administrator. The board is prepared to adapt

to received metrics and learn the requirements of charter school operations. The board has partnered

with Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC as its education services provider/charter school management

organization. 

Q96. Explain the procedure by which the founding board members have been recruited and selected. If a
position is vacant, how and on what timeline will new members be recruited and added to the board?

The board chair, reached out to community members that he thought would best re�ect and serve Bladen

and the surrounding counties. If a position is vacant, the board will follow the by-laws and install a new

board member within 30 days.

Board members will be recruited throughout the year at forums, events, and during regular

conversations. The board will seek to add a list of potential board members so that unexpected vacancies

can be timely �lled.

Q97. Describe the group’s ties to and/or knowledge of the target community.
Two of the board members have grown up and lived in Bladen County for their entire lives. Both of these

board members are Bladen County educators and understand the educational landscape of the

community. Tyrone, the chair, has lived in and surrounding Bladen County for years. He owns a business

in New Hanover County and is entrenched in both the communities of New Hanover and Bladen. The

board is comprised of community activists and leaders that have proven dedication to Bladen County and

the surrounding areas. 

Q98. Outline the strategic board calendar detailing how often the board will meet according to the bylaws
established.

The board will meet monthly on a day and time to be decided upon. The board will meet a minimum of 8

times per year.
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Q99. What kinds of orientation or training will new board members receive, and what kinds of ongoing
professional development will existing board members receive? The plan for training and development
should include a timetable, specific topics to be addressed, and requirements for participation. 

The board of directors recognizes the need to maintain a high-quality board with members that have the

necessary skills to carry-out the board’s functions. The board has identi�ed attractive skill-sets to seek out

such as legal, accounting, nonpro�t governance, teaching, educational administration, marketing and

community relations, business, and construction and building maintenance. Board members also need to

understand Roberts Rules of Order and how to participate as board members in a public charter school

that is subject to North Carolina Open Meetings Laws and the North Carolina Public Records Act.

Board Member Orientation

The board will regularly recruit potential new board members and replacement board members to assure

the board maintains the threshold number of board members identi�ed in the By-Laws. The board will

also prepare individuals for participation on any formed Advisory Boards or committees. All potential

board members will be required to participate in a new board member orientation prior to being formally

nominated and considered to serve on the board of directors. The new board member orientation

consists of a two, two-hour training sessions.

First Session Topics:

1.           Robert’s Rules of Order

2.           North Carolina Open Meetings Laws

3.           North Carolina Public Records Act

4.           The �rst session will include Roberts Rules of Order (modi�ed), Board By-Laws, review of North

Carolina Open Meetings Laws, and review of the North Carolina Public Records Act.

Second Session Topics:
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5.           North Carolina Charter School Act

6.           Charter School Policies and Procedures of the North Carolina SBE

7.           N.C. Accountability Program

8.           Non-Pro�t Board of Director Ethics including the Boards Con�icts of Interest Policy and Procedure

and Board Policy and Procedure.

Once the four hours of training have been completed and the background check is completed, the

potential board member will be eligible for nomination, interview, and vote to be accepted as a regular

board member. Completion of the four hours of training is required and must be completed prior to

participation on any of the boards as a member. The successfully elected board member will then be

given a binder that includes: By-Laws, the Charter Agreement, Board Policies & Procedures, the charter

school’s established goals, and the most recent Lead Administrator Report.

Q100. Describe the board's ethical standards and procedures for identifying and addressing conflicts of
interest. Identify any existing relationships that could pose actual or perceived conflicts if the application is
approved; discuss specific steps that the board will take to avoid any actual conflicts and to mitigate
perceived conflicts

The board has submitted a con�ict of interest policy for the board of directors. Any potential con�icts of

interest are required to be reported formally to the board of directors. Board members may not vote on

any matter in which they have a con�ict of interest. The board has no known con�icts of interest. If the

board becomes aware of a con�ict of interest, immediate action will be taken to resolve the con�ict in

accordance with the drafted con�ict of interest policy. 

Q101. Explain the decision-making processes the board will use to develop school policies.
The board will enter discussion to develop school policies and make a �nal decision by a mutually agreed

upon decision. If not possible, a vote will be taken with majority ruling. When items are not time sensitive,

time will be taken to compile research, consult experts, and discuss options at the next board meeting. All

decision will be thoughtful and deliberate.

Q102. Describe any advisory bodies, councils, or associations listed in the organization chart or to be
formed, including the roles and duties of that body, and the reporting structure as it relates to the school's
governing body and leadership.
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The board does not currently have established advisory councils. The board will strive to create advisory

bodies that are empowered to impact school policy and direction. All advisory bodies that are formed will

report directly to the board of directors.

Internal councils may be formed such as Financial, Academic, and Operational. Board members shall chair

each of these bodies.

The school will form a Parental Advisory Council before the beginning of the school year that will present

and speak before the board of directors each month there is a board meeting. The Parental Advisory

Council’s by-laws will be reviewed and established by the board of directors. 

Q103. Discuss the school's grievance process for parents and staff members
Parents will be given the Student Handbook at the beginning of each year that spells out the information

on due process rights and the process for �ling a grievance. In addition, if a student is suspended or at risk

for expulsion, the parents will be informed in writing of their due process rights. Parents of students that

are suspended (in school or out of school) will be contacted by an Administrator. In most cases,

conferences with parents will occur at the school, or home site if preferred by the parent.

           Parents can provide a written request to the Lead Administrator to appeal any suspension or

expulsion. If the parent is still unsatis�ed after meeting with the Lead Administrator, they may provide a

written request for a grievance hearing to the Board as per the guidelines outlined in the student

handbook.

           Any employee who feels that they have been treated unjustly or unfairly, for any reason, has

recourse to have their issue heard, per these procedures:

1.                             Discuss the problem with the person or persons involved as soon as possible after the

event has taken place.

2.                             If an agreement as to how the problem will be handled is not arrived at, the employee

should �le his/her grievance, in writing, with the Lead Administrator.
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3.                             A conference will be held with the Lead Administrator, the aggrieved, and other involved

parties.

4.                             If a resolution is not reached, the aggrieved party has the option to continue with the

grievance process. Such intent must be submitted in writing to the Lead Administrator within 10 days

following the aforementioned grievance conference. This request will be provided to the Board to seek a

�nal resolution. After hearing the grievance, and with advice from legal counsel, the decision of the Board

Grievance Committee is �nal.

           In the event the issue is with the Lead Administrator, the aggrieved party may submit a written

grievance directly to the board.

Q104. Attach Appendix G Organizational Chart
A well-defined organizational chart showing the relationship of the Board of Directors to the parents

and staff of the proposed charter school. This chart should also include lines of authority to and from any
outside entity that will play a role in managing or supporting the charter school (such as educational
service providers, advisory bodies or parent/teacher councils).

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5

Q105. Attach Appendix H Charter School Board Member Information Form and Resume
A one-page resume from each founding board member and responses to the questions found on the

Charter School Board Member Form 

 File Type: pdf, excel, word  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 50
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Q106. Attach Appendix I Charter School Board Member Background Certification Statement and
Completed Background Check for Each Board Member

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 50

Q107. Attach Appendix J Proposed By-Laws of the Nonprofit Organization or MunicipalityThe proposed by-
laws, which must include a Conflict of Interest Policy for board members and a stated commitment to the
NC Open Meetings Law.

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 3

Q108. Attach Appendix K Articles of Incorporation or Municipal CharterIf the applicant is a non-profit board
of directors, attach a copy of the articles of incorporation from the NC Department of the Secretary of
State.If the applicant is a municipality, attach a copy of the municipal charter.

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5
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10.3. Staffing Plans, Hiring, and Management

Q109. Projected StaffComplete the staffing chart below outlining your staffing projections. Adjust or add
functions and titles as needed to reflect variations in school models. Be mindful that your predicted
administration and staff match the projected enrollment noted in Section I, course offerings, and align
with the proposed budget.

The sta�ng chart is attached. EC support sta� are contracted as well has transportation and child

nutrition sta�. The budget is aligned to the chart attached.

Q110. Staffing Plans, Hiring, and Management.Explain the board's strategy for recruiting and retaining
high-performing teachers.

Recruitment

The board and management company will seek out teachers that have the aptitude to creatively

di�erentiate instruction in an active-based learning environment. Teachers must embrace the idea of the

mission that drives our school.

           To teach at our school, teachers must embrace Culturally-Relevant Pedagogy, Project-Based

Learning, and the importance of contextualizing learning in ethics.

           The school will provide professional development and instructional infrastructure to help teachers

realize their full potential as professional educators. We will o�er teachers the opportunity to innovate

and exercise their craft without traditional restrictions that can impede teacher and student success. The
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Board will: 1) Create detailed job descriptions for each position. 2) Post job openings on the school

website, social media, recruitment sites, local newspapers and other resources and collaborative

community programs, to include local colleges and universities. 3) Participate in job fairs 4) Have school

board members and leaders share recruitment activities at national conferences and other networking

opportunities. 5) Examine recommendations from Management company for review.

Retention

Our school will use research-based best practices in the retention of high-performing teachers. These

include but are not limited to: 1) Creating a culture of high expectations for teachers and students 2)

Evaluating teachers based on performance and o�ering annual salary increases based on their evaluation

3) Providing teachers data-driven feedback through class growth 4) Providing rewarding professional

development opportunities for all teachers 5) Engaging teachers in decision making for school 6) An

intentional focus on teacher retention by including it in school goals.

           Teachers will receive regular cost of living raises each year, with a goal being the cost of in�ation.

Q111. If already identified, describe the principal/head of school candidate and explain why this individual
is well-qualified to lead the proposed school in achieving its mission. Provide specific evidence that
demonstrates the capacity to design, launch, and manage a high-performing charter school. If the
proposed leader has never run a school, describe any leadership training programs that (s)he has
completed or is currently participating in. If no candidate has been identified, provide the job description
or qualifications, and discuss the timeline, criteria, and recruiting/selection process for hiring the school
leader

The school leaders will be required to hold at least a Master Degree in Education or related �eld and have

experience in administration. The duties of the school leaders is the general management and oversight

of operation of the school in the areas of academics, �nancial, operations, facilities, marketing, regulatory

compliance, and federal program administration. The lead administrator is responsible for the day-to-day

operations of the school, supervision of sta�, evaluation of sta�, and reporting to the Board of Directors.

The school will identify the school leader by April of the school opening year. The Board and Management

Company will work together to identify the school leader.

Q112. Attach in Appendix O the School Leader’s ResumeIf school leader has been identified, include the
school leader’s one-page resume in Appendix O. 
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Q113. Provide a description of the relationship that will exist between the charter school employees and
the school’s board of directors.

All employees, including teachers, will report directly to the school leader. Teachers will be jointly hired by

the management company and the board of directors. All teacher candidates that are hired must �rst be

con�rmed by the board of directors.

Explicit contract descriptions of personnel relationships can be found in the management contract. 

Q114. Outline the school's proposed salary range and employment benefits for all levels of employment. 
The salary range for the Lead Administrator if $50-60K. The Instructional Leader is $40-50K. Core Content

Teachers are $40-50K. All positions are negotiable within the budgeted amount. The budget lists average

salaries. The school will pay up to $1,800 per year for all full-time employees for health care cost and 4

percent employer match for retirement. The school will not participate in the State Employee retirement

system or health plan.

Q115. Provide the procedures for handling employee grievances and/or termination
Any employee who feels that they have been treated unjustly or unfairly may have their issue heard, per

these procedures:

·        (1) Discuss the problem with the person or persons involved as soon as possible after the event has

taken place.

·       (2) If an agreement as to how the problem will be handled is not arrived at, the employee should �le

his/her grievance, in writing, with the Lead Administrator. A conference will be held with the Lead

Administrator, the aggrieved and other parties.

·       (3) If a resolution is not reached, the aggrieved party has the option to continue with the grievance

process. Such intent must be submitted in writing to Lead Administrator within 10 days following the

aforementioned grievance conference.

NORTH CAROLINA CHARTER APPLICATIONS
NC Public Charters

Upload Required

Evidence :

Appendix O.pdf

Powered by  EdLusion 8/5/2020



 
·        (4) If no resolution can be reached, the employee must submit to the Lead Administrator a written

request to the Grievance Committee of the Board in order to seek a �nal resolution. This request must be

submitted within ten days of receipt of the Lead Administrator’s decision. After hearing the grievance, and

with advice from legal counsel, the decision of the Board Grievance Committee is �nal.

Q116. Identify any positions that will have dual responsibilities and the funding source for each position
During the school’s infancy years, the school will require that multiple positions serve dual purposes:

·        Exceptional Children’s Teacher: Will also serve as the EC Director/Coordinator until more EC teachers

are needed. (LEA/State)

·        Instructional Leader: Test Coordinator. The Instructional Leader will serve as the testing coordinator

during the �rst few years of school operation (LEA/State)

Q117. Describe the plans to have qualified staffing adequate for the anticipated special needs population
and means for providing qualified staffing for EL and gifted students

The Lead Administrator is responsible for the overall day-to-day operations of the school. The Leader

Administrator will have at least a Master Degree and three years related experience. The Instructional

Leader is responsible for the school instructional program including supervision of the teaching and

instructional sta�. The Instructional Leader will also act as the school Test Coordinator. The Instructional

Leader will have at least a Master Degree. Teacher(s) will have a North Carolina Teaching License and at

least a Bachelor Degree. Teacher will be responsible for classroom instruction. The Board will develop

detailed job descriptions for all job positions and recruit quali�ed individuals for all postions including

sta�ng activities for EL and Gifted students.

Q118. Provide a narrative detailing the roles and responsibilities, qualifications, and appropriate licenses
that each position must have to be hired by the school’s board of directors and effectively perform the job
function(s).

The Lead Administrator is responsible for the overall day-to-day operations of the school. The Leader

Administrator will have at least a Master Degree and three years related experience. The Instructional

Leader is responsible for the school instructional program including supervision of the teaching and

instructional sta�. The Instructional Leader will also act as the school Test Coordinator. The Instructional

Leader will have at least a Master Degree. Teacher(s) will have a North Carolina Teaching License and at

least a Bachelor Degree. Teacher will be responsible for classroom instruction. 
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10.4. Staff Evaluations and Professional Development

Q119. Identify the positions responsible for maintaining teacher license requirements and professional
development.

BEAM Academy’s Lead Administrator, in conjunction with the contracted management company, will be

primarily responsible for maintaining teacher licensure requirements and professional development. The

school’s general teacher licensure status and professional development will be made a regular part of

monthly Lead Administrator’s report to the governing board.

Q120. Provide a detailed plan noting how the school will mentor, retain and evaluate staff in a format that
matches the school’s mission and educational program. Plan should also describe how the school will meet
the teacher certification and licensure requirements for teachers as prescribed by state and federal law.
Be sure this overview matches with the projected staff and funding of the proposed budget section.

The school sta� will operate as a Professional Learning community (PLC) operating under the leadership

of the school leader. The school leader will organize an internal infrastructure to mentoring relationships

to ensure we carry out the school's mission and educational program. We will operate an approve

Beginning Teacher License Support Program and Teacher License Renewal Program that will be organized

and carried out by the school leader and his/her designee.

Q121. Describe the core components of the professional development plan and how these components will
support the effective implementation of the educational program. Describe the extent to which
professional development will be conducted internally or externally and will be individualized or uniform.

The school's professional development plan includes 10 days of professional development prior to the

start of school each year and 10 days during the school year. The school's professional development will

be designed to ensure that sta� is prepared to carry out the school's educational plan. Professional

development will be carried out by the management company. Target job function related professional

development will be provided separately.

Q122. Provide a schedule and explanation of professional development that will take place prior to school
opening. Explain what will be covered during this induction period and how teachers will be prepared to
deliver any unique or particularly challenging aspects of the curriculum and instructional methods.

Pre-opening professional development will include health and safety such as CPR, use of the Epi pen,

blood bourne pathogens, and other health and safety issues. The training will provide an orientation

regarding the school's educational plan and its implementation. The training will include data-driven

instruction, project-based learning strategies, and other items necessary to facilitate the school design

plan.

Q123. Describe the expected number of days/hours for professional development throughout the school
year, and explain how the school's calendar, daily schedule, and staffing structure accommodate this plan.
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The school will provide 80 hours of pre-service professional development and 80 hours of professional

development to be carried out during the school year. Professional development is built into the schools

calendar.

10.5. Marketing, Recruitment, and Enrollment

Reaching the full capacity for enrollment will be critical to obtaining the necessary �nancial resources to keep

your school viable and operating e�ciently. In addition, it is required by law that charter schools provide equal

access to all students. Read the charter school state statute regarding admissions 115C-218.45 carefully. 

Q124. Marketing PlanMarketing to potential students and parents is vital to the survival of a charter
school. Provide a plan indicating how the school will market to potential students and parents in order to
reasonably reflect the racial/ethnic and demographic composition of the district in which the charter
school will be located or of the special population the school seeks to serve: (G.S.115C-218.45(e)).

·        Initial Application process (Nov - Dec 2021) - Communications to local media outlets (local

newspapers and radio) regarding the start date of a new school. Flyers will be distributed throughout local

businesses regarding the process of a child applying to the school and contact persons. The management

company and the board will have a forum for parents and potential students to attend for information

and questions regarding the school and the application process.

·        Open Enrollment Period (Jan-March 2022) – Applications will be accepted for two months. Open

enrollment will close at the end of February. Beginning in March, applications will be reviewed by the

management company in accordance to NCGS 115-c.281.45 regulations, a lottery held, and then

successful applications submitted to the board for approval. A board meeting will be scheduled at the end

of the month to review the management company recommendations which will be open to the public.       

·        Preliminary Planning Period (Apr. - May 2022) Applications have been accepted and the management

company begins outreach to the parents on requirements and information needed for their child to

attend the �rst day of school. The board will assist the management as needed to in this process.
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·        Final Approval, Student Enrollment and Planning Period (June - July 2022) Upon receipt of all

information with the recommendation of the management group for student enrollment for 2020-2021

school year, the board will review and accept or deny the recommendation. The board will meet early

enough that any corrections and/or additions can be made to ensure we have met our number of

students to begin the school year. The board will work closely with management group and school

administration in a consultant capacity with classroom sizes, teacher placement, and student pairing.

·        First 20 Days of School (Aug. - mid Sept. 2022) - The board will have their �rst meeting during the

school year to take a snapshot of the school from the management group’s perspective on how parents

and students view the school and ensure correct policy and procedures are being implemented by the

management in accordance with board expectations and state statutes. This meeting will be open to the

public.

·        First Semester (Dec. 2022) - The board will review the data supplied by the management company on

the progress of the school to date. Key indicators that the board will look at i.e., student attendance,

adaptability of curriculum, parent’s assessment of school and student attitude towards learning. The

meeting will be open to the public.

·        Open Enrollment / Enrollment Period for the 2022 - 2023 school year (Jan. - May 2022) The school will

plan and add an additional grade level per our charter agreement. If the school loses students, this will

give us the opportunity to recruit more students to replace those that did not return.

·       Finalizing Plan and Expansion for Year Two (June to July 2023) - The board will review and approve the

performance of the management group and our desire to continue to use their serves based upon the

data receive about the students’ performance, �scal responsibility and regulatory compliance. The facility

we picked is adequate to accommodate the expansion. We will work with school administration and the

management group to add additional sta� to accommodate the expansion and approve the process when

completed.

Q125. Describe how parents and other members of the community will be informed about the school.
Various marketing methods will be utilized to reach all students. These methods include:
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·        Door-to-Door Marketing

·        Mailers

·        Radio Public Service Announcements

·        Newspaper Press Releases

·        Social Media Engagement

·        Regular Public Forums/Events

·        Association Engagements

·        Day-care outreach

Q126. Describe your plan to recruit students during the planning year, including the strategies, activities,
events, and responsible parties. Include a timeline and plan for student recruitment/engagement and
enrollment, with benchmarks that will indicate and demonstrate suitable recruitment and enrollment
practices over time.

September 2021:

* Host a public forum to announce school opening in 2021 (Board)

* Send radio clips in both English and Spanish to local radio stations to be aired as PSA’s (Torchlight

Schools (TLS))

* Begin full-website development (TLS)

* Advertise on Social Media (Board/TLS)

December 2021:

* Participate in holiday activities of all religions to engage diverse communities (Board)
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* Advertise upcoming open enrollment (Board/TLS)

* Finalize website (Board/TLS)

January 2022:

* Open Enrollment Begins

February 2022

* Open Enrollment Ends, Lottery event is held, and parents are contacted to con�rm acceptance

(Board/TLS)

* Parents are required to �nalize enrollment by submitting required information

March 2022:

* Open Enrollment is re-opened if target student number is not met

* A celebratory event is held at the campus site for accepted and enrolled students (Board)

April 2022:

* Public Forum is held for parents that are on waiting list and what that means for their chances of

attending our school (Board/TLS)
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May 2021:

* Back-to-School Information is sent to the address of enrolled students (TLS)

June 2022:

* Advertise Meet-the-Teacher Event in July (TLS)

* Hold a Cook-out for enrolled students/parents (Board)

July 2022:

* Hold a Meet-the-Teacher Event for all upcoming students (Board)

* Contact all parents/students that did not attend to con�rm interest and attendance in August (TLS)

August 2022:

* Hold a week-long program leading up to school to ensure school interest and attendance come the start

of school (Lead Admin/TLS)

* Hold Student/Parent Orientation (Lead Admin)

Metrics:

* ROI on events and the number of applications submitted
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* Parent surveys from parents at our orientation event that asks where they �rst heard of the school, if

the applied online or in-person, and an open-ended question making recommendations on best ways to

engage their family

* Website views/Facebook likes that occur after each event/marketing push. This will help us understand

how successfully our marketing/community engagement tactics work to facilitate parental action to learn

more

Q127. Describe how students will be given an equal opportunity to attend the school. Specifically, describe
any plans for outreach to: families in poverty, academically low-achieving students, students with
disabilities, English learners, and other students at-risk of academic failure. If your school has a specific
area of focus, describe the plan to market that focus.

·        Our marketing materials will be in both English and Spanish to engage EL students and families.

·        Free transportation and free and reduced lunch will be advertised so economically disadvantaged

families are aware that our charter school serves all students.

·        Most students are at-risk of academic failure in the area, and our board is determined to serve those

students. We will host forums that are accessible to low-income families and host events that attract low-

income families such as backpack giveaways. 

Q128. What established community organizations would you target for marketing and recruitment?
The school will target Head Start and child care providers for student recruitment, local churches, and

other community groups.

10.6. Parent and Community Involvement

Q129. Describe how you will communicate with and engage parents and community members from the
time that the school is approved through opening.

Upon approval of the Charter Application, the board will continue its parent and community engagement.

All board of directors’ meetings will be open to the public and include a public comment period. The board

will establish a Parent-Community Support Committee to work directly with the school’s Lead

Administrator. The board and school administration will communicate with parents and the community by

posting information on the school’s website, sending emails, and by written correspondence. The school

will establish open enrollment dates and a lottery date. The school will hold a series of public forums

during the open enrollment period to explain the school’s mission and purpose and to engage the support

of parents and the community. The school will establish a roster of students that are successful applicants

for the schools initial opening year. The school will also establish a wait list for unsuccessful applicants

after the school’s lottery.
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           The school’s Parent-Community Support Committee will be engaged to support the Leader

Administrator and the Board by volunteer service in getting the school open including installation of the

playground equipment, cleaning of the facility and setting up the furniture. Parents and community

volunteers will assist with conducting open house and parent/community volunteers will receive training

to support volunteer service and to qualify to serve of the school’s boards and committees. Parents will

receive training to act as volunteer tutors, engage in fundraising, support their students and participate in

the life of the school.

 

Q130. Describe how you will engage parents in the life of the public charter school. Explain the plan for
building engaging partnerships between the family and school that strengthen support for student
learning.

All parents will be invited to participate in monthly Parent-Community Support Committee meetings. The

monthly meetings will include training opportunities on issues such as supporting our academic scholars,

parenting, volunteer service, and many other topics of interest. The Parent-Community Support

Committee may volunteer as bus monitors, greeters for morning and afternoon car rider lines, lunch and

recess support, �eld trip chaperones, monthly Saturday clean-up of the school facilities and grounds, tutor

assistance during academic enrichment activities after school or on Saturday enrichment events. The

Parent-Community Support Committee will assist in the facilitation of the school’s carpool.

           Parent and community involvement in the school will be an important part of the school’s program.

The school’s culture will require parents to support the school at home by enforcing and facilitating

homework and study time to encourage students to do their best. The school will conduct regular events

which involve family participation. The school will work to assure that students who may not have strong

family support have other parent and community volunteers that will support their academic success.

Q131. If already identified, describe any programs you will offer to parents and/or the community and how
they may benefit students and support the school mission and vision.

Parent Workshops- (Monthly, time and location TBD)
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·        Parent Volunteer Training Workshop

·        Parents as Tutors Workshop

·        Family Budgeting and Financial Workshop

·        Family Support of Academic Success

·        Personal Development Workshop

·        Child Discipline

·        Time Management Workshop

·        Reading at Home

·        Math at Home Science at Home

·        Fundraising Workshop

10.7. Admissions Policy

Q132. Provide the school's proposed policies and the procedures for admitting students to the proposed
charter school, including:a. Tentative dates for the open enrollment application period, enrollment
deadlines and procedures. *Please be advised schools cannot accept applications until after final approval
from the SBE.b. Clear policies and procedures detailing the open enrollment lottery plan, including policies
regarding statutory permitted student enrollment preferences.c. Clear policies and procedures for student
waiting lists, withdrawals, re-enrollment, and transfers.d. Explanation of the purpose of any pre-admission
activities (if any) for students or parents.e. Clear policies and procedures for student withdrawals and
transfers.

BEAM Academy board of directors will adopt an admissions policy which details the school’s admissions

process. Open enrollment will be scheduled for a minimum of 30 days in January, in accordance with state

statute. The lottery will take place mid-February. We will run public service announcements in local news

and social media outlets to announce the period of open enrollment and lottery prior to the �rst day of

open enrollment. On the �rst day of open enrollment, an admissions application will be available online

and via printed copies. We will email a link to the admissions application to our developed email list that

we have been gathering through the application process. We will mail admissions application forms to

those on the list that do not use email. We will conduct a signi�cant e�ort to get the word out about open

enrollment. We will collect admissions applications for the 30 days of open enrollment. If the number of
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applications exceeds the number of seats available at any grade level, we will conduct a lottery for that

grade level on the scheduled lottery date. Admissions applications received after the close of open

enrollment will go on a secondary wait list in the order received.

After the lottery is completed, those students that were not successful in obtaining admission through the

lottery will be placed on a wait list. The wait list order will be based upon the drawing. The school will

publish applicant’s assigned lottery number (no names) on the school website showing the applicant

lottery number of students accepted by grade level and the ordered wait list. Parents and students do not

have to be present to win the lottery. Immediately following the lottery, the school will send an o�cial

notice of acceptance for students accepted. We will also send a notice to students that were not accepted

with waitlist instructions. Accepted students and parents will have 10 business days to contact the school

and accept admission. If admission is not formally accepted within 10 business days, the seat will be given

to the next person on the waitlist. Admissions Acceptance Forms will be available on the date of the

lottery.

Once a student has been formally accepted, parents will be required to submit student registration

information. The initial Admissions Application will only include the students name, address, residency,

grade level, date of birth, sibling information, and preferred contact information and method. The full

registration packet will include records request authorizations and detailed information including health,

immunizations, exceptional children and 504 statuses, and so forth.

The school will conduct a series of introductory events prior to the start of school. The school admission

policy will also address withdrawals, re-enrollment, and transfers. Students that withdraw because of

parent military service, employment, or education have an admission preference if they return during the

two-year period. Students that withdraw outside of the policy preference will be required to go through

the lottery process over again. Students that transfer under the withdraw preference may return when a

seat is available as a preference. The school will also recognize limited preferences for board members,

teacher, and sta�.

Q133. Weighted LotteryDoes your school plan to use a weighted lottery?
The State Board of Education may approve an applicant's request to utilize a special weighted, or
otherwise limited, lottery in certain circumstances. If the charter applicant wishes to deviate in any way
from the open lottery normally utilized by charter schools, the following requirements must be met:
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1. In no event may a lottery process illegally discriminate against a student on the basis of race, religion,
ethnicity, gender, or disability.
2. A lottery process may not be based upon geographic boundaries, such as zip code or current public
school attendance zones, unless the charter school is operated by a municipality OR the charter school was
converted from a traditional public school. Municipal charter schools may give enrollment priority to
domiciliaries of the municipality in which the school is located (G.S. 115C-218.45(f)(7)), and charter schools
that were converted from traditional public schools shall give admission preference to students who reside
within the former attendance area of the school (G.S. 115C- 218.45(c)).
3. A lottery process that deviates from the standard lottery must be based upon the school's unique
mission and must be based upon educationally, psychometrically, and legally sound practices, protocol,
and research.

Q134. This subsection is entirely original and has not been copied, pasted, or otherwise reproduced from
any other application

Q135. Explanation (optional):
This section was prepared in collaboration with the management company which operates other schools

with similar operating strategy.
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11. Operations

Q136. I certify that this subsection is entirely original and has not been copied, pasted, or otherwise
reproduced from any other application

Q137. Explanation (optional):
This section was prepared in collaboration with the management company. Programs may be similar to

others operated by the management company.

11.1. Transportation Plan

Q138. Describe in detail the transportation plan that will ensure that no child is denied access to the school
due to lack of transportation. Include budgetary assumptions and the impact of transportation on the
overall budget. The details of this plan should align with the mission, identified need for the charter school,
targeted student population, and the budget proposal.
If you plan to provide transportation, include the following:a. Describe the plan for oversight of
transportation options (e.g., whether the school will provide its own transportation, contract out for
transportation, attempt to contract with a district, or a combination thereof) and who on the staff will
provide this daily oversight.b. Describe how the school will transport students with special transportation
needs and how that will impact your budget.c. Describe how the school will ensure compliance with state
and federal laws and regulations related to transportation services

BEAM Academy’s budget provides a part-time transportation coordinator. The transportation coordinator

will manage the day-to-day operations of the school’s transportation program. The school will contract

quali�ed bus drivers and provide its own buses. The transportation coordinator will set bus routes, pickup

times, and locations. The school will use an alert system which uses a text messaging feature to

communicate bus information and updates to parents. The school will make any special arrangements for

special transportation needs. The school will use its dedicated transportation funds or amend its budget

as needed to assure that all students in need of special transportation arrangements are able to get to

and from school. The transportation coordinator will assure that all school buses or other vehicles used

for school transportation are regularly and properly inspected in accordance with state, local, and federal

laws. The transportation coordinator will assure the buses are internally inspected at least monthly to

assure the buses are in good repair and safe for our students.
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The transportation will coordinate with the school’s lead administrator will assure that bus driver receive

training on the school’s culture and the Student Code of Conduct and rules of discipline on the buses. The

transportation coordinator and the lead administrator will provide parent orientations on the school’s

transportation program. The transportation coordinator will oversee the school’s parent carpool program.

BEAM Academy’s transportation program is designed to assure that no child is denied access to the school

due to a lack of transportation. The school anticipates working closely with educationally disadvantaged

students. The school’s transportation is designed to help the school ful�ll its mission by assuring that the

children get to school in a bus atmosphere which is consistent with the schools proposed culture, mission,

and vision.

11.2. School Lunch Plan

Q139. Describe in detail the school lunch plan that will ensure that no child is lacking a daily meal. The
details of this plan should align with the targeted student population and school budget proposal.If the
school intends to participate in the National School Lunch Program, include the following components in
the response:a. How the school will comply with applicable local, state, and federal guidelines and
regulations; b. Any plans to meet the needs of low-income students; andc. Include how the school intends
to collect free- and reduced-price lunch information from qualified families. If a school intends to
participate in the Community Eligibility Provision, describe the methodology the school will use to
determine eligibility.

BEAM Academy’s governing board recognizes the connection between good nutrition and student

academic performance. The school will provide for student access to high quality breakfast and lunch for

its students. The school will participate in the National School Lunch Program and provide high quality

meals which are compliant with United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) standards. The school’s

budget provides for a child nutrition coordinator whom will be responsible to the day-to-day operations of

program. The school will establish procurement policies and procedures, and set up meal plans, serving

guidelines, and address all health and safety issues related to food preparation, storage, serving, and

sanitation. The child nutrition coordinator will assure the school’s operation meets all local, state, and

federal requirements. The school will initially collect family income data from student’s parents to

determine whether the student quali�es for free or reduced price lunch. If the school reaches the

required 40 percent threshold, the school will participate in the Community Eligibility Provision (CEP)

program and will use the Direct Certi�cation process to determine eligibility.   

11.3. Civil Liability and Insurance
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The Nonpro�t shall name the SBE as an Additional Named Insured to their liability coverage for operation of a

charter school while obtaining and maintaining insurance at a minimum in the following amounts:

1. Errors and Omissions: one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence;
2. General Liability: one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence;
3. Property Insurance: For owned building and contents, including boiler and machinery coverage, if owned;
4. Crime Coverage: no less than two hundred �fty thousand dollars ($250,000) to cover employee theft and
dishonesty;
5. Automobile Liability: one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and
6. Workers' Compensation: as speci�ed by Chapter 97 of NC General Statute, Workers' Compensation Law

Q140. Complete the attached table, indicating the amount of each type of coverage as outlined in a quote
obtained from an insurance provider.

The insurance coverage template is attached. The total insurance premium of $12,796.00 is included in

the budget.

Q141. Attach Appendix L: Insurance Quotes
The applicant must provide a quote from an insurance provider as part of this application (as Appendix

L) to demonstrate the levels of insurance coverage and projected cost. 

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5

11.4. Health and Safety Requirements
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All public charter schools are required to follow the regulations regarding health and safety as stated in G.S.

115C 218.75.

Q142. 
We, the Board members will develop a written safety plan and policies to be shared with staff, parents and
students and be available upon inspectionfrom the Department of Public Instruction and local Health
Departments.
The Board Chair must sign this question.
Signature

Q143. Start-Up PlanProvide a detailed start-up plan for the proposed school, specifying tasks, timelines,
and responsible individuals (including compensation for those individuals, if applicable).

BEAM Academy will submit this application, participate in the charter school interview, and upon initial

approval the board will schedule governance strengthening exercises, and participate in the board

training provided by the O�ce of Charter Schools for the planning year. Each month the board will review

and adopt policies and procedures for the operations of the school. In October, the board will announce

that open enrollment will being on January 15 and remain open for a period of 30 days and be �owed by a

lottery. The board will promote the open enrollment thru free public service announcements, and news

coverage from the local media. The school will also hold several community forums to promote student

enrollment. The contracted management company and selected volunteers will provide sta� support for

start-up activities. In March, the school will begin advertising sta� positions at the school, including

teachers, administrators, clerical support, and other positions. In April and May, a selected board

committee in coordination with the management company assignee will complete application reviews, an

enter sta� employment agreements. There will be two weeks (10 full days) of professional development

for all teachers and instructional sta� help in July or August, prior to the arrival of students.
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           In April and May, an appointed board committee and the management company assignee will begin

selecting furnishings, entering agreements for equipment and technology, and assemble everything the

school will need to operate on day one. The team will work with the contractors and landlord to assure

the facility will be ready with an educational certi�cate of occupancy by July 1. The board chair and the

management company assignee will work together to assure the school completes all its ready-to-open

requirements by May 30 and be able to present the educational certi�cate to occupancy during the �rst

week of July.

           The school will be processing student registrations after completion of open enrollment and

lottery. The school will establish itself in the NC EDDIE system during the �rst week in July. The school will

conduct open houses and parent orientation in August (at least two events). On the �rst day of school, a

contingent of parent volunteers with be on standby.

Q144. Describe what the board anticipates will be the challenges of starting a new school and how it
expects to address these challenges. Submit a Start-up (Year 0) Budget as Appendix O, if applicable.

BEAM Academy anticipates the biggest challenges will be student recruitment during the open enrollment

period, hiring sta�, and getting the facility in place. We expect to address these challenges by a sustained

and diligent e�ort. Addressing these issues are part of the governing board’s reasoning for engaging an

experienced management company early in the process.

11.5. Facility

Q145. What is your plan to obtain a building? Identify specific steps the board will take to acquire a facility
and obtain the Educational Certificate of Occupancy. Present a timeline with reasonable assumptions for
facility selection, requisition, state fire marshal and health inspections, and occupation
Note that the SBE may approve a charter school prior to the school's obtaining a facility; however, students
may not attend school and no funds will be allocated until the school has obtained a valid Certificate of
Occupancy for Educational use to the Office of Charter Schools

The governing board has identi�ed a site for the proposed school near Bladen County Community

College. The property is located at 1741 East Arcadia Road. The board is completing an arrangement for a

Triple Net Lease for an approximately 6-acre site with a 15,000 SF of space available for the school. We

have identi�ed a contractor and the management company is working them to secure the space for the

school. We anticipate that once preliminary approval of the charter for the school is obtained, we can

make �rm commitments and space will be ready with completed �re, health, safety inspection, and

educational certi�cate of occupancy on or before July 1, 2022.
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Q146. Describe the school’s facility needs based on the educational program and projected enrollment,
including: number of classrooms, square footage per classroom, classroom types, common areas, overall
square footage, and amenities. Discuss both short-term and long-term facility plans. Demonstrate that the
estimate included in your budget is reasonable.

The completed facility will contain eleven classrooms with each at 800 SF for a total of 8,800 SF. The facility

will contain 6,200 additional square feet of space for a multipurpose room, teacher workroom, storage

space, and miscellaneous other space. The sight will have a dedicated indoor area of approximately 1,000

SF for hydroponics. The outdoor area contains adequate space for a community garden and for our

agricultural lab space. The site contains expansion capacity and will accommodate our full program

expansion over 5 years. We can have the facility ready for occupancy by July 1, 2022, and will have the

ability to at modular space at a reasonable cost in subsequent years on the site.

Q147. Describe school facility needs, including: science labs, art room, computer labs, library/media center,
performance/dance room, gymnasium and athletic facilities, auditorium, main office and satellite offices,
work room/copy room, supplies/storage, teacher work rooms, and other spaces

Our space needs will be met in the site we have tentative agreements on located at 1741 East Arcadia

Road in Bladen County. This space will meet our needs as discussed in the answer to the previous

question. It gives us 11 classroom space of 800 SF for our initial 10 classrooms plus 1 exceptional

children’s classroom space. It gives us program space for the hydroponic indoor garden and plenty of

outdoor space for the community garden and student agricultural lab. The site contains adequate

expansion space for subsequent years of operations.

Q148. What is the breakdown of cost per square foot for the proposed facility? Outline how this cost is
comparable to the commercial and educational spaces for the proposed school location

The cost breakdown is about $6.00 per square foot for the proposed facility. Our research shows that a

similar space in the area in a range from $3.99 per SF to $17.00 per SF. Any space in the area will require

adaption since any other space we encountered will require modi�cation. The landlord will make the

modi�cation and we will pay a �at triple net lease fee of $6,000 per month which is included in our

budget.

Q149. Facility Contingency Plan: Describe the method of finding a facility if the one the board has identified
will not be ready by the time the public charter school will be opening. Include information regarding the
immediate spatial needs of the school and identify any programs that will not be immediately offered
because a permanent facility has yet to open

We have developed a relationship with a commercial realtor which has already identi�ed multiple facilities

which can be available for the school. We have identi�ed two contingent facilities which can be available if

our current proposed facility becomes unavailable. Each of these facilities can accommodate all our

proposed programs and will not have a signi�cantly di�erent cost impact on our budget.
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Q150. Describe the board’s capacity and experience in facilities acquisition and management, including
managing build-out and/or renovations, as applicable.

Each of our facilities scenarios involves the landlord making and renovations or modi�cations to the

facilities. We will pay the �at triple net lease rate and be responsible after the facility is turned over to us.

Our contracted management company has signi�cant experience with facilities acquisition and

management, and in managing build-out and renovations. The board relies upon our management

company to address this issue. The board itself does have experienced individuals with a wide range of

skill which can directly address this issue if the needed.
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12. Financial Plan

Q151. I certify that this subsection is entirely original and has not been copied, pasted, or otherwise
reproduced from any other application.

Q152. Explanation (optional):
There may be similarities with previously submitted applications by Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC.

12.1. Charter School Budget

Q153. If applicable, attach Appendix M: Revenue Assurances.Assurances are needed to confirm the
commitment of any additional sources of revenue.

There are no additional resources committed.

Q154. Attach Appendix N: Proposed Budget for Year 1 through Year 5
Click "Resources" (to the right of this text) to access and download the Budget Template.

 File Type: pdf, image, excel, word, text  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 5

12.2. Budget Narrative

Q155. How was the student enrollment number projected? 
The student enrollment project for the school’s �rst year of operations is 132. Several factors were taken

into consideration in making the projections for years one thru �ve. First, we considered the potential

need for the school and potential applicant pool within a 50-mile radius or approximately 1 hour bus ride
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to the school location. Next, we considered the limitations on startup resources and the feasibility of

providing facilities and bus transportation.  

Q156. Provide an explanation as to why you believe there is a demand for the school that will meet this
enrollment projection

Our research indicates that parents of educationally disadvantaged students have all but given up on

having a school choice option which meets the needs of their students. Our data indicates that more than

a su�cient number of parents will select BEAM Academy as a school choice for their students.  

Q157. Provide the break-even point of student enrollment
                              BEAM Academy break-even point for its �rst year of operations is 110 students. 

Q158. Discuss the school's contingency plan to meet financial needs if anticipated revenues are not
received or are lower than estimated

                 BEAM Academy governing board will amend its budget or use a contingency budget is

anticipated revenues are less than estimated. Contingency budgeting involves establishing priorities of

what can be cut �rst and establishing an order to timely reduce expenditures to assure the school

operates within the available resources and does not run a de�cit. The plan also considers cash �ow

issues such as timing of in�ows and out�ows of cash. The board will set priorities to �rst assure the

integrity of programs which could impact student outcomes. The school will not rely on revenues which

are not committed and have a reasonable expectation of being received. The school’s core program will

operate from state and local funds. Federal funds are considered supplemental and will not supplant state

and local funds. 

Q159. Does the budget rely on sources of funds other than state, county, and federal (e.g., loans,
donations, etc.)? If so, please provide the source and amount. Also, describe any committed contributions
and in-kind donations of goods or services to be received by the charter school that will assist in evaluating
the financial viability of the school. Clearly indicate between those grants or in-kind donations which have
already been firmly committed and those the board is planning to pursue. Be sure that the appropriate
assurances documentation is provided in the appendices.

                     BEAM Academy budget does not rely upon sources of funds other than state, county, and

federal funds. If any other funding commitments arise, the school will not rely upon said funds without a

written commitment and without verifying the reliability of the sources.

Q160. Provide the student to teacher ratio that the budget is built on
BEAM Academy budget was built upon a student to teacher ratio of 22 to 1.  The core teacher to student

ratio does not include specials courses or other instruction which may not involve the core teacher. The

core teacher ratio does not include or account for the impact of planning time or other times the core
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teacher is not with his/her class. The school recognizes the student to core teacher ratio as a valuable but

limited metric in planning high quality educational programs.  

Q161. Describe the board’s individual and collective qualifications and capacity for implementing the
financial plan successfully

BEAM Academy governing board recognizes its limitations and capacity in the area of �nancial

planning. Therefore, the governing board has worked to assure it engages individuals with background,

training, and experience which can provide it reliable expertise, including the management company.  

Q162. Describe how one or more high needs students with disabilities might affect the budget and your
plan to meet student needs that might be more than anticipated

BEAM Academy governing board recognizes that one or more high needs students with disabilities can

have a substantial budget impact on a charter school. The governing board further recognizes students’

rights to attend the charter school and the legal requirements to provide services. The governing board

plans to be fully prepared to meet the needs of all students by recognizing when and how to apply for

resources needed to meet the needs of its students, such as PRC 029 funds or PRC 118 for autistic student

support. The school will also be prepared to seek reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and Private

Insurance for reimbursable services to high needs students. The governing board recognizes the need to

plan ahead and to fully understand the operating environment and resources which may be

available. BEAM Academy will remain full prepared to address the needs of all students which are

accepted thru the lottery and to provide FAPE.  

Q163. If there is a plan to outsource any or all financial management areas such as payroll, benefits, audits,
fundraising, accounting, etc., provide a statement on how the vendors will be selected and how the board
will oversee their activities to ensure fidelity and compliance. 

BEAM Academy has entered into a management contract with Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC which will

provide �nancial management services for the school including payroll, bene�ts administration, and

accounting services. The board will separately contract a Local Government Commission approved

Independent Certi�ed Public Accountant to conduct the annual single audit. In all case, the school will

identify and investigate at least three vendors and will select the best candidate which can meet the needs

of the school. The board will consider price, quality, and experience in the matrix use to select

vendors. The governing board will adopt procurement policies and procedures. 

Q164. Does the school intend to contract for services such as student accounting and financial services,
exceptional children instructional support, custodial etc. Describe the criteria and procedures for the
selection of contractors and large purchases

                       BEAM Academy will adopt and publish procurement policies and procedures which govern

selection of vendors with appropriate threshold amounts for informal purchasing, obtaining three quotes,

and a formal bid process.
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Q165. Explain how the budget aligns with the school's mission, curricular offerings, transportation plans,
and facility needs

                        BEAM Academy budget is designed to assure the school can meet its mission statement. The

budget provides su�cient funding to meet the school’s curricular o�erings, its transportation plan, and

provide for the school’s facility needs. The budget is aligned to the stated elements by providing su�cient

resources to assure that said items can be carried out.

Q166. What percentage of expenditures will be the school's goal for a general fund balance? Describe how
the school will develop the fund balance.

                          BEAM Academy governing board’s general fund balance goals is 3 to 8 percent of

revenue. The school anticipates that general fund balance goals will be tied to student enrollment and the

marginal cost of the school’s operations. 

Q167. Provide a description of proposed financing structure. Include financing of facilities, other asset
financing and leases

BEAM Academy governing board will enter a �nancing lease for its facilities, furnishing, and equipment

(including student computers). The school will also maintain a line of credit to assure the school meets its

cash �ow needs. The contracted management company is committed to providing the school with

$50,000.00 in start-up capital.  

Q168. Will the school have assets from other sources (e.g. building, furniture, chairs, computers, etc.)? If
yes, please provide a list. Note which are secured and which are anticipated, and include evidence of
commitment for any assets on which the school's core operation depends. 

BEAM Academy governing board has entered a management contract with Torchlight Academy Schools,

LLC. The management company has committed $50,000.00 for start-up capital.  

12.3. Financial Compliance

Q169. How will the school ensure adequate internal controls, including segregation of duties, safeguarding
of assets, accurate and adequate recording keeping? 

BEAM Academy governing board will adopt and implement Internal Control Policies and Procedures which

comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).

Q170. Provide any known or possible related party transactions (relationship, description of transaction
and estimated dollars involved)

                  None

Q171. Provide the name of the firm approved by the NC Local Government Commission (LGC) that will
conduct the audit. Include the complete mailing address, telephone number and fax number. If a firm has
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yet to be identified, please list the firms the board has investigated

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA, 105 S. city Street, Kings Mountain, NC 28086. Telephone: (704) 739-0771; Fax

(704) 739-6122.
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13. Other Forms

Q172. Sign the attached Charter School Required Signature Certification document and upload it as a PDF
or image file.

 File Type: pdf, image  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 1

Q173. Sign the attached Contracting Certification Form document and upload it as a PDF or image file.
 File Type: pdf, image  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 1
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14. Third-party Application Preparation

Q174. Was this application prepared with the assistance of a third-party person or group?

Q175. Give the name of the third-party person or group:
Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC

Q176. Fees provided to the third-party person or group:
None. See: Management Agreement
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15. Application Fee

Pursuant to G.S. 115C-218.1(c) the charter school applicant must submit a $1000 application fee to the O�ce

of Charter Schools. The applicant must submit their application fee by July 24, 2020 at 5:00 pm EST for Fast

Track and Accelerated applications, and July 24, 2020 at 5:00 pm EST for traditional timeline applications.

Payments will be accepted in the form of a certi�ed check. Cash is not accepted.

Q177. *Application Note: The applicant must mail the certified check along with the Application Fee
Payment Form before or on the due date of July 24, 2020 at 5:00 pm EST for Fast Track and Accelerated
applicants, and July 24, 2020 at 5:00 pm EST for traditional timeline applicants. Failure to submit
payment by the stipulated timeline to the Office of Charter Schools will deem the application incomplete.
Payments should be made payable to North Carolina Department of Public Instruction:
North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

Office of Charter Schools

6307 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-6307
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16. Signature page

Q178. Fill out the attached resource and get it signed and notarized. Then upload as a PDF or image file.
 File Type: pdf, image  Max File Size: 30  Total Files Count: 1

Q179. Complete

* Q180. Outline the board's procedures for hiring and dismissing school personnel, including conducting
criminal background checks.

The school leader may terminate an employee subject to appeal to the Board of Directors. All employees

are required to complete a criminal background check immediately upon hiring. The school leader may be

dismissed in the discretion of the Board.
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B.E.A.M. ACADEMY   2021-2022 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

(Draft) [1025 hrs of Instruction] (School Hours  7:00 a.m. to 3:35 p.m)

    AUGUST 2021       DECEMBER 2021      APRIL 2022

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

 SEPTEMBER 2021       JANUARY 2022        MAY 2022

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31

30 31

  OCTOBER 2021        FEBRUARY 2022        JUNE 2022

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 27 28 26 27 28 29 30

31

 NOVEMBER 2021      MARCH 2022

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S First and Last Day of School

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 Holidays (No School)

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Teacher Work Days (No School)

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Testing and Assessment

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Vacation

28 29 30 27 28 29 30 31 End of Grading Period

Report Card Day

_____

                                     



B.E.A.M. ACADEMY 

 

DAILY/WEEKLY SCHEDULE (K-8) 
 

Time Monday Tuesday 
 

Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:00 a.m. Arrival Arrival Arrival Arrival Arrival 

7:00-7:20 a.m. Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast 

7:20-7:45 a.m. Morning Meeting Morning Meeting Morning Meeting Morning Meeting Morning Meeting 

7:45-9:15 a.m. Reading/ELA Reading/ELA Reading/ELA Reading/ELA Reading/ELA 

9:15-10:15 a.m. Mathematics Mathematics Mathematics Mathematics Mathematics 

10:15-11:15 a.m. Science Science Science Science Science 

11:15-11-45 a.m. Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies 

11:45-12:15 p.m. Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch 

12:15-12:45 p.m. Recess Recess Recess Recess Recess 

12:45-1:45 p.m. Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project 

1:45-2:45 p.m. Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project 

2:45-3:30 p.m. Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project Agricultural Project 

3:35 p.m. Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal 

 
*Agricultural Project-All times blocked under Agricultural Project is used for Project-Based Learning and implementation of the National 
Agricultural Literacy Curriculum.  Other curriculum standards are also integrated into project-based learning such as Healthful Living, PE, and 
other  N.C. Essential Standards. 



 

 

BEAM ACADEMY 

ORGANIZATIONS CHART 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

LEAD ADMINISTRATOR/PRINCIPAL 

Instructional Leader 

Teachers & Instructional Staff 

Transportation Contractor 

Child Nutrition Contractor  

Facilities Maintenance/ 

Custodial Contractor 

School Financial Officer 

Educational Services Provider 

(Business Office) 



Charter School Board Member Information Form 
 
Note: ​ To be completed individually by each proposed founding charter school board member. 
All forms must be signed by hand. 
  
Serving on a public charter school board is a position of public trust and as a board member of a 
North Carolina public charter school; you are responsible for ensuring the quality of the school’s 
entire program, competent stewardship of public funds, and the school’s fulfillment of its public 
obligations and all terms of its charter.  
 
As part of the application for a new charter school, the State Board of Education requests that 
each prospective board member respond individually to this questionnaire.  Where narrative 
responses are required, brief responses are sufficient.  
 
The purpose of this questionnaire is twofold: 1) to give application reviewers a clearer 
introduction to the applicant team behind each school proposal in advance of the applicant 
interview, in order to be better prepared for the interview; and 2) to encourage board members to 
reflect individually as well as collectively on their common mission, purposes, and obligations at 
the earliest stage of school development.  
 
Background  
1. Name of charter school on whose Board of Directors you intend to serve: ​ BEAM 

Academy     
 
2. Full name: Lillian Lacewell Graham​      
 
Home Address: ​ 1028 Graham Road Riegelwood, NC 28456     
Business Name and Address: 1472 East Arcadia Road Riegelwood, NC ​      
Telephone No.:  910-655-0953 ​      
E-mail address: ​Llgraham43@gmail.com     
 
3. Brief educational and employment history.  
      Graduated--East Arcadia High School-1961 
                      --North Carolina A & T-1965 
      Worked as an educator for 47 years in the counties of Bladen and Columbus. 

  
   ​     
4. Have you previously served on a board of a school district, another charter school, a 

non-public school or any not-for-profit corporation?  
 

No:  ☐ Yes:    X 
 
       East Arcadia Town Council for thirty plus years.  
 



5. How were you recruited to join this Board of Directors? Why do you wish to serve on the 
board of the proposed charter school? I was recruited by the chairman because he knew part 
of my educational qualification and my love of learning. We talked often about education 
and the decline of education in our community. I love this area. One of my greatest joys was 
educating children in the classroom of this area. 

      
 
6. What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?  
       As board members, we will have the responsibility of overseeing the total operation of the  
       school. We will be responsible for the finances, community involvement, setting policies 
and 
       procedures, etc. 
      
 
7. Describe any previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s 

board (e.g., other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature, 
explain why you have the capability to be an effective board member. I have served on the 
town board, Bladen County Housing Board, Bladen County Library, Bladen County Hospital 
Board, etc. 

      
 
8. Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board. I worked 

for twenty-five years as a classroom teacher. I worked for over twenty years as an 
administrator running schools, managing funds, disciplining children and supervising 
teachers. I have been involved in planning summer science and math institutes. I also helped 
organize free after school tutoring program. One year, I organized an ran a free summer 
school program for students grades K-12. all teachers were certified and worked without pay. 

      
 
School Mission and Program  
 

1. What is your understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs?  
       We will provide a community-based school with Academic Excellence and Agricultural 

Mastery for all students. 
 

2. What is your understanding of the school’s proposed educational program?  
(a) ”BEAM” - Building Excellence and Agricultural Mastery 
(b) Project and Activity based Learning 
(c) We will master the NC Standard Course of study with 80% efficiency. 
(d) the school will serve students in grades K-12. 
(e) This school with be student centered with parents and students activity involved in 

agricultural projects to prepare them for local jobs and/or college. 
 

3. What do you believe to be the characteristics of a successful school?  



(A) this school should have a welcoming atmosphere with happy students actively 
involved in Ag projects that involve all fields of education. 

(B) this school should set measurable goals, using the standard course of study as a 
guide. 

(C) A successful school is one that involves parents, and the community, students, 
and teachers in all areas of school life/ 

      
 

4. How will you know that the school is succeeding (or not) in its mission?  
        (a) We have reached SMART goals that have been met. 
              (b) reports from administrators 
              (c)   students are excitedly planning and completing projects and activities. 
 
Governance  
 

1. Describe the role that the board will play in the school’s operation.  
       We will help create policies for the school that will ensure school integrity, community 

involvement, student safety, etc. We will be the final decision-makers. 
 

2. How will you know if the school is successful at the end of the first year of operation?  
       Administrator reports that are verified, SMART Goals that are met, surveys, student 

achievement, etc. 
 

3. How will you know at the end of five years of the schools is successful?  
       The goals are continuously met, students and parents are happy, enrollment increases, 

and all supported by the data.  
 

4. What specific steps do you think the charter school board will need to take to ensure that 
the school is successful?  

       Parental involvement attend some activities, collaborate with board members, attend 
workshops, be visible and available. 

 
5. How would you handle a situation in which you believe one or more members of the 

school’s board were acting unethically or not in the best interests of the school?  
       We must follow our own policies as well as policies set by the state of N.C. for charter 

school. If we know something is wrong we must police ourselves. If that does not work, 
reports must be made to higher authority. 

 
*Please include the following with your Information Form 

● a ​one page​ resume  
 
*If you responded within the application that disciplinary action has been taken against any past 
or present professional licenses, provide a detailed response below outlining the disciplinary 
action taken and the license validity. ​Click or tap here to enter text. 
 



Certification 
I, Lillian Lacewell Graham, certify to the best of my knowledge and ability that the information I 
am providing to the North Carolina State Board of Education as a prospective board member for 
BEAM Academy Charter School is true and correct in every respect.  

Signature: Date: 
7/15/2020  ;f/i�Td/�an� 



Charter School Board Member Information Form 

Note: To be completed individually by each proposed founding charter school board member.  
All forms must be signed by hand. 
  
Serving on a public charter school board is a position of public trust and as a board member of a 
North Carolina public charter school; you are responsible for ensuring the quality of the school’s 
entire program, competent stewardship of public funds, and the school’s fulfillment of its public 
obligations and all terms of its charter.  

As part of the application for a new charter school, the State Board of Education requests that 
each prospective board member respond individually to this questionnaire.  Where narrative 
responses are required, brief responses are sufficient.  

The purpose of this questionnaire is twofold: 1) to give application reviewers a clearer 
introduction to the applicant team behind each school proposal in advance of the applicant 
interview, in order to be better prepared for the interview; and 2) to encourage board members to 
reflect individually as well as collectively on their common mission, purposes, and obligations at 
the earliest stage of school development.  

Background  
1. Name of charter school on whose Board of Directors you intend to serve: Beam Acadamy   

   

2. Full name:      Tyrone Tucker 

Home Address:     602 Wright Street Wilmington, NC 28401 
Business Name and Address:    NA   
Telephone No.:      910 228 7562 
E-mail address:      tiemuhammad@aol.com 

3. Brief educational and employment history.  Self Employed Barber and Commercial Truck 
Driver. High School, Barber School. Commercial Truck Driver School. 

         
4. Have you previously served on a board of a school district, another charter school, a non-

public school or any not-for-profit corporation?  

No:   NO Yes:         

• How were you recruited to join this Board of Directors? Why do you wish to serve on 
the board of the proposed charter school?  As a founder of this potential charter 
school I believe that I should be on the Board of Directors to help in the guidance 



and vision for its development and to ensure that students in Bladen County 
have access to quality education and help them use the resources that Bladen 
County residency offers. 

5. What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?
To meet on a regular basis and make sure that the policies and laws that affect the
school are complied with, to provided oversight and governance, policies and deal with
issues of budgeting and overall trajectory of the school.

6. Describe any previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s
board (e.g., other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature,
explain why you have the capability to be an effective board member.

I am facilitator and member of several community based organizations that operate 
for the good of the community.   The LOC for JOE 2015-2018,  The Ministerial Alliance of 
Wilmington NC, Ministry of Agriculture, Education Committee of the Community Action 
Group.  Muhammad Home School Network, Board Member, 1996-2002. 

7. Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board. As a
facilitator for many of the above groups, I understand and have decades of experience
working with a team of people for the benefit of the community.  I have provided
direction, curriculum choice and support for the homeschooling of my own children.   I
now serve on the Education Committee of the Community Action Group in Wilmington
NC and have made requests and suggestions to the New Hanover County School Board
on behalf of citizens and parents of the area.  I have established local, regional and
national connections to educators and agriculturalists who are interested in making
sure that BEAM students are able to take advantage of the field of agriculture, from
rural to urban farming.  I have been a resident of the Cape Fear Region since 1993 with
maternal roots to Bladen County reaching back as far as the mid 1800s.   I am
committed to making sure that the families that reside here have access to quality
education and choice.

School Mission and Program  

1. What is your understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs?

That BEAM is committed to excellence in all areas with emphasis on reading, math, science 
with hands on learning and activities in agriculture. 

2. What is your understanding of the school’s proposed educational program?
That BEAM will use the NC Standard Course of Study and National Agriculture Literacy 
Program along with Active based learning methods.  The school will serve students from 



several counties, many of whom are black and Hispanic students who have families that  
are historically and currently involved in agriculture and farming. 

3. What do you believe to be the characteristics of a successful school? High moral among
students and staff, high enrollment, high teacher retention, teachers and staff that
reflect the student population, qualified and passionate teachers that have a strong
support system, a strong PTO and strong community involvement mechanism.

4. How will you know that the school is succeeding (or not) in its mission?
Achievement assessments for students, teachers, staff and comparison

to data that reflects the comparable schools and communities on a local and
statewide and then national basis.

Governance

1. Describe the role that the board will play in the school’s operation.
The board will provide oversight, direction, ensure that budgeting, and policies are set and 
complied with. 

2. How will you know if the school is successful at the end of the first year of operation?
BEAM will review surveys, reviews and input from it’s Lead

Administrator, refer to statistics about student performance and
achievement.

3. How will you know at the end of five years of the schools is successful?
The Board will continue to review the statistics and performance surveys, and adjust each 
year to include other data as the school grows. 

4. What specific steps do you think the charter school board will need to take to ensure that
the school is successful? We need to survey the community to determine the
educational needs of the residents, lay out a plan for meeting those needs,
demonstrate that this board can deliver and get the community on board as well.
The steps involve, marketing, Recruitment of qualified personnel for the board,
administrators and teachers, securing of a building and location that meets BEAM’s
needs, set forth budgeting and finance and determine policies.   We need quality
educators, accountability and ethics on the part of the entire school staff.

5. How would you handle a situation in which you believe one or more members of the
school’s board were acting unethically or not in the best interests of the school?



     That board member would voluntarily exclude themselves from 
discussion or voting on that issue and the policies of conflict resolution 
would be used to address the situation. 

*Please include the following with your Information Form
• a one page resume

*If you responded within the application that disciplinary action has been taken against any past
or present professional licenses, provide a detailed response below outlining the disciplinary
action taken and the license validity. Click or tap here to enter text.

Certification  
I, ________________________________________, certify to the best of my knowledge and
ability that the information I am providing to the North Carolina State Board of Education as a 
prospective board member for ________________________ Charter School is true and 
correct in every respect.  

Signature 
Date 7/11/20

Tyrone Tucker

BEAM Academy
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Charter School Board Member Information Form 

Note: To be completed individually by each proposed founding charter school board member.  
All forms must be signed by hand. 

Serving on a public charter school board is a position of public trust and as a board member of a 
North Carolina public charter school; you are responsible for ensuring the quality of the school’s 
entire program, competent stewardship of public funds, and the school’s fulfillment of its public 
obligations and all terms of its charter.  

As part of the application for a new charter school, the State Board of Education requests that 
each prospective board member respond individually to this questionnaire.  Where narrative 
responses are required, brief responses are sufficient.  

The purpose of this questionnaire is twofold: 1) to give application reviewers a clearer 
introduction to the applicant team behind each school proposal in advance of the applicant 
interview, in order to be better prepared for the interview; and 2) to encourage board members to 
reflect individually as well as collectively on their common mission, purposes, and obligations at 
the earliest stage of school development.  

Background 
1. Name of charter school on whose Board of Directors you intend to serve:

BEAM Academy
2. Full name:

Edna Elise Lonon 
Home Address:  602 Wright Street, Wilmington NC 28401    
Business Name and Address:      NA 
Telephone No.:      910 228 8551 
E-mail address:      seabreezelise@hotmail.com 

3. Brief educational and employment history.   BA - WSSU - 1988 Mass Communications,
MA -incomplete UMCP - Radio-TV-Film 1989-1991, Employment includes - Substitute
Teaching, PG County Maryland, Washington DC, New Hanover County, GED
Instructor for CFCC, Home School Educator, Tutor,  Journalist, Newspaper Editor,
Copy Editor.

4. Have you previously served on a board of a school district, another charter school, a non-
public school or any not-for-profit corporation?

No:   Yes:        YES 



5. How were you recruited to join this Board of Directors? Why do you wish to serve on the
board of the proposed charter school?  I was recruited by Tyrone Tucker, based on the
concern I have for education choices in this region.  I believe education is the life of any
community and to have little or no educational choices is disheartening and almost a
death blow to the area.  The families of Bladen County have an intense and rapidly
growing need for education choice and quality educational environment, in particular,
one that links the students not only to the community but also to future economic
opportunities in agribusiness which is also increasingly needed.

6. What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?
That the board members works together for the benefit of the school, attend meetings

and trainings as decided by the board, ensure compliance with school policies and laws, 
and make decisions regarding curriculum, budgetingand how the school operates. I believe 
we have a responsibility to get the community involved in the successful integration of the 
school into the daily concerns of the citizens and provide a stable, thriving and progressive 
infrastructure so that the students, staff and teachers have the ability to concentrate on 
their goals and daily operations. 

7. Describe any previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s
board (e.g., other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature,
explain why you have the capability to be an effective board member.

I have worked on the NHRMC Community Committee as a board member,  and the 1898 
Commission in Wilmington NC, board member, Muhammad Homeschool Network, board 
member, teacher, Northside Community Center Helping Families & Children, board 
member. 

8. Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board.
I have homeschooled 4 students, up to grades 5, 6 and 12 and understand the 

importance of curriculum, trajectory of students toward their educational needs, and the 
importance of providing a solid base so that teachers, staff and students can concentrate on 
their daily goals.  As a GED instructor for CFCC, this base was made even more clear for 
me as we successfully led the highest number of students to their GED diploma that the 
program had ever, and since enjoyed.  This was, in my opinion, because of the network 
provided for the teaching staff and students that we were free to concentrate on their daily 
interactions with the students and not other responsibilities. I provided clerical support and 
effectively moved as an intern for a former New Hanover County School Board for 9 years, 
and assisted in the preparation for a congressional presentation on education in 
Washington DC and saw how important the policies that were set affected the teachers, 
staff, students and overall climate in which education was perceived and projected.  I have 
a good working knowledge of the lower Cape Fear region as a native to Wilmington, NC 
and a soon to be resident of Bladen County.  It is my intense desire to ensure that the 
underserved students in the area have their educational needs met.     



School Mission and Program  

1. What is your understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs? That BEAM is
to be a school dedicated to fostering excellence in its students and staff.  BEAM will
provide an agricultural component as active based learning, which also intensifies
the students connection to the community and lays a base for their potential
continued residency and contribution to the area as productive, and participatory
citizens.  BEAM is also committed to excellence in all areas for all of its students

2. What is your understanding of the school’s proposed educational program?
BEAM will use the NC Standard Course of  Study,  the National Agricultural Literacy 
Program, active based learning and community involvement to make sure our students are 
not only successful, but completely enthused about the about the acquisition of knowledge 
and how applying that knowledge can meet their personal goals and service the community 
of which they are a part.  The hands-on component will be vital and will include school 
garden, home garden, access to urban garden and techniques, the use of sciences toward 
that end. 

3. What do you believe to be the characteristics of a successful school?
A school that has a high tone level, meeting and exceeding academic standards. One with a 
bright, orderly and vibrant  atmosphere, that develops the gifts, skills and talents of the 
students, staff and administrators. A school, fosters strong parent-teacher-student 
relationships, safety and provides various means of academic engagement of the students.  
The successful school is one that the community is proud of because of it’s impact on the 
community, and the individual and collective growth of the students that attend. 

4. How will you know that the school is succeeding (or not) in its mission? SMART goals
to be implemented.  By reviewing academic scores, human resource records
(retainment of teachers and staff, employee assessments). Also, implementing
measurable methods of achievement and reviewing regularly, assessing the
enrollment list or pre-enrollment list, providing feedback methods for students and
parents and staff, reviewing attendance s of teachers and students,  community
involvement and tracking activities implemented and initiated by the students and
staff.

Governance  

1. Describe the role that the board will play in the school’s operation.



     The Board makes decisions that affect the operation of the school by creating 
policies, ensure that the community is engaged and that the school is run as required 
by the state.

2. How will you know if the school is successful at the end of the first year of operation?

Setting SMART goals and reviewing, correcting and improving as we move
periodically throughout the year.  Looking at student attendance, scores, retention, 
suspension rates, project participation, teacher retention, waiting lists for enrollment, 
community projects and involvement by surveys and other methods of compiling data such 
as feedback forms, parent teacher association participation, initiative taken by students 
and staff to address issues that concern them. 

3. How will you know at the end of five years of the schools is successful?   The use of
SMART goals will be used here again.  Compilation of the yearly data and
comparison with comparable communities and schools, in addition to continually
finding proven methods of assessment that fits the needs of the school’s assessment
process.  We should use data and be aggressive about older and newer ways to
obtain that data.

4. What specific steps do you think the charter school board will need to take to ensure that
the school is successful?

We need to have a good working knowledge of our role and be willing to get any training 
ad education that facilitates our success as a board that meets its objectives.  We need to 
use SMART for the assessment of our board.  We need to be unified in our initial approach 
and debut to the community and be able to prepare the community for the school: present 
the need for the charter school, demonstrate or get their trust that this board can provide 
the school needed, present the need and reward for agricultural focus, provide any needed 
recommendations for great teachers, seek out black male teachers in particular, ensure that 
it is financially stable, stack enrollment quickly, and lay a strong plan for agricultural 
excellence, by network with local farmers, stores, community groups and potential 
community mentors, interns, etc. 

5. How would you handle a situation in which you believe one or more members of the
school’s board were acting unethically or not in the best interests of the school?

The Confict of Interest Policy would be followed and the board
member in question would voluntarily not vote on or discuss that issue.  The
policies regarding the circumstances should be clearly defined, reviewed
and then those policies and the circumstances compared.  Once compared,
the board members must deal objectively and ethically and compliance with
the laws and governing policies.



*Please include the following with your Information Form
• a one page resume

*If you responded within the application that disciplinary action has been taken against any past
or present professional licenses, provide a detailed response below outlining the disciplinary
action taken and the license validity. Click or tap here to enter text.

Certification  
I, ________________________________________, certify to the best of my knowledge and 
ability that the information I am providing to the North Carolina State Board of Education as a 
prospective board member for ________________________ Charter School is true and correct
in every respect.  

Signature 
Date 

�etc K._€/7A.___,

Elise Lonon

BEAM Academy

7/17/20



Charter School Board Member Information Form 
 
Note: To be completed individually by each proposed founding charter school board member.  
All forms must be signed by hand. 
  
Serving on a public charter school board is a position of public trust and as a board member of a 
North Carolina public charter school; you are responsible for ensuring the quality of the school’s 
entire program, competent stewardship of public funds, and the school’s fulfillment of its public 
obligations and all terms of its charter.  
 
As part of the application for a new charter school, the State Board of Education requests that 
each prospective board member respond individually to this questionnaire.  Where narrative 
responses are required, brief responses are sufficient.  
 
The purpose of this questionnaire is twofold: 1) to give application reviewers a clearer 
introduction to the applicant team behind each school proposal in advance of the applicant 
interview, in order to be better prepared for the interview; and 2) to encourage board members to 
reflect individually as well as collectively on their common mission, purposes, and obligations at 
the earliest stage of school development.  
 
Background  
1. Name of charter school on whose Board of Directors you intend to serve: BEAM Academy 

 
2. Full name: Marjorie L. Graham 
 
Home Address: 534 Smith Road, Riegelwood, NC 28456 
Business Name and Address:       
Telephone No.: 910-612-0006 
E-mail address: marjoriedarius@bellsouth.net 
 
3. Brief educational and employment history.  
   BS in Special Education: Learning Disabilities 1982 from Winston-Salem State University, 

Winston-Salem, NC. I Retired from New Hanover County Schools with 34 years of teaching 
experience. I am currently employed by Bladen County School System as a Special Education 
Teacher since Oct. 2018. 

 
4. Have you previously served on a board of a school district, another charter school, a non-

public school or any not-for-profit corporation?  
 

No:  x   Yes:         
 
5. How were you recruited to join this Board of Directors? Why do you wish to serve on the 

board of the proposed charter school?  
I was recruited by the board chair, Tyrone Muhammad. I am very interested in seeing a 
charter school established in my community. This community is in danger of losing the only 



school that remains and this school only serves PreK-4th grade. Most of the resources have 
been taken away and our students are suffering educationally and socially as a result. This 
community has always taken pride in our school and the success stories that have come out 
of our small town. Having a charter school in the area could help our community to grow 
and provide the support and resources that our children need within the community.  

 
6. What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?  

Board members make sure that policies and procedures are followed. We are not there for 
the day to day operation within the school, but we try to ensure that the school is operating 
according to guidelines. 

 
7. Describe any previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s 

board (e.g., other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature, 
explain why you have the capability to be an effective board member.  
I do not have any prior experience, but I have worked in the school system for over thirty-
five years and I have talked to board members and served on committees with them. I have 
viewed the duties and responsibilities of board members. Finally, I believe in following rules 
and guidelines. 

 
8. Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board.  

I think my years of experience in education would be very helpful to the board and my 
knowledge of Special Education Law.  
 

School Mission and Program  
 

1. What is your understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs?  
My understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs is to provide a community-
rooted school that will ‘Build Excellence & Agricultural Mastery’ (BEAM) among all 
students.  

 
2. What is your understanding of the school’s proposed educational program?  

BEAM Academy’s vision is for all students to exude everyday excellence and engage in 
an agricultural curriculum that strengthens their abilities in math, reading, and science. 
We will use the NC Standard Course of Study as the curriculum standards as well as the 
National Agricultural Literacy Curriculum.  

 
3. What do you believe to be the characteristics of a successful school?  

A successful school needs to be organized, parents support the school and feel 
welcomed and informed. A successful school has a good leader and qualified staff 
members who believe in what they are doing.  
 

4. How will you know that the school is succeeding (or not) in its mission?  
We will know that the school is succeeding if the students are being successful and 
accomplishing the goals that have been established for them. 

 



Governance 

1. Describe the role that the board will play in the school’s operation.
The board will meet regularly with the school leader/principal and review established
indicators for school success. These will include budget, overall day to day operations,
and student achievement, etc.

2. How will you know if the school is successful at the end of the first year of operation?
We will know if the school is successful through parent, student, and teacher input,
financially, and through academic success. Protocol will be established for collecting
data on every aspect of the school. If parents and students want to come back for a
second year, this will be a huge indicator.

3. How will you know at the end of five years of the schools is successful?
If student achievement has shown consistent growth, if we have added additional
students each year, if we are able to operate within our budget, and if teachers are
consistent in their employment, these are all indicators of success.

4. What specific steps do you think the charter school board will need to take to ensure that
the school is successful?
As a board, we need to provide the necessary supports to the principal and staff,
consistently monitor indicators for growth, and be vigilant in our efforts to ensure that
policies and procedures are being adhered to.

5. How would you handle a situation in which you believe one or more members of the
school’s board were acting unethically or not in the best interests of the school?
I would call a board meeting to discuss any concerns and deal with them right away. The
longer you allow an issue or potential problem to continue, the bigger it becomes .

*Please include the following with your Information Form
• a one page resume

*If you responded within the application that disciplinary action has been taken against any past
or present professional licenses, provide a detailed response below outlining the disciplinary
action taken and the license validity. Click or tap here to enter text.

Certification  
I, _Marjorie L. Graham, certify to the best of my knowledge and ability that the information I am 
providing to the North Carolina State Board of Education as a prospective board member for 
_BEAM Academy Charter School is true and correct in every respect. 

Signature 

Date: 7/14/20 
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BYLAWS 

OF 

BEAM ACADEMY 
 

 

ARTICLE I  

INTRODUCTION; LEGAL STATUS 

 

 

Section 1: Name 

 
 The name of the non-profit corporation is BEAM ACADEMY, of Bertie County, duly 

authorized under the statutes of the State of North Carolina. 

 

Section 2: Principal Office 

 
 The Principle office of the Corporation is located in Bladen County, in the State of North 

Carolina. The street address of the corporation in Bladen County is: 

 

ARTICLE II – Purposes 

 

Section 1: Purposes 

 
The mission of BEAM ACADEMY is as follows: 

 

“To provide a community-rooted school that will Build Excellence and 
Agricultural Mastery (BEAM) among all students.” 

 

 

ARTICLE III - Board of Directors 

 

Section 1: Powers 

 
 The activities, affairs and business of the Corporation shall be conducted by or under the 

direction of the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 2: Number, Qualifications, Election, and Tenure 

 
a) The number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be no less than five (5) 

and no more than nine (9).  

b) A person needs to be at least eighteen (18) years old to be qualified as a Director.  Paid 

employees of the Corporation may not serve on the Board of Directors as voting 

Members.  

c) Any qualified person seeking to become a Director of the BEAM ACADEMY Board will 

submit an application including a resume and explanation of why he/she is seeking 

membership to the Board. When a vacancy or vacancies occur, either by death, 



 

 

resignations, and removal from office, end of term, tenure limit, and/or for any other 

reason, the remaining BEAM ACADEMY Board Members will review the applications 

submitted and elect the applicant(s) seeking to become a member of the BEAM 

ACADEMY Board of Directors.   

d) The sitting Board Members may conduct interviews with the perspective Board 

Candidates.  

e) With the exception of the very first planning board, each Director shall hold office for a 

period of four years. The terms for the initial Board of Directors shall be staggered. One 

half (1/2) of the members of the first board shall serve a term of four years, and one half 

(1/2) will serve a term of three years. At the end of these terms, subsequent Directors will 

serve four-year terms.  (The planning board shall be those individuals in place as the 

Board of Directors after the incorporation and application for charter as a school.  

These individuals will serve as the initial Board of Directors.  The initial Board of 

Directors terms shall begin on the first day of July in the year the school is given a 

charter.)    

f) Except non-voting employee Directors, no person appointed or elected shall serve more 

than five (5) consecutive terms. However, each Director shall continue in office until the 

successor in that office shall have been duly appointed or until the current Director 

resigns, becomes disqualified, or until that Director is removed.  

g)  If due to death, resignation or other disability the Board membership falls below (5) five, 

resigning members will be released upon the appointment of a replacement member. 

 

Section 3: Ex-Officio Directors 

 
 The Chief Executive Officer/School Director of the Corporation shall during his or her 

respective term serve as an Ex-officio member of the Board of Directors. In addition, there shall 

be such other Ex-officio Directors as elected by a vote of the Directors then holding office. Each 

Ex-officio Director, including the School Director, shall be entitled to enter into all deliberations 

and to receive notice of all meetings, but he or she shall not vote nor be counted in determining 

the existence of a quorum. 

 

Section 4: Duties 

 
a) Directors shall perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively and individually 

by law, the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws. Directors shall stand in a 

fiduciary relation to the corporation and shall discharge the duties of the respective 

positions in good faith, and with that diligence and care which reasonably prudent men 

and women would exercise in similar circumstances and like positions.  

b) Directors shall appoint, remove, and evaluate the Chief Executive Officer (also known as 

the School Director) of the Corporation. (The Chief Executive Officer or School Director 

shall be synonymous with the contracted Management Company).  

c) Directors shall conduct an annual self-evaluation(s) to ensure their quality of service to 

the corporation.  

d) Directors shall meet at such times and places as required by these Bylaws. The Board 

may consider a director with two consecutive un-excused absences from regular meetings 

as having resigned.  

e) Directors shall register their addresses with the Secretary of the Corporation. 
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Section 5: Resignation of Directors 

 
 A Director may resign at any time by giving notice in writing to the Chairperson or 

Secretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified, or if no time 

is specified, at the time such resignation is received by the Chairperson or Secretary.    

 

Section 6: Vacancies 

 
 If a vacancy should occur in the Board of Directors by death, resignation, 

disqualification, or otherwise, the remaining Directors may continue to conduct the Corporation's 

business. The vacancy will be filled immediately as provided in Section 2c of this Article III.  A 

Director who is chosen in this manner shall hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of 

the person whom the newly elected Director succeeds.  After this period they can seek to remain 

on the Board thru Section 2 above. 

 

Section 7: Compensation 

 
 Directors shall serve without compensation for their services to the Board. 

 

Section 8: Director's Adverse Interest 

 
 If any Director has an adverse interest in a corporate transaction, such Director must 

make full disclosure to the Board of the adverse interest as soon as such Director knows, or 

should know of its existence. Upon full disclosure, the Board may approve the transaction only 

by a good faith vote of a majority of the disinterested Directors present. However, no such 

transaction may be approved if it would constitute self-dealing prohibited under sections 4941 of 

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or the corresponding provisions of any later federal tax laws, 

or if it would result in the imposition of any excise tax under any other provision of Chapter 49A 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or the corresponding provisions of any later federal tax 

laws. 

 

Section 9: Certain Director Liability 

 
 A Director shall be subject to the liabilities imposed by law upon Directors. In addition, 

all Directors who vote for or assent to any distribution of assets of the Corporation contrary to 

any lawful restrictions in the Non-profit Corporation Act of the State of North Carolina, the 

corporate Charter, or the Bylaws, shall be jointly and severally liable to the Corporation for the 

amount of such distribution. Furthermore, such liabilities shall not exceed the debts, obligations 

and liabilities existing at the time of the vote or assent where the Director relied and acted in 

good faith on financial statements of the Corporation to be correct and to be based on generally 

accepted principles of sound accounting practice by the Chairperson or the Treasurer, or certified 

by an independent public accountant or firm of such accountants to fairly reflect the financial 

condition of the Corporation. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Section 10: Conflict of Interest 

 
 Board members shall be completely objective and free of personal conflict when making 

decisions on the board.  The Board shall adopt and update on an annual basis a separate Conflict 

of Interest Policy.  
 

Section 11: Removal 

 
 Members of the Board of Directors (Member) as defined by Section 2 of this Article III 

may be removed with cause in accordance with the Board Handbook, by vote of the Board of 

Directors present at any regular meeting; or at a special meeting of the Board called for that 

purpose. 

 

ARTICLE IV – MEETINGS 

 

Section 1: Open Meetings 

  
The Board will conduct open meeting within the meaning of the North Carolina General 

Statutes for open meetings laws of public entities. 

 

Section 2: Regular Meetings 

 
 The Board of Directors will meet monthly with the date, time and place being designated 

by the Chairperson or the Chairperson’s designee. One of these meeting shall be the annual 

meeting (Section 5) of the Board of Directors. The North Carolina open meeting laws will be 

followed during all meetings of the Board of Directors.  The board shall conduct a minimum of 

eight (8) regular board meetings annually. 

 

Section 3: Substitute Regular Meetings 

 
 If any regular meeting shall not be held as designated in section 2, above, a substitute 

meeting may be called by the Chairperson or by two or more of the Directors. This meeting may 

be designated as a regular meeting. 

 

Section 4: Special Meetings & Emergency Meetings 

 
 The persons authorized to call Special Meetings of the Board are the Chairperson or at 

least two Directors. All Board Members must be notified not less than ten (10) days in advance 

of the place and time of a Special Board Meeting, such notice to be made pursuant to Section 6, 

below.  This notice can be waived for any such meeting by signed writing acknowledging actual 

notice and a desire to meet at an earlier time however such notice must be obtained from all 

Board members. 

 

 Emergency matters regarding natural disaster, war, acts of God, major emergent 

governance issues and the like may arise and need the full attention of the Board of Directors for 

the health of the Corporation.  For genuine emergency matters which can not wait until the next 

regular Board meeting the Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson in the absence or unavailability of 
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the Board Chair) can call an emergency meeting to deal only with the emergency matters.  A 

quorum must be present.  Notice of an emergency meeting shall by 24 hours unless the same is 

waived by all members. 

 

Section 5: Annual Meeting. 

 

 The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within 3 months after the 

close of the fiscal year for the purpose of selecting officers, approving financial reports, and to 

transact any other business as may be specified in the notice of the meeting. 

 

Section 6: Notice of Meetings 

 
 Notice of any regular meeting, including the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors, 

shall be given to the Board Members at least one-week (seven 7 days) prior thereto. Notice of 

any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least ten (10) days prior thereto. 

All notices shall be in writing delivered personally or sent by mail, email, telegram, or fax to the 

address of each Director as shown on the records of the Corporation.  All meeting of the entire 

Board shall be noticed to the public on the school’s website and placed in a local newspaper. 

 

Section 7: Quorum 

 
 The presence of a simple majority of the members of the Board of Directors at a meeting 

duly assembled shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If less than a quorum is 

present at the time and place of any meeting, the Directors present may adjourn the meeting until 

a quorum shall be present. 
 

Section 8: Decision Making 

 
 Notwithstanding any provision of these Bylaws to the contrary, requiring consensus, 

unanimity, or any other percentage of votes by members of the Board, including, without 

limitation, any vote to amend these Bylaws or to elect or replace a director, decisions of the 

Board shall be by a majority vote of the directors present and constituting a quorum. In all cases, 

in the event of a tie, the vote of the Chairperson shall break the tie. The aforementioned 

provisions shall apply to all decisions of the Board.  
 

Roll Call Voting Process 

 

 The Chair shall inquire, prior to the vote, if any member requests the use of the roll call 

process. The Chairperson may, at their discretion, ask for Roll Call Vote even if no request is 

made by other members. If no request is made, the vote may be held immediately. Should a 

request for Roll Call Vote be made, each member of the board, in sequence, is asked to voice 

their summary opinion on the issue. Upon conclusion of the Roll Call, the vote shall be taken. 

 

ARTICLE V - Officers 
 

Section 1: Designation of Officers 

 



 

 

 The Officers of the Board of Directors of this Corporation shall include the Chairman, 

Secretary and Treasurer. The Directors may designate and fill other corporate offices as needed. 

Any two offices or more may be held by one person, except the offices of Chairperson, 

Secretary, and Treasurer. No officer shall sign or execute any document in more than one 

capacity. 

 

Section 2: Election, Term of Office and Qualifications 

 
 Each officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting. These 

officers shall hold office during the fiscal year after their election. Other officers, as needed, may 

be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this article and may be elected by 

the Board at the Annual Meeting. 

 

Section 3: Subordinate Officers and Agents 

 
 The Board of Directors may appoint other officers or agents (i.e. Chief Executive 

Officer/School Director), each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, 

and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may determine. The Board of Directors may 

delegate to any officer or agent the authority to appoint any subordinate officer or agent and to 

prescribe the respective authorities or duties. 

 

Section 4: Duties 

 
 Officers shall stand in a fiduciary relation to the Corporation and shall discharge the 

duties of their respective positions in good faith, and with that diligence and care which 

reasonably prudent men and women would exercise in similar circumstances and like positions. 

 

Section 5: Removal 

 
 The officers specifically designated in Section 1 of this Article V may be removed either 

with or without cause, by vote of the Board of Directors present at any regular meeting; or at a 

special meeting of the Board called for that purpose. The officers appointed in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 3 of this Article may be removed, either with or without cause, by the 

Board of Directors, by a vote of the Directors present at any meeting. The removal of any person 

from office shall be done without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so 

removed. 

 

Section 6: Resignations 

 
 Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or 

to the Chairperson or Secretary, or, if that officer was appointed by an officer or agent in 

accordance with Section 3 of this Article, by giving written notice to the appointing officer or 

agent. 

 

Section 7: Vacancies 
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 A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal or disqualification, or any 

other cause, shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term of such office in the manner 

prescribed by these Bylaws for regular appointments or elections to such offices. 

 

Section 8: School Director/ Chief Executive Officer 

 
 The School Director/Chief Executive Officer (a/k/a: Management Company) shall have 

general charge of the business and affairs of the corporation and control over its employees. The 

School Director/Chief Executive Officer shall do and perform such other duties as may be 

assigned by the Board of Directors, including managing of day-to-day operations. The School 

Director shall serve an ex-officio member of the Parent Advisory Committee and the Board of 

Directors as well as work in 

Partnership with these groups to achieve the mission of the BEAM ACADEMY. The Board shall 

have ultimate authority in the hiring or discharge of Teachers. 

 

Sections 9: Chairperson 

 
 The Chairperson shall have general charge of the business and affairs of the Board of 

Directors. The Chairperson has the responsibility for conducting meetings. The Chairperson shall 

perform such other assigned duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 10: Vice-Chairperson 

 
 At the request of the Chairperson, or in absence or disability of the Chairperson, the 

Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the duties of the Chairperson and when so acting shall have 

all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chairperson. 

 

Section 11: Secretary 

 
 The Secretary (or designee) shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 

Directors and shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these 

Bylaws or as required by the law. The Secretary shall be the custodian of the statements, books, 

records, reports, certificates, and other documents of the Corporation and the seal of the 

Corporation, and see that the seal is affixed to all documents requiring such seal. The Secretary 

shall perform all duties and possess all authority incident to the office of Secretary, and such 

other duties and have such other authority as may be assigned by the Board of Directors. 

 

 

Section 12: Treasurer 

 
 The Treasurer shall have supervision over the funds, receipts, disbursements and 

securities of the corporation and shall serve on the Finance Committee. The Treasurer shall 

perform such other duties and have such other authority as may be assigned or granted by the 

Board of Directors. The Treasurer may be required to give a bond for the faithful performance of 

the duties of the office in such form and amount as the Board of Directors may determine. 

 



 

 

Section 13: Duties of Officers may be Delegated 

 
 In case of absence of any officer of the corporation or for any other reason that the Board 

may deem sufficient, the Board may delegate authority of duties of such officer to any other 

officer or to any Director provided a majority of the entire Board of Directors concurs therein. 

 

ARTICLE VI – Committees 

 

Section 1: General 

 
 The Board shall have two (2) standing committees – Executive and Finance. Committees 

shall meet and conduct business between board meetings and make reports and recommendations 

at board meetings. Each Director shall serve on at least one standing committee. 

 

Section 2: Executive Committee 

 
 The members of the Executive Committee shall be the Chairperson of the Board, Vice 

Chairperson, the Secretary, the Treasurer. The Executive Committee shall be vested with the 

powers of the Board, except as to those matters herein specifically requiring an affirmative vote 

of the entire Board of Directors. The Executive Committee may exercise its powers when the 

Board is not in session or in the absence of a quorum thereof. A majority of the members of the 

Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum thereof. 

 

Section 3: Finance Committee 

 
 The Chair of the Board shall nominate and the Board of Directors shall elect a Finance 

Committee. Membership on this committee will not be restricted to the Board of Directors. The 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the School Director shall serve as Ex-officio members 

of the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall supervise the financial affairs of the 

School and shall make recommendations from time to time in regard to the operating and capital 

budgets, salaries, and other business affairs. 

 

Section 4: Parent Advisory Committee. 

 

 Parents of BEAM ACADEMY students shall form the Parent Advisory Committee and 

shall nominate and elect the committee's officers. The School Director shall serve as an Ex-

officio member of the Parent Advisory Committee. The Parent Advisory Committee shall work 

with the school involving volunteer parental services, fund-raising and school performance and 

shall make recommendations from time to time in regard to said affairs. 

 

Section 5: Additional Committees 

 
 The Board of Directors may designate other committees, each of which shall consist of 

two or more Directors and each of which, to the extent provided in such resolution, shall have 

and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation, but 

the designation of such committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to 

relieve the Board of Directors or any individual Director of any responsibility or liability 



 

9 
 

imposed upon it or him or her by law. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the School 

Director shall serve as Ex-officio members of such other committees. Membership on such other 

committees may, but need not be, limited to members of the Board of Directors. Other 

committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Trustees in the management 

of the Corporation may be designated by the Chairperson of the Board or by resolution adopted 

by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. 

 

ARTICLE VII – Procedures and Restrictions 

 

Section 1: Contracts 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors may authorize any 

officer or agent to enter into any contract or to execute or deliver any instrument on behalf of the 

Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.  All contracts 

executed by the Corporation shall contain the mandatory language provided in the N.C. Charter 

School Act. 

 

Section 2: Loans 

 
 No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of 

indebtedness shall be issued in its name, unless and except as authorized by the Board of 

Directors. Any officer or agent of the Corporation thereunto so authorized may effect loans or 

advances for the Corporation and for such loans and advances may make, execute, and deliver 

promissory notes, bonds, or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation. 

 

Section 3: Deposits 

 
 All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the 

Corporation in such banks or trust companies or with such bankers or other depositories as the 

Board of Directors may select, or as may be selected by any officer or agent of the Corporation 

to whom such power may from time to time be given by the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 4: Checks, Drafts 

 
 All notes, drafts, acceptances, checks and endorsements or other evidences of 

indebtedness shall be signed by the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson and by the School Director 

or the Treasurer, or in such other manner as the Board of Directors may determine. 

Endorsements for deposit to the credit of the Corporation in any of its duly authorized 

depositories will be made by the School Director or Treasurer or by any officer or agent who 

may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors in such manner as such resolution may 

provide. 

 

Section 5: Gifts 

 



 

 

 The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution; gift, 

bequest, or devise for the general purposes or for any special or educational proposes of BEAM 

ACADEMY 

 

ARTICLE VIII - General Provisions 

 

Section 1: Corporate Seal 

 
 The corporate seal shall be in such form as shall be approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 2: Fiscal Year 

 
 The fiscal year of the corporation shall be July 1 through June 30. 

 

Section 3: Amendments to Bylaws 

 
 These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed, and new Bylaws may be adopted at 

any regular or special meeting upon a vote of the Directors then in office so long as a Board of at  

least five (5) members remains in place.  By-Law changes required a 2/3 majority vote and 

approval by the NC State Board of Education or its designee.  Notice shall be given of the 

intention to alter, amend, or repeal or to adopt new Bylaws at such meeting at least ten (10) days 

prior to such meeting in writing delivered personally or sent by mail, e-mail or fax to the address 

of each Director as shown on the records of the Corporation. 

 

Section 4: Books and Records 
 

 The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall 

keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors. 

 

Section 5: Meeting Regulation 

 
 All meetings of the Corporation including annual, special, and other shall be governed by 

the following established group agreements: one person speaks at a time; respect diverse 

opinions; agree to disagree; willingness to let up when its time; listen: sit back, breathe, hear; 

learn from others: don’t simply defend a position, willingness to encourage “thinking out of the 

box”; strive to find another answer. 

 

Section 6: Officer and Director Indemnification 

 
 The Corporation shall indemnify any Director or former Director or officer of the 

Corporation or any person who may have served at its request as a director or officer of another 

corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise against liabilities and reasonable 

litigation expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by the Director in connection with any 

action, suit or proceeding in which that Director is made or threatened to be made a party by 

reason of being or having been such Director or officer, except in relation to matters as to which 

the Director shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to have acted in bad faith or to 

have been liable or guilty by reason of willful misconduct in the performance of duty. The 
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indemnification authorized by this Section 6 (a) shall be in addition to that permitted by General 

Statutes Sections 55A-17.2 or 55~-17.3 or North Carolina General Statues or as authorized in 

these Bylaws. 

 

 The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or 

was a Director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request 

of the corporation as a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, partnership, joint 

venture, trust, or other enterprise against any liability asserted against and incurred by the person 

in such capacity, or arising out of the officer's status as such, whether or not the corporation 

would have the power to indemnify that officer against such liability. Expenses incurred by a 

Director, officer, employee, or agent in defending a civil or criminal action suit or proceeding 

may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or 

proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors in the specific case upon receipt of an 

undertaking by or on behalf of the Director, officer, employee, or agent to repay such amount 

unless it shall be ultimately be determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the 

corporation as authorized in Section 55A-17.2 or 55A-17.3 of North Carolina General Statues or 

as authorized in these Bylaws. 

 

Section 7: Prohibited Activities 

 
 The Corporation shall comply with 50l(c)(3) prohibitions against substantial lobbying 

and involvement in political campaigns for public candidates. No part of the net earnings of the 

corporation shall inure to the benefit of or be distributable to, its members, Directors, officers, or 

other private persons. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, the Corporation 

shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by corporations exempt 

from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or (b) by a 

corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 17Q(c)(2) of the Code. 

 

Section 8: Disposal of Assets 

 
 Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or 

making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the corporation, dispose of all of the 

assets of the Corporation as directed pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes. 

  

 The undersigned persons certify the foregoing Bylaws have been adopted as the Bylaws 

of the Corporation, in accordance with the requirement of the Corporation Law. 

 

              7-1-2020          

Dated: _______________ 

 

      /s/ Tyrone Turner 

      ________________________________________ 

      Tyrone Turner 

      Board Chair 

 

 /s/ Majorie Graham 

Attest: _________________________________ 

 Majorie Graham, Board Secretary 



 

 

 Board Secretary       



LEA #1: 13%

12.75%

LEA #2: 

0.00%

LEA #3: 

0.00%

Grade

LEA #1 LEA #2 LEA #3 LEA #1 LEA #2 LEA #3 LEA #1 LEA #2 LEA #3 LEA #1 LEA #2 LEA #3 LEA #1 LEA #2 LEA #3

090 090 090 090 090

Kindergarten 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 1 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 2 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 3 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 4 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 5 22 22 22 22 22

Grade 6 22 22 22 22

Grade 7 22 22 22

Grade 8 22 22

Grade 9

Grade 10

Grade 11

Grade 12

LEA Totals: 132 0 0 154 0 0 176 0 0 198 0 0 198 0 0

What percentage of students from the LEA selected above will qualify for EC funding?

What percentage of students from the LEA selected above will qualify for EC funding?

What percentage of students from the LEA selected above will qualify for EC funding?

Enrollment Projections Year 1 through Year 5

In the following tables, please list for each year and grade level, the numbers of students that the school reasonably expects to enroll. In addition, 

please indicate any plans to increase the grade levels offered by the school over time and be sure these figures match those on the initial cover 

page.

The numbers in the following tables are projections, or estimates, and do not bind the State to fund the school at any particular level.

090-Bladen

For the first two years the State will fund the school up to the maximum projected enrollment for each of those years as set forth and approved in the projected enrollment tables. However, in 

subsequent years, the school may increase its enrollment only as permitted by NCGS 115C-218.7(b).

Year 4 Year 5Year 1 Year 2 Year 3



LEA #1: 

Revenue Approximate Per Pupil Funding Projected LEA ADM Approximate funding for Year 1

State Funds $6,480.55 132 $855,432.60

Local Funds $1,477.00 132 $194,964.00

State EC Funds $4,464.16 17 $75,131.81

Federal EC Funds $1,514.35 17 $25,486.51

$1,151,014.92

LEA #2: 

Revenue Approximate Per Pupil Funding Projected LEA ADM Approximate funding for Year 1

State Funds 0

Local Funds 0

Budget: Revenue Projections from each LEA Year 1

State EC Funds: Charter schools receive a per pupil share of state funds per student with disabilities (school-aged 5 through 21). Funds 

are limited to 12.75% of the local education agency’s average daily membership (ADM).

State Funds:  Charter schools receive an equivalent amount per student as the local education agency (LEA) receives per student 

receives from the State. Funding is based on the 1st month average daily membership.

In year 1:  Base state allotments are determined by the LEA in which the student resides.

In year 2 and Beyond:  Base State allotments are determined by the LEA in which the school is located.

Local Funds: Charter schools receive a per pupil share of the local current expense of the LEA in which the student resides.

090-Bladen

Federal EC Funds: Charter schools must qualify and apply for the individual federal grants based on their population of students.

REFER TO RESOURCE GUIDE FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND SOURCE DOCUMENTS

Total:



State EC Funds 0

Federal EC Funds 0

$0.00

LEA #3: 

Revenue Approximate Per Pupil Funding Projected LEA ADM Approximate funding for Year 1

State Funds

Local Funds

State EC Funds

Federal EC Funds

$0.00Total:

Total:



Income:

Revenue Projections
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

State ADM Funds 855,433$                   998,005$                   1,140,577$                1,283,149$                1,283,149$                

Local Per Pupil Funds 194,964$                   227,458$                   259,952$                   292,446$                   292,446$                   

State EC Funds 75,132$                     87,654$                     100,176$                   112,698$                   112,698$                   

Federal EC Funds - 25,487$                     33,982$                     38,230$                     38,230$                     

Other Funds*

Working Capital*

TOTAL REVENUE: 1,125,528$                1,338,603$                1,534,687$                1,726,522$                1,726,522$                

Total Budget: Revenue Projections Year 1 through Year 5

*All budgets should balance indicating strong budgetary skills. Any negative fund balances will, more than likely, generate additional questions by 

those evaluating the application. If the applicant is depending on other funding sources or working capital to balance the operating budget, please 

provide documentation such as signed statements from donors, foundations, bank documents, etc., on the commitment of these funds. If these 

figures are loans, the repayment needs to be explained in the narrative and found within the budget projections.

Assurances are needed to confirm the commitment of these additional sources of revenue. Please include these as Appendix M.

All per pupil amounts are from the most current information and would be approximations for Year 1.

Federal funding is based upon the number of students enrolled who qualify. The applicant should use caution when relying on federal funding in 

year one to meet budgetary goals.

These revenue projection figures do NOT guarantee the charter school would receive this amount of funding in Year 1.

For local funding amounts, applicants will need to contact their local offices or LEA.



Number of 

Staff Average Salary Total Salary

Number of 

Staff Average Salary Total Salary

Number of 

Staff Average Salary Total Salary

Number of 

Staff Average Salary Total Salary

Number of 

Staff Average Salary Total Salary

Administrative & Support Personnel

Lead Administrator 1 60,000$            60,000$                          1 61,800$            61,800$                          1 63,654$            63,654$                          1 65,563$            65,563$                          1 67,530$            67,530$                          

Assistant Administrator 1 35,000$            35,000$                          1 36,050$            36,050$                          1 37,131$            37,131$                          1 38,245$            38,245$                          1 39,392$            39,392$                          

Finance Officer -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Clerical 1 26,000$            26,000$                          1 26,780$            26,780$                          1 27,583$            27,583$                          1 28,410$            28,410$                          1 29,262$            29,262$                          

Food Service Staff -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Custodians -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Transportation Staff -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Total Admin and Support: 3 121,000$                        3 124,630$                        3 128,368$                        3 132,218$                        3 136,184$                        

Instructional Personnel

Core Content Teacher(s) 6 47,000$            282,000$                        7 48,410$            338,870$                        8 49,862$            398,896$                        9 51,357$            462,213$                        9 52,898$            476,082$                        

Electives/Specialty Teacher(s) 1 35,000$            35,000$                          1 36,050$            36,050$                          1 37,131$            37,131$                          2 38,245$            76,490$                          2 39,392$            78,784$                          

Exceptional Children Teacher(s) 1 50,000$            50,000$                          1 51,500$            51,500$                          1 53,045$            53,045$                          2 54,636$            109,272$                        2 56,275$            112,550$                        

Instructional Support 1 37,000$            37,000$                          1 38,110$            38,110$                          1 39,253$            39,253$                          2 40,430$            80,860$                          2 41,643$            83,286$                          

Teacher Assistants 1 22,000$            22,000$                          1 22,660$            22,660$                          1 23,339$            23,339$                          1 24,039$            24,039$                          1 24,761$            24,761$                          

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Total Instructional Personnel: 10 426,000$                        11 487,190$                        12 551,664$                        16 752,874$                        16 775,463$                        

Total Admin, Support and Instructional Personnel: 13 547,000$                        14 611,820$                        15 680,032$                        19 885,092.00$                   19 911,647$                        

Personnel Budget: Expenditure Projections

Budget Expenditure Projections

Year 5Year 2 Year 3 Year 4Year 1



Number of 

Staff
Cost Per Total

Number of 

Staff
Cost Per Total

Number of 

Staff
Cost Per Total

Number of 

Staff
Cost Per Total

Number of 

Staff
Cost Per Total

Administrative & Support Benefits

Health Insurance 3 1,800$              5,400$                            3 1,854$              5,562$                            3 1,909$              5,727$                            3 1,966$              5,898$                            3 2,025$              6,075$                            

Retirement Plan--NC State -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Retirement Plan--Other 3 1,615$              4,845$                            3 1,663$              4,989$                            3 1,713$              5,139$                            3 1,764$              5,292$                            3 1,817$              5,451$                            

Life Insurance -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Disability -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Medicare 3 867$                 2,601$                            3 893$                 2,679$                            3 919$                 2,757$                            3 947$                 2,841$                            3 975$                 2,925$                            

Social Security 3 2,817$              8,451$                            3 2,901$              8,703$                            3 2,988$              8,964$                            3 3,078$              9,234$                            3 3,170$              9,510$                            

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Total Admin and Support Benefits: 21,297$                          21,933$                          22,587$                          23,265$                          23,961$                          

Instructional Personnel Benefits

Health Insurance 10 1,800$              18,000$                          11 1,854$              20,394$                          12 1,909$              22,908$                          16 1,966$              31,456$                          16 2,025$              32,400$                          

Retirement Plan--NC State -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Retirement Plan--Other 10 1,704$              17,040$                          11 1,755$              19,305$                          12 1,807$              21,684$                          16 1,862$              29,792$                          16 1,917$              30,672$                          

Social Security 10 2,860$              28,600$                          11 2,945$              32,395$                          12 3,034$              36,408$                          16 3,125$              50,000$                          16 3,218$              51,488$                          

Disability -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Medicare 10 880$                 8,800$                            11 906$                 9,966$                            12 933$                 11,196$                          16 961$                 15,376$                          16 990$                 15,840$                          

Life Insurance -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Total Instructional Personnel Benefits: 72,440$                          82,060$                          92,196$                          126,624$                        130,400$                        

Total Personnel Benefits: 93,737$                          103,993$                        114,783$                        149,889$                        154,361$                        

Total Admin & Support Personnel (Salary & Benefits): 3 142,297$                        3 146,563$                        3 150,955$                        3 155,483.00$                   3 160,145$                        

Total Instructional Personnel (Salary & Benefits): 10 498,440$                        11 569,250$                        12 643,860$                        16 879,498$                        16 905,863$                        

TOTAL PERSONNEL: 13 640,737$                        14 715,813$                        15 794,815$                        19 1,034,981$                     19 1,066,008$                     

*The personnel list below may be amended to meet the staffing of individual charter schools: This list should align with the projected staff located in the Operations Plan.

Year 4 Year 5

Benefits

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3



   

The following list of expenditure items is presented as an example. Applicants should modify to meet their needs.

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Office

Office Supplies 2,000.00$                       2,100.00$                       2,200.00$                       2,300.00$                       2,400.00$                       

Paper 1,500.00$                       1,600.00$                       1,700.00$                       1,800.00$                       1,900.00$                       

Computers & Software 2,000.00$                       2,200.00$                       2,400.00$                       2,600.00$                       2,800.00$                       

Communications & Telephone 2,400.00$                       2,500.00$                       2,600.00$                       2,700.00$                       2,800.00$                       

Copier leases 2,400.00$                       2,500.00$                       2,600.00$                       2,700.00$                       2,800.00$                       

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Management Company

Contract Fees -$                                133,860.00$                   153,468.00$                   172,652.00$                   172,652.00$                   

Other -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

Professional Contract

Legal Counsel 1,000.00$                       1,200.00$                       1,400.00$                       1,600.00$                       1,800.00$                       

Student Accounting 10,000.00$                     12,000.00$                     14,000.00$                     16,000.00$                     18,000.00$                     

Financial 24,000.00$                     25,000.00$                     26,000.00$                     27,000.00$                     28,000.00$                     

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Facilities

Facility Lease/Mortgage 72,000.00$                     72,000.00$                     72,000.00$                     72,000.00$                     72,000.00$                     

Maintenance 6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       10,000.00$                     

Custodial Supplies 4,000.00$                       5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       

Operations Budget: Expenditure Projections

OPERATIONS BUDGET:

Administrative and Support



Custodial Contract 18,000.00$                     20,000.00$                     22,000.00$                     24,000.00$                     26,000.00$                     

Insurance (pg19) 12,796.00$                     14,000.00$                     15,000.00$                     16,000.00$                     17,000.00$                     

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Utilities

Electric 24,000.00$                     25,000.00$                     26,000.00$                     27,000.00$                     28,000.00$                     

Gas 3,000.00$                       3,200.00$                       3,400.00$                       3,600.00$                       3,800.00$                       

Water/Sewer 3,000.00$                       3,200.00$                       3,400.00$                       3,600.00$                       3,800.00$                       

Trash 6,000.00$                       6,500.00$                       7,000.00$                       7,500.00$                       8,000.00$                       

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Transportation

Buses

Gas

Oil/Tires & Maintenance

Contract Transportation 100,000.00$                   110,000.00$                   120,000.00$                   130,000.00$                   140,000.00$                   

Other

Marketing 1,500.00$                       1,500.00$                       1,500.00$                       1,500.00$                       1,500.00$                       

Child nutrition 10,000.00$                     10,000.00$                     10,000.00$                     10,000.00$                     10,000.00$                     

Travel 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

310,096.00$                   465,360.00$                   506,168.00$                   546,552.00$                   567,752.00$                   Total Administrative & Support Operations:



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Classroom Technology

Software 5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Instructional Contract

Staff Development 5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

Books and Supplies

Instructional Materials 5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       

Curriculum/Texts 5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       

Copy Paper 3,000.00$                       4,000.00$                       5,000.00$                       6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       

Testing Supplies 6,000.00$                       7,000.00$                       8,000.00$                       9,000.00$                       10,000.00$                     

Other 500.00$                          600.00$                          700.00$                          800.00$                          900.00$                          

30,500.00$                     36,800.00$                     43,100.00$                     49,400.00$                     55,700.00$                     

340,596.00$                   502,160.00$                   549,268.00$                   595,952.00$                   623,452.00$                   

*Applicants may amend this table and the position titles to fit their Education and Operations Plans.

Total Instructional Operations:

TOTAL OPERATIONS:

OPERATIONS BUDGET:

Instructional



SUMMARY Logic Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Total Personnel J 640,737.00$          715,813.00$          794,815.00$          1,034,981.00$       1,066,008.00$       

Total Operations M 340,596.00$          502,160.00$          549,268.00$          595,952.00$          623,452.00$          

Total Expenditures N = J + M 981,333.00$          1,217,973.00$       1,344,083.00$       1,630,933.00$       1,689,460.00$       

Total Revenue Z 1,125,528.41$       1,338,602.99$       1,534,686.56$       1,726,522.38$       1,726,522.38$       

Surplus / (Deficit)  = Z - N 144,195.41$          120,629.99$          190,603.56$          95,589.38$            37,062.38$            

Overall Budget



 



B.E.A.M. ACADEMY  SCOPE AND SEQUENCE 
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Course 

 

Kindergarten First Grade  Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade 

 
English/Language 

Arts 

-Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

Reading/Literature 

-Informational Text 

-Foundational Skills 

-Writing 

-Speaking & Listening 

-Language 

-Complexity Challenge 

 

 

Mathematics -Introduction 

-Counting & 

Cardinality 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

 

-Introduction 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

-Introduction 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

-Introduction 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Number & Operations/ 

Fractions 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

-Introduction 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Number & 

Operations/Fractions 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

-Introduction 

-Operations & 

Algebraic Thinking 

-Number & Operations 

in Base Ten 

-Number & 

Operations/Fractions 

-Measurement & Data 

-Geometry 

 

 

Science -Motion 

-Physical Properties 

-Observable Patterns 

-Comparison 

-Structure 

-Growth 

-Agriculture 

-Forces 

-Earth 

-Moon 

-Sun 

-Planets 

-Living Things 

-Agriculture 

-Sound and Vibration 

-States of Matter 

-Weather 

-Animal Life Cycles 

-Variation 

-Agriculture 

-Speed & Motion 

-States of Matter 

-Energy 

-Solar System 

-Earth’s Surface 

-Human Body 

-Plants 

-Agriculture 

-Magnetism 

-Electricity 

-Properties of Matter 

-Energy 

-Earth Study 

-Environment 

-Food Chains 

-Human Body 

-Agriculture 

 

 

-Force & Motion 

-Matter & Energy 

-Temperature 

-Weather 

-Systems of Organisms 

-Plant & Animal 

Interdependence 

-Agriculture 

Social Studies -Change 

-Geography 

-Humans & 

Environment 

-Economic Concepts 

-Citizenship 

 

-Societal Change 

-Geography 

-Humans & Local 

Communities 

-Economic Concepts 

-Law & Authority 

-Diversity 

-History 

-Human Interaction  

-Economic Concepts 

-Governments 

-U.S. Constitution 

-Citizenship 

-Culture 

-History 

-Change 

-Geography Themes 

-Market Economy 

-Entrepreneurship 

-Local Government 

-Democracy 

-Diversity 

-North Carolina History 

-North Carolina 

Landmarks 

-North Carolina 

Progress 

-Market Economy in 

North Carolina 

-Economics & Personal 

Choices 

-North Carolina 

Government 

-NC Constitution 

 

 

-U.S. History 

-Founding Fathers 

-U.S. Economy 

-Global Economy 

-United Nations 
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Information 

Technology 

-Information uses 

-Information Sources 

-Enjoyment vs. 

Information 

-Technology Tools 

-Technology Skills 

-Research 

-Ethical Issues 

 

-Useful Info Sources 

-Information Quality 

-Technology Tools  

-Technology Skills 

-Research Process 

-Safety & Ethics 

-Information Sources 

-Information Purposes 

-Technology Tools & 

Skills 

-Research Process 

-Safety, Ethics & 

Responsible Use 

-Sources of Information 

-Research Strategies 

-Technology Tools & 

Skills 

-Collaboration 

-Safety, Ethics & 

Responsible Use 

-Information Sources 

-Research Strategies 

-Technology Tools & 

Skills 

-Research Process 

-Safety, Ethics & 

Responsible Use 

-Information Sources 

-Research Strategies 

-Technology Tools & 

Skills 

-Collaboration 

-Safety, Ethics & 

Responsible Use 

Arts Education -Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

 

-Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

-Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

-Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

-Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

-Dance 

-Music 

-Theater Arts 

-Visual Arts 

 

Health Education -Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

-Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

-Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

-Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

-Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

-Mental & Emotional 

Health 

-Personal & Consumer 

Health 

-Interpersonal 

Communications and 

Relationships 

-Nutrition & Physical 

Activity 

-Alcohol, Tobacco, and 

other Drugs 

 

Guidance -Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 

 

 

-Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 

 

-Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 

 

-Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 

 

-Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 

 

-Readiness 

-Exploration 

-Discovery 

-Colleges & 

Universities 

-Careers 
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Subject Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8 

 

Reading/ELA • Literature 

• Informational Text 

• Foundational Skills 

• Writing 

• Speaking & Listening 

• Language 

• Grammar 

• Conventions 

• Vocabulary 

• Literature 

• Informational Text 

• Foundational Skills 

• Writing 

• Speaking & Listening 

• Language 

• Grammar 

• Conventions 

• Vocabulary 

• Literature 

• Informational Text 

• Foundational Skills 

• Writing 

• Speaking & Listening 

• Language 

• Grammar 

• Conventions 

• Vocabulary 

 

Math • Ratios & Proportions 

• The Number System 

• Expressions & 

Equations 

• Geometry 

• Statistics & Probability 

• Ratios & Proportions 

• The Number System 

• Expressions & 

Equations 

• Geometry 

• Statistics & Probability 

• Functions 

• Algebra 

• Ratios & Proportions 

• The Number System 

• Expressions & 

Equations 

• Geometry 

• Statistics & Probability 

• Functions 

• Algebra 

 

Science • Force & Matter 

• Matter: Properties & 

Change 

• Energy: Conservation 

& Transfer 

• Earth in the University 

• Earth systems, 

structures & processes 

• Force & Matter 

• Matter: Properties & 

Change 

• Energy: Conservation 

& Transfer 

• Earth in the University 

• Earth systems, 

structures & processes 

• Force & Matter 

• Matter: Properties & 

Change 

• Energy: Conservation 

& Transfer 

• Earth in the University 

• Earth systems, 

structures & processes 
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• Structure and Function 

of Living Organisms 

• Ecosystems 

• Structure and Function 

of Living Organisms 

• Ecosystems 

• Evolution & Genetics 

• Structure and Function 

of Living Organisms 

• Ecosystems 

• Evolution & Genetics 

• Earth History 

• Molecular Biology 

Social Studies • History 

• Geography and 

Environmental Literacy 

• Economics and 

Financial Literacy 

• Civics & Government 

• Culture 

• Globalization 

• History 

• Geography and 

Environmental Literacy 

• Economics and 

Financial Literacy 

• Civics & Government 

• Culture 

• Globalization 

• History 

• Geography and 

Environmental Literacy 

• Economics and 

Financial Literacy 

• Civics & Government 

• Culture 

• Globalization 

 

Agriculture Science • Project-Based 

• Farming 

• Industry 

• Business 

• Project-Based 

• Farming 

• Industry 

• Business 

• Project-Based 

• Farming 

• Industry 

• Business 

 

21st Century Technology • Computers 

• Telecommunications 

• Satellites 

• Applications 

• Computers 

• Telecommunications 

• Satellites 

• Applications 

 

• Computers 

• Telecommunications 

• Satellites 

• Applications 

 



 

 

 

Below are the estimated annual premiums:  BEAM Academy 

 

 

Property Premium Estimate      $450 

  Contents   $200,000 

  Deductible   $1,000 

  Form    Special 

Equipment Breakdown Included 

 

General Liability Premium Estimate    $1,276 

 Rating Basis: Students 150 

    Faculty 15 

 Limits: 

 Per Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 

 Annual Aggregate   $3,000,000 

 Sexual Abuse & Molestation $1,000,000 per occurrence 

      $3,000,000 aggregate 

 Employee Benefits   $1,000,000 per occurrence 

      $3,000,000 aggregate 

  

School District & Educators Legal Liability (D&O/ E&O)  

Premium Estimate       $3,057 

      $1,000,000 per occurrence 

      $2,000,000 aggregate 

 Additional Defense  $100,000/$50,000/$100,000 

 
Named insured includes the insured Organization (School Entity), it’s school board, 

School Committee, Board of Trustees, Board of Governors or similar governing body, 

elected or appointed members of the Board of Education, Board of Trustees, School 

Directors, School Committee, Board of Governors or similar governing board, 

Employees, Student Teachers, School Volunteers, and students while serving in a 

supervised internship program sponsored by the “educational institution”. 

 

Wrongful Act to include any actual or alleged act, error, omission, misstatement, 

misleading statement, neglect, or breach of duty by or on behalf of the Insured 

Organization, including educational malpractice or failure to educate, negligent 

instruction, failure to supervise, inadequate or negligent academic guidance of 

counseling, improper or inappropriate academic placement or discipline. 

 

 



 

 
 

Fidelity Bond Estimate       $332 

 Limit    $250,000 

 

Auto Premium Estimate      $181 

 Hired & Non Owned Autos Only 

 Limit of Liability  $1,000,000 

 

Head of Class Endorsement      $82 

 

Workers Compensation Premium Estimate   $5,113 

 Statutory State - NC 

 Employers Liability $500/ $500/ $500 

 Payroll Estimate  $845,000 

 

Umbrella Premium Estimate      $2,387 

 Limit of Liability  $1,000,000 

 

 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PREMIUM     $12,796 

 

 

Student Accident Coverage      $7.00/ student 

 

These premiums are subject to change based on Underwriter review and 

approval of completed applications. 
 

Disclaimer: The abbreviated outlines of coverages used throughout this proposal are not 

intended to express legal opinion as to the nature of coverage. They are only visuals to a 

basic understanding of coverages. The policy terms, conditions, and exclusions will 

prevail.  Please read the policy forms for specific details of coverage 

 

 
          07/20/2020 

 











OFFICE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

   Dr. Danielle J. Allen, Charter Schools Consultant | Danielle.Allen@dpi.nc.gov 

6307 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-6307 | (919) 807-3493 | Fax (919) 807-3496 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

2020 Charter Application Fee 

Payment Form. 

***Form must accompany payment certified check or money order for processing. 

(Please Type or Print Legibly) 

Name: Phone: 

Name of Charter School: 

E-mail:

General Information 

Non-Refundable Application Fee:  $1,000.00 
The Office of Charter Schools must receive your application fee no later than 5:00 pm. (EST) July 24, 2020. 

Confirmation will be provided through email only. 

Payment Information 

➢ Mail in Application Fee Payment Form with Certified Check or
Money Order

➢ Facsimiles will NOT be accepted
➢ One registration form and fee per charter school

Payable To: 
NC DPI 

Office of Charter Schools 
6307 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-6307 

NOTE: Applications submitted without the non-refundable fee, result in fee being declined by the 

bank as insufficient funds, or submitted after 5:00 pm EST on July 24, 2020, will be deemed 

incomplete.  

FOR DPI USE ONLY 

Budget Code:  : 0801   435100047   160049095000 



Board Member Name Board Title County of Residence Current Occupation Past or Present Professional Licenses Held Any disciplinary action taken against any of these professional licenses?
Tyrone Tucker Board Chair New Hanover Business Owner None None

Majorie Graham Board Secretary Bladen Special Education Teacher NC Teachers License None

Elise Lonon Board Member New Hanover Teacher NC Teachers License None

Lillian Graham Board Member Bladen Retired School Admin./Principal Principal None

William Banks, Jr. Board Member Bladen Senior Financial Services None None



Area of Proposed Coverage Proposed Amount of Coverage Cost (Quote)

Comprehensive General Liability $1,000,000.00/occurrence 1,276.00$                                                                           

Officers and Directors/Errors and Omissions $1,000,000.00/occurrence 3,057.00$                                                                           

Property Insurance 450.00$                                                                               

Automobile Liability $1,000,000.00/occurrence 181.00$                                                                               

Crime Coverage - Minimum/Maximum Amount $250,000.00 | $250,000.00 332.00$                                                                               

Worker's Compensation $500,000.00 5,113.00$                                                                           

Other Coverage 2,387.00$                                                                           

Total Cost 12,796.00$                                                                         



Position Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Principal/School Leader 1 1 1 1 1

Assistant Principal 1 1 1 1 1

Dean(s) 0 0 0 0 0

Additional School Leadership 1 1 1 1 1

Core Classroom Teachers 6 7 8 9 9

Specialized Classroom Teachers (e.g. special education, 

ELL, foreign language, etc.) 2 2 2 2 2

Student Support Positions (e.g. social workers, 

psychologists, etc.) 3 3 3 3 3

Specialized School Staff 1 1 1 1 1

Teaching Aides or Assistants 1 1 1 1 1

School Operations Support Staff 1 1 1 1 1

BEAM Academy Staffing Chart
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TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY SCHOOLS, LLC. 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) by and between Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC., a North Carolina 
corporation ("T.A.S."), and BEAM Academy a North Carolina non-profit corporation (the “School”) is effective this 1st 
day of July 2020 (the “Effective Date”). For purposes of this Agreement, "T.A.S." and the School shall be referred to 
collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the School was issued a Charter Contract by the North Carolina State Board of Education (the 
“Authorizer”) to operate a public charter school pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 115C-218 et seq. (the “Authorizing 
Law”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to work together to promote educational excellence and innovation based on 
T.A.S.’s school design, comprehensive educational program, and management principles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions of such a relationship in this Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, including the mutual promise and benefits contained in 
this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

CONTRACTING RELATIONSHIP 
A. Services. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and as permitted by applicable law, the School 
hereby contracts with T.A.S. for the provision of certain educational, business administration, facility, and 
management services, including without limitation, all labor, equipment, and materials necessary for the provision of 
the same, as set forth herein (collectively, the “Services”). 
B. Charter. This Agreement shall: (i) be subject to and comply with the terms and conditions of the Charter 
Contract and the School’s Charter Application (collectively, the “Charter”): and (ii) not be construed to interfere with 
the constitutional, statutory, or fiduciary duties of the School’s Board of Directors (the “Board”). In the event of a 
conflict between any term or condition of this Agreement and any term or condition of the Charter, the term or 
condition of the Charter shall govern. 
C. Independent Contractor. T.A.S. shall provide the Services as an independent contractor, and not as an 
employee, partner, agent, or associate of the School. This independent contractor relationship shall extend to the 
officers, directors, employees, and representatives of T.A.S.. Consistent with the status of an independent 
contractor, T.A.S. reserves to itself the right to designate the means and methods of accomplishing the objectives 
and purposes of this Agreement consistent with Authorizing Law and the Charter. The relationship between the 
Parties is based solely on the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and the terms and conditions of any other 
written agreement between the Parties. 
D. Designations and Appointments. 

1. T.A.S., including its directors, officers, and employees are hereby designated as “other School Officials 
having a legitimate educational interest in education records” for purposes of the Family Educational Right 
and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 1232g et seq. (FERPA). 
2. T.A.S., its directors, officers, and employees may be designated by the School for other purposes by a 
written resolution of the Board. 
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A. Term. 

ARTICLE II 
TERM & TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and unless terminated as set forth herein, shall continue until 
the termination or expiration of the Charter currently in effect, inclusive of any Charter re-authorization or renewal 
periods thereof (the “Term”). The parties acknowledge that the Authorizer, as part of any reauthorization or 
renewal, may require that the School and T.A.S. submit an amended or restated Agreement for review by the 
Authorizer. The first school year of this Agreement shall commence July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, and each school 
year thereafter shall commence on July 1 and end on June 30 of the following year. 

 
B. Termination 

 

1. By the School. The School may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the Term if T.A.S. fails to 
remedy a material breach of this Agreement within (60) days after receiving notice from the School of such 
breach. For purposes of this Subsection, a material breach includes, but is not limited to: (i) T.A.S.’s failure to 
account for expenditures or pay operating costs pursuant to the Budget (as defined below); (ii) T.A.S.’s failure 
to follow policies, procedures, rules, regulations or curriculum adopted by the Board, provided they do not 
violate the Charter, applicable law, or this Agreement; (iii) a receipt by the Board of an unsatisfactory report 
from an independent education consultant retained by the Board regarding the Services or the 
School’s performance, provided the unsatisfactory performance cannot be adequately corrected or 
explained; (iv) a determination that this Agreement or its implementation would serve as grounds for 
suspension, revocation, or non-renewal of the Charter; (v) a determination that this Agreement or its 
implementation would jeopardize material tax exemptions of the School or its non-profit status; or (vi) any 
action or inaction by T.A.S. that places the Charter in jeopardy of termination, suspension or revocation. 

 
2. By T.A.S.. T.A.S. may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the Term if the Board fails to remedy a 

material breach of this Agreement within thirty (30) days after receiving a notice from T.A.S. of such 
breach. For purposes of this Subsection, a material breach (which for the sake of the clarity is a default 
hereunder) includes, but is not limited to: (i) T.A.S.’s failure to timely receive any compensation or 
reimbursement required by this Agreement; or (ii) a suspension, revocation, or non-renewal of the Charter. 

 
3. By Either Party. Either party may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the Term by providing the 
other party with at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice. 

 
4. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the end of the Term, and unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, 
such termination will not become effective until the end of the then-current school year. 

A. Effect of Termination. Upon the effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement: 
1. T.A.S. shall have the right to remove from the School any equipment or other assets 
owned or leased by T.A.S.; 
2. The School shall pay or reimburse T.A.S. through the Fee (as defined below) for the 
prepaid portion of any expenses or liabilities incurred by T.A.S. pursuant to the Budget as of 
the date of such termination or expiration, provided T.A.S. supplies the School with 
documentation of all such expenses and liabilities; 
3. T.A.S. may agree, in its sole discretion, to assist the School for a reasonable amount of 
time, not to exceed ninety (90) days, and for a reasonable fee, with the School’s transition to 
another administrative, managerial, or services arrangement; 
4. T.A.S. shall, if applicable, reasonably assist the School in the execution of a closure and 
dissolution plan and cooperate in the closure and dissolution process, including without 
limitation, in any audits and court or other proceedings related thereto; and 
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5. The party to whom Confidential Information (as defined below) has been disclosed 
shall, upon request and at the direction of the disclosing party: (i) return such Confidential 
Information within thirty (30) days, including any copies thereof, and cease its use; or (ii) 
destroy such Confidential Information and certify such destruction to the disclosing party, 
except for a single copy thereof which may be retained for the sole purpose of determining 
the scope of any obligations incurred under this Agreement, and except where disclosure or 
retention is required by applicable law. 

 
ARTICLE III 

OBLIGATIONS OF T.A.S. 
A. Manager at Risk. T.A.S. shall be responsible and accountable to the Board for providing the Services. During 
the Term, T.A.S. shall provide services to the level of funding appropriated by the board. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, T.A.S. shall not be required to expend funds on Services in excess of the amount set forth in the Budget 
but may do so at its discretion. 

 
B. Educational Program. Subject to the oversight of the Board, T.A.S. shall implement and administer the 
program as outlined within the application. In the event that T.A.S. reasonably determines that it is necessary or 
advisable to make material changes to the Educational Program, T.A.S. shall inform the Board of the proposed 
changes and obtain the Board’s approval before making such changes, as well as the Authorizer’s approval if 
required by the Charter or applicable law. The Parties acknowledge and agree that an essential part of the 
educational program is its capacity to change in the interest of continuous improvement and efficiency. Not less 
than annually or as reasonably requested by the Board, T.A.S. shall provide the Board with a report detailing 
progress made on each of the educational goals set forth in the Educational Program. The school year calendar and 
the school day schedule shall be approved by the Board as required under the Charter. 

 
C. All Children Welcome. T.A.S. shall ensure that all students are welcome regardless of race, ethnicity, religion, 
gender, and economic backgrounds. 

 
D. Services to Students with Disabilities. T.A.S. welcomes students with disabilities at the School. T.A.S. shall 
provide special education and related services, in conformity with the requirements of applicable law, to students 
who attend the School. 

 
E. Educational and Administrative Services. Subject to the oversight of the Board, T.A.S. shall implement 
operational practices and procedures that are consistent with Board policy, the Charter and applicable law. Such 
practices and procedures shall include, but are not limited to: 

1. Student recruitment and student admissions. 
2. Student assessments, including testing, promotion, and retention. 
3. The acquisition of instructional materials, equipment and supplies, and the administration of any and 
all extra-curricular and co-curricular activities and programs included in the Budget. 
4. Employment of personnel working at the School and management of all personnel functions, as set 
forth herein. 
5. All aspects of the School’s business administration. 
6. All aspects of the School’s accounting operation, including general ledger management, financial and 
audit reporting, employee benefits, payroll, and tax compliance. 
7. All aspects of food services. 
8. All aspects of facilities acquisition, administration and maintenance. 
9. Student behavior management and discipline. 

 
F. Location of Services. Other than instruction, and unless prohibited by the Charter or applicable law, T.A.S. may 
provide the Services, including but not limited to, purchasing, professional development and administrative services, 
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off-site. 
 

G. Subcontracts. T.A.S. reserves the right to subcontract any and all aspects of the Services. T.A.S. shall not 
subcontract the oversight of the Educational Program, except as specifically permitted in this Agreement or with prior 
written approval of the Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board specifically acknowledges and agrees that 
from time to time T.A.S. may use third parties or independent contractors to assist in the creation and development 
of Educational Materials (as defined below) that may be used as a part of the T.A.S. Educational Program. 

 
H. Pupil Performance Standards and Evaluation. T.A.S. shall implement pupil performance evaluations that permit 
evaluation of the academic progress of each student. T.A.S. shall utilize assessment strategies required by the Charter 
and applicable law. The Board and T.A.S. shall cooperate in good faith to identify academic goals and methods to 
assess such academic performance. T.A.S. shall provide the Board with timely reports regarding student performance. 

 
I. Unusual Events. T.A.S. shall timely notify the Board and the Administrator (as defined below) of any 
anticipated or known material: (i) health or safety issues, including all mandatory reporting required by applicable 
law; (ii) labor, employee or funding issues; or (iii) other issues that may reasonably and adversely impact the School’s 
ability to comply with the Charter, applicable law or this Agreement. 

 
J. School Records. The financial and education records pertaining to the School (collectively, the "School 
Records”), are property of the School.   Except as may be prohibited or limited by  the Charter or applicable law,   the 
School Records shall be available to the Board and the Authorizer for their review, and are subject to inspection and 
copying to the same  extent that  records of  public  schools  are  subject  to  inspection  and  copying  pursuant to 
applicable law.  All school records shall be physically or electronically  available  upon  request  at  the School’s 
physical facility.  T.A.S. agrees to comply with the terms pursuant to the Charter regarding information to be made 
available to the School. 

 
K. Facility. T.A.S. shall use reasonable efforts to secure a facility to be leased or otherwise provided to the School 
on terms mutually agreeable to T.A.S. and the Board. Obligations of the Board created under the terms of such lease 
are to be fulfilled by T.A.S. unless otherwise agreed to in writing by T.A.S. and the Board. The facility shall comply 
with the requirements of the Charter and applicable law. T.A.S. shall also use reasonable efforts to cause the facility 
to be furnished with equipment and technology as is reasonably necessary to implement the Educational Program. 

 
L. Legal Compliance. T.A.S. will implement and enforce rules, regulations and procedures applicable to the School 
that are consistent with adopted Board policy, if any, and the T.A.S. Educational Program in accordance with the 
Charter and applicable law, including without limitation, rules, regulations, and policies regarding non-discrimination, 
discipline, special education, confidentiality and access to records. 

 
M. Rules and Procedures. T.A.S. will recommend to the Board reasonable rules, regulations, policies and/or 
procedures applicable to the School. The Board hereby authorizes and directs T.A.S. to enforce such rules, 
regulations and procedures consistent with Board policy. 

 
N. Assistance to the Board. T.A.S. shall cooperate with the Board and, to the extent consistent with applicable 
law, timely furnish the Board with all documents and information necessary for the Board to properly perform its 
responsibilities under this Agreement, the Charter and all applicable laws. 
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ARTICLE IV 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE BOARD 

 
A. Board Policies. The Board shall be responsible for the fiscal and academic policies of the School. The Board  shall 
exercise good faith in considering the recommendations of T.A.S., including but not limited to, T.A.S.’s 
recommendations regarding policies, rules, regulations and the Budget (as defined below). 

 
B. Assistance to T.A.S.. The Board shall cooperate with T.A.S. and, to the extent consistent with applicable law, timely 
furnish T.A.S. all documents and information necessary for T.A.S. to properly perform its responsibilities  under this 
Agreement. 

 
C. Unusual Events. The Board shall timely notify T.A.S. of any anticipated or known material: (i) health or safety 
issues; (ii) labor, employee or funding issues; or (iii) other issues that may reasonably and adversely impact T.A.S.’s 
ability to comply with the Charter, applicable law, or this Agreement. 

 
D. Retained Authority. The Board shall retain the authority to adopt reasonable policies in accordance with applicable 
law relative to anything necessary for the proper establishment, maintenance, management, and operation of the 
School. 

 
E. Ex Officio Member. To permit one ex-officio member appointed by T.A.S. on the Board of Directors. This member 
will be entitled to meeting notice.  

 
F. School Policies. The Board agrees the School will: 

1. Select and implement school uniforms.  
2. Send board representation to all board trainings required by the North Carolina Department of Public 

Instruction 
3. Operate the school based on hours. 
4. Select and agree to a school budget by July 15th preceding each school year.  
5. To implement the healthcare plan utilized by T.A.S. 

 
 

Article V 
Intellectual Property 

A. Definitions. 
1. “Educational Materials” means all curriculum, print and electronic textbooks, instructional materials, 

lesson plans, teacher guides, workbooks, tests, and other curriculum-related materials licensed, developed or 
otherwise owned by the School or T.A.S.. 
2. “Confidential Information” means any confidential and non-public trade, technical or business 
knowledge, information and materials regarding the School or T.A.S. (or their respective affiliates), which is 
given by one party to the other, or any of their respective representatives, in any form, whether printed, 
written, oral, visual, electronic or in any other media or manner. Confidential Information includes, but is not 
limited to, research, operations and procedures, financial projections, pricing, sales, expansion plans and 
strategies, services, data, trade secrets and other intellectual property, or the results of any mediation or 
private adjudication, as well as information with respect to each party’s or its affiliates’ plan for market 
expansion, except for information which a party can show by contemporaneous written records was 
developed or formulated independently of work or services performed for, or in connection with 
performance of, this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the disclosure of the other party’s 
Confidential Information as required to be disclosed by law, rule or regulation or by reason of subpoena, 
court order or government action shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement; however, in such event the 
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party required to disclose such information will reasonably cooperate with the party whose information is 
required to be disclosed in order to obtain a protective order applicable to such disclosure. All Confidential 
Information will remain the sole property of the party disclosing such information or data. 

A. Assignment. Each party shall, and hereby does assign to the other, with full title guarantee and 
without additional compensation, such right, title and interest in and to any intellectual property as 
is necessary to fully affect the ownership provisions set out herein, and any accrued rights of action 
in respect thereof. Each party shall, if so requested by the other, execute all such documents and do 
all such other acts and things as may be reasonably required to comply with this Agreement to vest 
in the appropriate party all rights in the relevant intellectual property 

and shall procure execution by any named inventor of all such documents as may reasonably be 
required by the other party in connection with any related patent application. 

 

ARTICLE VI 
SOLICITATION AND USE OF PRIVATE FUNDS 

T.L.A. shall seek the Board’s approval prior to soliciting any non-governmental grants, donations or 
contributions on behalf of the School. Any such funds received shall be used solely in accordance with the 
purpose for which they were solicited, applicable donor restrictions, or as otherwise approved by the 
Board. Subject to applicable donor restrictions, the Board shall determine the allocation of any such funds 
subject to this Article that remain unexpended following completion of the project or purpose for which 
they were originally designated. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII 
FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS 

A. Revenues. Except as provided herein, all monies received by the School shall be deposited in the 
School’s depository account within three (3) business days with a financial institution acceptable to the 
Board; provided, however, that upon receipt of a notice from T.A.S., the School shall pay all such funds 
owed under this Agreement directly to the account or party specified in such notice. The signatories on 
the School depository account shall solely be Board members or properly designated Board agents (if 
any). Interest income earned on the School’s depository account shall accrue to the School. Except as 
specifically excluded by this Agreement, the term “Revenues” shall include all funds received by or on 
behalf of the School including but not limited to: 

1. Funding for public school students enrolled at the School. 
2. Special education funding provided by the federal and/or state government that is 

directly allocable to special education students enrolled at the School. 
3. Gifted and talented funding provided by the federal and/or state government that is 

directly allocable to gifted and talented students enrolled at the School. 
4. At-risk funding provided by the federal and/or state government that is directly 

allocable to at-risk students enrolled at the School. 
5. Funding provided by the federal and/or state government that is directly allocable to 

students enrolled at the School with limited English proficiency. 
6. All other federal and/or state grant sources, including, but not limited to, Title I and any 

start-up funding allocable to the School. 
7. All other grants and donations received by the School to support or carry programs at the 
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School (except to the extent T.A.S. is not required or involved in soliciting, administering or 
managing the contribution and/or donation , in which case such funds shall be deposited in 
the Board Spending Account (as defined below)). 

8. Fees charged to students as permitted by law for extra services provided by T.A.S. as 
approved by the Board. 

The expenditure of any Revenues received from governmental entities shall be consistent with all 
applicable regulations and policies. The expenditure of any Revenue received from non-governmental 
grants, contributions and donations shall be made consistent with provisions of Article VI. 
 

B. Budget. T.A.S. shall provide the Board with an annual proposed Budget prepared and maintained in 
accordance with the Charter and applicable law (the “Budget”). The Budget shall be submitted to the 
Board prior to June 1 for the next school year. 

C. Review and Approval of Budget. The Board shall be responsible for reviewing and approving the Budget 
in accordance with the Charter and applicable law. At the direction of either T.A.S. or the Board, with 
the approval of the Board, the Budget shall be amended from time to time as necessary. 

D. Board Spending Account. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, each 
school year during the Term, T.A.S. shall allocate to an account controlled by the Board an amount equal 
to the lesser of (i) 2% of state per pupil aid reflected in the Budget for that respective year, or (ii) 
$25,000 (the “Board Spending Account”).  The aforesaid amount  shall be deposited by 
T.A.S. into the Board Spending Account pro-rata during the course of the School’s school year as 
Revenues are received. All funds in the Board Spending Account are the property of the School and may 
be used by the School at the discretion of the Board. Funds in the Board Spending Account that are not 
spent by the School during the school year shall carryover annually. 

E. Fee. T.A.S. shall receive all Revenues as its services fee (the “Fee”), from which it shall pay all 
operating costs of the School as detailed in the Budget. T.A.S. and the Board acknowledge that 
operating costs may include an administrative fee payable to the Authorizer as set forth in the 
Charter. Payment of the Fee shall be made on the same frequency that the School receives its 
Revenues. T.A.S. shall be entitled to retain as compensation for the Services the difference, if any, 
between the Fee and the amount actually expended by T.A.S. in operation and/or management of the 
School during the School’s fiscal year. The minimum service fee each year shall be 10% of Revenues.  

F. Other Schools. The School acknowledges that T.A.S. may enter into similar services agreements with 
other schools. T.A.S. shall maintain separate accounts for expenses incurred in the operation of the 
School and other schools assisted by T.A.S., and shall reflect in the School’s financial records only those 
expenses incurred in the operation of the School. 

G. Financial Reporting. T.A.S. shall provide the Board with: 
1. At least annually, the Budget as required by this Agreement. 
2. Monthly financial statement. These financial statements will include a Balance Sheet, Statement of 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance at object level detail with a comparison of 
budget to actual revenue and expenditures and explanations of variances. 

3. Quarterly, or as reasonably requested by the Board, a report on School operations and student 
performance. 

4. As reasonably requested, other information to enable the Board to: (i) evaluate the quality of the 
Services; and (ii) timely provide all reports and information that are required by the Charter and 
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applicable law. 
H. Access to Financial Records. T.A.S. shall keep accurate financial records pertaining to its operation of the 

School, together with all School financial records prepared by or in possession of T.A.S., and shall retain 
all of the afore referenced records according to the Charter and applicable law to which such books, 
accounts, and records relate. T.A.S. and the Board shall maintain the proper confidentiality of 
personnel, students, and other records as required by law. All records shall be kept in accordance with 
applicable state and federal requirements. 

I. Accounting Standards: Annual Audit. 
1. The School shall at all times comply with generally accepted public sector accounting principles and 

applicable law. 

2. The Board shall select and retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual audit of the 
School’s financial matters in accordance with the Charter and applicable law. 

3. Subject to applicable law, all records in the possession or control of T.A.S. that are related to the 
School, including but not limited to, financial records, shall be made available to the School and the 
School’s independent auditor. The expense of the annual audit shall be included in the Budget. 

J. Start-up Funds; Contributions.  T.A.S. shall provide start-up funds for: (i) the development of curriculum, 
a technology system and a school operations plan; (ii) recruiting, selecting and training of staff 
members; and (iii) to the extent necessary as reasonably determined by T.A.S., cleaning, renovating and 
equipping of the School facility (the “Start-Up Funds”).  In addition, in its sole discretion, T.A.S. may, but 
need not, make contributions to the School in the event School expenses exceed Revenues (the 
“Contributions”).  The Contributions, if any, shall be in amounts acceptable to T.A.S. and the Board and, 
once made, shall be included in the Budget.  Unless otherwise agreed, the School shall not be legally 
obligated to repay T.A.S. for the Start-Up Funds or the Contributions.  T.A.S.’s agreement to make such 
Contributions shall not be deemed to negate or mitigate the need for the School to apply for or solicit 
state or federal start-up funds, grants or sub-grants which the School, as a public school, may be eligible 
to receive. 

ARTICLE VIII 
PERSONNEL & TRAINING 

A. Qualified Personnel. T.A.S. shall select and hire qualified personnel to perform the Services. 
T.A.S. shall have the responsibility and authority, subject to this Article, to select, hire, evaluate, assign, 
discipline, transfer, and terminate personnel consistent with the Budget, the Charter and applicable law. 
With the exception of teachers, as set forth below, and unless otherwise agreed by the written consent 
of the Parties, all School personnel shall be employees or independent contractors of T.A.S.. The 
compensation of all employees or contractors working at the School shall be included in the Budget. 
Upon Board request, T.A.S. shall disclose to the Board the level of compensation and fringe benefits 
provided by T.A.S. to T.A.S. employees working at the School. A criminal background check and 
unprofessional conduct search in compliance with applicable law shall be conditions for the hiring of or 
services provided by any person who will or may be reasonably expected to have unsupervised access to 
and the care, custody or control of, any School student(s). 

B. School Administrator. The School administrator (the “Administrator”) shall be an employee of T.A.S. 
and not the Board.  The duties and terms of the Administrator’s employment shall be determined by 
T.A.S..  The Administrator shall work with T.A.S. in the operation and management of the School.  The 
accountability of T.A.S. to the School is an essential foundation of this Agreement.  Since the 
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Administrator is critical to the School’s success, T.A.S. shall have the authority, consistent with this 
Article, to select, hire, evaluate, assign, discipline, transfer and terminate the Administrator, and to 
hold the Administrator accountable for the performance of the School.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, T.A.S. shall consult with the Board prior to the placement and/or removal of the 
Administrator. Absent compelling circumstances, the consultation shall commence at least ninety (90) 
days prior to T.A.S. placing and/or removing the Administrator. T.A.S. shall give due consideration to 
the input, if any, of the Board or the Board’s designated representative prior to making a final decision 
regarding placement and/or removal of the Administrator.  T.A.S. shall remove the Administrator if the 
Board is reasonably dissatisfied with the Administrator’s performance.  Absent compelling 
circumstances, however, the Board shall give T.A.S. and the Administrator six (6) months to correct the 
basis for the Board’s reasonable dissatisfaction.  The parties agree that the purpose of the above 
provisions is not to deny the Administrator the opportunity for growth and/or promotion within T.A.S..  
Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the placement of the initial Administrator for the School in its 
first year of operation shall be made by T.A.S.. 

C. Teachers. The Administrator shall recommend to the Board for its consideration and approval, 
teachers who are qualified in the grade level and subjects required by the School to operate in 
accordance with the terms of the Charter. All teachers shall be jointly employed by the School and 
T.A.S. for such purposes as inclusion in the compensation and employee benefit plans of T.A.S., payroll 
administration and other employment policies and practices; provided however, in all circumstances, 
the Board shall ultimately control the hiring and discharge decisions with respect to jointly employed 
teachers at the School in accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. § 115C-218 et seq. Teachers assigned to and 
retained by the School may hold a valid teaching certificate issued by the State Board of Education to the 
extent required by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 115C-218 et seq. 

D. Support Staff. T.A.S. shall, consistent with this Article, provide the School with qualified support staff as 
needed to operate the School in an efficient manner. The support staff may, at the discretion of T.A.S., 
work at the School on a full or part time basis. 

E. Training. T.A.S. shall provide or procure training in its methods, curriculum, program, and technology to 
all teaching personnel on a regular basis. Instructional personnel shall be required to obtain at least the 
minimum hours of professional development as required by applicable law. 

F. Background Checks and Qualifications. T.A.S. shall comply with applicable law regarding background 
checks, unprofessional conduct searches and certification/licensure, as applicable, for all persons 
working in the School. 

ARTICLE IX 
INDEMINIFICATION 

Indemnification of Parties. To the extent not prohibited by the Charter or applicable law, the Parties hereby agree to 
indemnify, defend, and hold the other (the “Indemnified Party”), harmless from and against any and all third-party 
claims, actions, damages, expenses, losses or awards which arise out of (i) the gross negligence or intentional 
misconduct of the indemnifying party, (ii) any action taken or not taken by the indemnifying party, or (iii) any 
noncompliance or breach by the indemnifying party of any of the terms, conditions, warranties, representations, or 
undertakings contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement. As used herein, 
Indemnified Party shall include the party’s trustees, directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives and 
attorneys. The Parties may purchase general liability, property, or other insurance policies. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Board shall not be precluded by the terms of this Agreement from 
asserting or declining to assert a claim of governmental immunity. 
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It is understood by Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC. that "no indebtedness of any kind incurred or created by the 
charter school shall constitute an indebtedness of the State or its political subdivisions, and no indebtedness of the 
charter school shall involve or be secured by the faith, credit, or taxing power of the State or its political 
subdivisions." 

 
ARTICLE X 
INSURANCE 

A. Insurance Coverage. T.A.S. shall maintain such policies of insurance as required by the Charter and 
applicable law. Each party shall, upon request, present evidence to the other that it maintains the 
requisite insurance in compliance with the provisions of this Article. Each party shall comply with any 
information or reporting requirements required by the other party’s insurer(s), to the extent 
reasonably practicable. 

B.  Workers’ Compensation Insurance. T.A.S. shall maintain workers’ compensation insurance as 
required by law, covering their respective employees. 

 
ARTICLE XI 

REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES 
A. Board and School. The Board represents and warrants, for itself and on behalf of the School, that: 

(i) it is legally vested with all power and authority necessary to operate a charter school under the 
Authorizing Law; (ii) it is legally vested with all power and authority necessary to execute, deliver and 
perform this Agreement, including without limitation, the power and authority to contract with a 
private entity for the provision of educational, business administration and management services; 
(iii) its actions have been duly and validly authorized and it has adopted any and all resolutions or 
expenditure approvals required for the execution of this Agreement; and (iv) there are no pending 
actions, claims, suits or proceedings, or, to its knowledge, threated or reasonably anticipated against or 
affecting either the Board or the School, which if adversely determined, would have a material adverse 
effect on its ability to perform under this Agreement. 

B. T.A.S. T.A.S. represents and warrants that: (i) it is a corporation in good standing and is  authorized to 
conduct business in the State of North Carolina; (ii) it is legally vested with all power and authority 
necessary to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement; (iii) there are no pending actions, claims, 
suites or proceedings, or, to its knowledge threated or reasonably anticipated against or affecting 
T.A.S., which if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on its ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement; and (iv) it will comply with all registration and licensing requirements 
relating to conducting business under this Agreement, which the Board agrees to assist T.A.S. in 
applying for such licenses and permits and in obtaining such approvals and consents. 

 
Article XII 

Liquidated Damages 
T.A.S. has undertaken substantial efforts to assists The School in planning, organizing, opening, and operating a public 
charter school.  T.A.S. has forgone other business opportunities, has provided services, and has a reasonable future 
expectation of compensation.  Therefore, the parties agree that T.A.S. is entitled to receive an amount equal to 
$250,000.00 as liquidated damages in the event this contract is terminated prior to the expiration. This amount 
includes the start-up funds provided by T.A.S..  Terms of payment of liquidated damages shall be in such a manner 
which does not prevent the charter school from being able to continue operations. 
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ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any attachments hereto shall constitute the entire 
agreement of the Parties on the subject matter set forth herein. This Agreement supersedes and 
replaces any and all prior agreements and understandings regarding the subject matter set forth 
herein between the School and T.A.S.. 

B. Force Majeure. Except for payment obligations, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
Agreement, neither party shall be liable for any delay in performance or inability to perform due to acts 
of God, war, riot, embargo, fire, explosion, sabotage, flood, accident, labor strike, or other acts beyond 
its reasonable control; provided either party may terminate this Agreement in accordance with 
provisions contained herein if sufficient grounds exists as provided in the Article governing termination. 

C. State Governing Law: Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, 
governed and enforced pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, without regard to its 
conflict-of-laws principles. The Parties hereby waive the right to a jury trial in any action, 
proceeding or counterclaim brought by either T.A.S. or the School against the other. 

D. Notices. All notices and other communications required by this Agreement shall be in writing and sent 
to the Parties at the facsimile number or address set forth below. Notice may be given by: (i) facsimile 
with written evidence of confirmed receipt by the receiving party of the entire notice: (Ii) certified or 
registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or (iii) personal delivery. Notice shall be 
deemed to have been given on the date of transmittal if given by facsimile, upon the date of postmark 
if sent by certified or registered mail, or upon the date of delivery if given by personal delivery. For 
purposes of the foregoing, “personal delivery” shall include delivery by nationally recognized overnight 
courier (such as FedEx), if signed for by the recipient or a delegate thereof. Notices to the School shall 
be sent to the current address of the then current Board Chair, with a copy to the then current Board 
attorney. The addresses of the Parties for the purposes  

E. aforesaid, including the address of the initial Board Chair, are as follows: 
 

The School: 
 
Board Chair: Tyrone Tucker 
Address: 1741 East Arcadia Rd. 
Riegelwood, NC 28456 
Telephone: (910) 228-7562 

T.A.S.: 
TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY SCHOOLS, LLC. 

Chief Executive Officer: Don McQueen  
Address: PO Box 19191 Raleigh, NC 27619 
Telephone: (919) 538-8060 
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F. Amendment. This Agreement shall not be altered, amended, modified or supplemented except by 
memorandum approved by the Board and signed by both an authorized officer of the School and 
T.A.S. and in manner consistent with the Authorizer’s policies. 

G. Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of 
any other provision. Nor shall such waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly 
stated. 

H. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms and provisions set forth herein shall remain in 
full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the Parties shall use 
their best efforts to find and employ an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same 
results as that contemplated by such term or provision. 

I. Delegation of Authority. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as delegating to T.A.S. powers or 
authority of the Board which are not subject to delegation by the Board under the Charter or applicable 
law. 

J. Compliance with Law. Each party will comply with the Charter and laws applicable to the 
performance of such party’s obligations hereunder. 

K. Time of Essence. The Parties understand and agree that time is of the essence in performing their 
perspective responsibilities under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE XIV 

MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION 
A. The parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve by mediation any claim, dispute or controversy arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement. Either party may institute a mediation proceeding by a request in writing 
to the other party. Thereupon, both parties will be obligated to engage in mediation. The proceeding will 
be conducted in Raleigh, North Carolina in accordance with the then current Center of Public Resources 
Model Procedure for Mediation of Business Disputes. In the event that the parties are unsuccessful in 
resolving the dispute via mediation, the parties agree promptly to resolve any such claims, disputes and/or 
controversies through binding confidential arbitration conducted in Raleigh, North Carolina in accordance 
with the then current Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”); 
provided, one neutral arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with such rules to arbitrate the dispute. The 
parties irrevocably consent to such jurisdiction for purposes of said arbitration, and judgment may be 
entered thereon in any state or federal court in the same manner as if the parties were residents of the 
state or federal district in which said judgment is sought to be entered. All applicable statutes of limitations 
and defenses based upon the passage of time shall be tolled while the requirements of this Section are 
being followed.  

 
(Signatures on Next Page) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the 

Effective Date:   SCHOOL: 

By: 

Print 

Board Chair Torchlight Academy Schools: 

By: 

Print  

Chief Executive Officer 

Don McQueen

Tyrone Tucker

7/01/20

c-� _j f'.,<S°'-1 Jv�l� 





BUY OUT AGREEMENT 
 
N/A 



 



EVIDENCE OF COMMUNITY SUPPORT 
 

(Following) 



Our Board is partnering with the management company Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC.  The 
Education Management Organization is a privately held, for-profit corporation. They do not submit an 
IRS Form 990.  















































































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

July 21, 2020 
 
 

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 
NCDPI/Office of Charter Schools 
301 N. Wilmington Street 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27601-2825 

Re: Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 

Please be advised that Torchlight Academy Schools, LLC has maintained a banking relationship with M&F 
Bank since December 2014. All aspects of the relationship have been handled as agreed and we look 
forward to continuing a long and mutually beneficial banking relationship. The management team is well 
known and highly regarded by our organization. 

 

Do not hesitate to contact me directly if you have questions or require additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Skipper Hines 
Richard “Skipper” Hines, III 
VP / Senior Portfolio Underwriter 
M&F Bank 

 

Office: 919.313.3617 | Fax: 919.687.7807 
2634 Durham-Chapel Hill Blvd. 
Durham, NC 27707 
Email: richard.hines@mfbonline.com 

mailto:richard.hines@mfbonline.com
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DLK Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Certified Public Accountant dkeller@dlkcpapa.com 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~· 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

P.O. Box 1028, Kings Mountain, NC 28086 
(704) 739-0771 .. (704) 739-6122 Fax 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Torchlight Academy's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of Torchlight 
Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Member AICPA ., NCACPA 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 3-10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's basic financial statements. The combining and individual non­
major fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and 
State Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act and is also not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, as well as 
the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial 
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and 
State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 2, 2016, on our 
consideration of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
October 2, 2016 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

As management of Torchlight Academy, we offer readers of Torchlight Academy's 
audited financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities 
of Torchlight Academy for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to 
read the information presented herein in conjunction with additional information that we 
have furnished in the School's financial statements, which follow this narrative. Effective 
July 1, 2015 the School entered into a services agreement with Torchlight Academy 
School, LLC (TAS) which requires TAS to provide administration, strategic planning, 
and all labor, materials, equipment, and supervision necessary for the provision of 
educational services to students. TAS also provides the facility in which the school 
operates as a part of the fee received. The fee for this agreement is 100% of the school's 
revenue from whatever source derived. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the Torchlight Academy exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows 
at the close of the fiscal year by $468,049 (net position). 

• The school's total net position decreased by $276,843. 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, Torchlight Academy's governmental 

funds reported combined ending fund balances of $320,068 a decrease of 
$230,172. 

• The 2014-2015 ADM was 439 and the 2015-2016 ADM is 520. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Torchlight 
Academy's basic financial statements. The School's basic financial statements consist of 
three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 
and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements 
present two distinct financial perspectives of the School through the use of government­
wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial 
statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the 
reader's understanding of the financial condition of Torchlight Academy. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Figure 1 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Management's Basic 

Discussion and Financial 

Analysis Statements 

I I 
Government-wide Fund Notes to the 

Financial Financial Financial 

Statements Statements Statements 

Summary------------- Detail 

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the 
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term 
information about the School's financial status. 

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These 
statements focus on the activities of the individual segments of the School's government. 
These statements are more detailed than the government-wide financial statements. 
There are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds 
statements; and 2) the proprietary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements are the Notes to the Financial 
Statements (i.e. "Notes"). The Notes offer a detailed explanation of the data contained 
in those statements. Next, supplemental information is provided to show details about 
the School's funds. Budgetary information for the School also can be found in this 
section of the statements. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a 
broad overview of the School's finances, similar in format to the financial statements of a 
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term 
information about the School's financial status, as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the School's net position and how they have 
changed. Net position is the difference between the School's total assets and total 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge 
the School's financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental 
activities; and 2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of 
the School's basic functions such as instructional services and business services. These 
functions are funded almost entirely through state, county, and federal educational funds. 
The business-type activities are those services that the School charges its students and 
other customers. This includes the Food Lunch Program services carried out by 
Torchlight Academy. 

The government-wide financial statements are enumerated in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this 
report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the School's most 
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Torchlight 
Academy, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related statutory 
requirements, such as the North Carolina General Statutes or the School's budget 
ordinance, where and when applicable. All of the funds of Torchlight Academy can be 
divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the 
School's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on 
how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and monies remaining at 
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are 
reported using the modified accrual accounting method, which provides a short-term 
spending focus. The governmental fund financial statements assist the reader in 
determining whether there has been an increase or a decrease in the financial resources 
available to finance the School's programs. The relationship between government 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation, which is an integral part of the fund 
financial statements. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Torchlight Academy adopts an annual budget for each of its funds, although it is not 
required to do so by the General Statutes. Because the budget is not legally required by 
the Statutes, the budgetary comparison statements are not included in the basic financial 
statements, but are part of the supplemental statements and schedules that follow the 
notes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the faculty, 
management, and the Board of Directors of the School in determining what activities will 
be pursued and what services will be provided by the School during the year. It also 
authorizes the School to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current 
period activities. The budgetary statement provided for each of the funds demonstrates 
how well the School has complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the 
School has succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. 

Proprietary Funds - Torchlight Academy has one proprietary fund, which is an 
enterprise fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Torchlight 
Academy uses enterprise funds to account for the school lunch program. 

Notes to the Financial Statements -The notes provide additional information essential 
to facilitating a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 19 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a school's 
financial condition. The assets of Torchlight Academy exceeded liabilities by $468,049 
as of June 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2015, the net position of Torchlight Academy stood 
at $744,892. The School's net position decreased by $276,843 for the fiscal year ended 
June 3 0, 2016, compared to a increase of $260, 183 in 2015. One of the largest portions 
$163,425 reflects the School's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and 
improvements, instructional equipment, and vehicles) less any related debt still 
outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. Torchlight Academy uses these 
capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. Although Torchlight Academy's net investment in capital 
assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that 
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. The remaining balance of $304,624 is unrestricted. In 2015, the 
amount of net investment in capital assets net of related debt was $210,096. The 
remaining $534, 796 was unrestricted net position for that year. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Figure 2 
Torchlight Academy's Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Tlpe Activities 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

Total 
2016 2015 

Current and other assets $ 254,445 $ 613,504 $ 4,094 $ $ 258,539 $ 613,504 
Due from other governments 94,587 48,899 32,024 143,486 32,024 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 163,425 210,096 163,425 210,096 

Total Assets 512,457 823,600 52,993 32,024 565,450 855,624 

Other Liabilities $ 28,964 $ 45,862 $ 68,437 $ 47,468 $ 97,401 $ 93,330 
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 

Total Liabilities 28,964 45,862 68,437 47,468 97,401 93,330 

Deferred inflows of resources $ $ 17,402 $ $ $ 10,000 $ 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 163,425 $ 210,096 $ $ $ 163,425 $ 210,096 
Unrestricted 320,068 550,240 {15,444} {15,444} 304,624 534,796 

Total Net Position $ 483,493 $ 760,336 $ {15,444} $ {15,444} $ 468,049 $ 744,892 

Several aspects of the School's financial operations influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net position: 

• The School adopted an annual budget. The School's performance was measured 
using this budget on a monthly basis, allowing changes to be made in spending as 
needed to remain within the confines of the budget. 

• The School applied for and was awarded several federal grants to assist with 
meeting the educational needs of the student population. 

• The School paid for salaries and benefits of six employees from fund balance. 
• The School entered into an agreement with a management company in the current 

fiscal year. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Figure 3 
Torchlight Academy's Changes in Net Position 

Governmm1al Adi\ities Business-Type Activities Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Donations and Other Revmues $51,636 $26,327 $ $ $51,633 $ 26,327 

Charges for Services 6,281 2,473 6,281 

Operating Grants and Contributions 419,4ffi 269,525 419,4ffi 269,525 

County, State, and Federal Funds 4,313,740 3,740,Cl20 4,313,741 3,74Q020 

Tota revm ues 4,335,376 3,766,347 425,779 271,998 4,791,155 4,035,872 

lns1ructiona Services 4,616,489 1,934,338 4,616,4ffi 1,934,338 

S:15tem-wide support services 25,730 1,554,168 25,73'.l 1,554,168 

School Lunch 425,779 287,442 425,779 287,442 

Interest on long-term debt 2,154 2,154 

Total expenses 4,642,219 3,490,720 425,779 287,442 5,037,998 3,778,162 

Increase in net position $ (276,843) 275,02.7 (15,444) (276,843) 260,183 

Transfers 

Net position, J:J ly 1 760,336 484,709 (15,444) 744,892 484,709 

Net position,June30 $483,493 $76Q336 $ (15,444) $ (15,444) $468,049 $744,892 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the School's net position 
by $276,843. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities of Torchlight Academy's net position 
remained unchanged. 

Financial Analysis of the School's Funds 

As noted earlier, Torchlight Academy uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of Torchlight Academy's governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable financial 
resources. Such information is useful in assessing Torchlight Academy's financing 
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Torchlight Academy. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $320,068. 

Proprietary Funds. The School's proprietary fund provides the same type of 
information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Umestricted 
net position of the School Food Service Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to 
($15,444). Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed 
in the discussion of the School's business-type activities. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. Torchlight Academy's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2016, totals $163,425 (net of accumulated 
depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, instructional 
equipment, and vehicles. 

Figure 4 
Torchlight Academy's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Activities Business-T~eActivities Total 
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Classroom Equipment 

Computer Equipment 

Leasehold Improvements 

Security System 

$ 53,876 

90,481 

$ 83,379 

96,615 

$ $ $ 53,876 $ 83,379 

90,481 96,615 

Vehicles 
Total 

19,068 30,102 19,068 30, 102 

$ 163,425 $210,096 $ $ $ 163,425 $ 210,096 

Additional information about the School's capital assets can be found in Note III.A.2 of 
the Basic Financial Statements. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2016 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2016, Torchlight Academy had no outstanding debt. 

Economic Factors 

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the School: 

• The improving academic performance of Torchlight Academy student body has 
formed a reputation of excellence that ensures a solid foundation for maintained 
enrollment and consequent stream of funding per pupil amounts. 

• The School has improved its facilities, which will not only cement excitement and 
a feeling of permanence in the community, but should also strengthen the school 
financially. 

• The School received a ten year renewal of its charter effective July 1, 2014. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the School's finances for those with an 
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or 
requests for additional information should be directed to the Executive Director, 
Torchlight Academy, 3211 Bramer Drive, Raleigh, North Carolina 27604. (919) 850-
9960 

10 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit 1 
Torchlight Academy 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2016 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 237,305 $ 4,094 $ 241,399 
Receivables (net) 4,672 4,672 
Due from other governments 94,587 48,899 143,486 
Due from (to) other funds 12,468 (12,468) 
Prepaid expense 
Capital assets (Note 1 ): 

Land, improvements, and construction in 
progress 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 163,425 163,425 
Total capital assets 163,425 163,425 

Total assets 512,457 40,525 552,982 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,964 55,969 84,933 
Bank line of credit 
Payroll Taxes payable 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 28,964 55,969 84,933 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 163,425 163,425 
Unrestricted 320,068 (15,444) 304,624 
Total net position $ 483,493 $ (15,444) $ 468,049 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Functions/Programs 
Primary government: 
Governmental Activities: 

Instructional services 
System-wide support services 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
School Lunch 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Expenses 

$ 4,616,489 $ 
25,730 

4,642,219 

425,779 
425,779 

$ 5,067,998 $ 

Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Program Revenues 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Services Contributions Contributions 

$ - $ -

6,281 419,498 
6,281 419,498 
6,281 $ 419,498 $ 

General revenues: 
Unrestricted LEA appropriations 
Unrestricted State appropriations 
Unrestricted Federal appropriations 
Donations - general 
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 

Loss on abandonment of assets 
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 
Change in net position 

Net position-beginning 
Net position-ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 2 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 
Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (4,616,489) $ $ (4,616,489) 
(25,730) (25,730) 

(4,642,219) (4,642,219) 

(4,642,219) (4,642,219) 

1, 178,401 - 1, 178,401 
2,767,329 2,767,329 

368,010 368,010 
-

51,636 51,636 

4,365,376 - 4,365,376 
(276,843) - (276,843) 
760,336 (15,444) 744,892 

$ 483,493 $ (15,444) $ 468,049 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Bank line of credit 
Payroll Taxes Payable 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaid expenses 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 

Torchlight Academy 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2016 

Major Funds 

State Public 
General School 

Federal Grants 
Fund 

$ 237,305 $ $ 
4,672 

94,587 
12,468 

$ 349,032 $ $ 

$ 28,964 $ $ 

28,964 

320,068 
320,068 

$ 349,032 $ $ 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds. 
Liabilities for earned but unavailable revenues in fund 
statements. 

Some liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued 
interest, are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds (Note 5). 
Net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 3 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 237,305 
4,672 

94,587 
12,468 

$ 349,032 

$ 28,964 

28,964 

320,068 
320,068 

163,425 

$ 483,493 



Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 

REVENUES 
State of North Carolina 
Durham County Schools 
Franklin County Schools 
Wake County Schools 
Johnston County Schools 
Vance County Schools 
U.S. Government 
Contributions and donations 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instructional services: 
System-wide support services 

Capital outlay: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Issuance of capital lease 
Loan proceeds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

$ 

General 

17,401 
9,404 

308 
1, 165, 159 

3,524 
6 

34,235 
1,230,037 

1,453,946 
6,263 

1,460,209 

(230,172) 

$ 

Major Funds 

State Public 
School 

2,767,329 

2,767,329 

2,765,030 
2,299 

2,767,329 

Federal Grants 
Fund 

$ 

368,010 

368,010 

368,010 

368,010 

Exhibit 4 

Total 
Governmental 

$ 

Funds 

2,784,730 
9,404 

308 
1, 165, 159 

3,524 
6 

368,010 

34,235 
4,365,376 

4,586,986 
8,562 

4,595,548 

(230,172) 

Net change in fund balance (230, 172) (230, 172) 
Fund balances-beginning 550,240 550,240 

Fund balances-ending =$====3=2=0=,0=6=8=$========$===========$=====3=20=,=0=68== 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 5 
Torchlight Academy 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation 
exceeded capital outlay in the current period 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 
provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds. 
Proceeds from sale of assets 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the 
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction has any effect on net position. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance 
costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt 
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is 
the net effect of these differences in the treatment of 
long-term debt and related items. 

Difference in accrued interest payable and interest 
expensed on fund statements 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Other 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ (230, 172) 

(46,671) 

$ (276,843) 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other governments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets: 

Furniture and office equipment, net 
Computer equipment, net 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2016 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

School Lunch 

4,094 
48,899 
52,993 

52,993 

55,969 
12,468 
68,437 

68,437 

(15,444) 
(15,444) 

Exhibit 6 



Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Food Sales 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Contracted services 
Materials and supplies 
Other 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Capital contributions 
Federal reimbursements 

Change in net position 
Total net position - beginning 
Total net position - ending 

$ 

$ 

School lunch 

6,281 
6,281 

408,823 
16,956 

425,779 
(419,498) 

419,498 

(15,444) 
(15,444) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for goods and services 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Federal reimbursements 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfers in (out) 

Net cash provided (used} by capital and related financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Balances-beginning of the year 

$ 

School Lunch 

6,281 
(421,685) 
(415,404) 

419,498 

4,094 

Balances-end of the year $ 4,094 
========== 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities 
Operating income _$ ___ ~(4_1_9~,4_9_8~} 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
{Increase) Decrease in due from other governments (16,875) 
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 55,969 
Increase (decrease) in due to otherfunds {35,000) 

Total adjustments 4,094 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ ( 415,404) 

====:;;:======="= 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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The Torchlight Academy, North Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Torchlight Academy, North Carolina (School) conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. Charter schools are 
established by non-profit entities. Because of the authority of the State Board of Education (SBE) to 
unilaterally abolish a school with all the assets reverting to a local education agency, the charter 
schools in North Carolina follow the governmental reporting model, as used by local education 
agencies. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Torchlight Academy is a public school operated by a local non-profit corporation, serving 
approximately 540 students. The School operates under an approved charter received from the 
SBE, and applied for under the provisions of General Statute (G.S.) 115C-238.29B. G.S. 115C-
238.29F(f)(l) states that a charter school shall be subject to the audit requirements adopted by the 
SBE, which includes the audit requirements established by G.S. 115C-447 of the School Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act (SBFCA). G.S. 115C-447 also requires financial statements to be prepared in 
accordance with GAAP. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the School. These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the School. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues, and other non­
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the School and for each function of the School's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations 
that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program 
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are 
presented as general revenues. 
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Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the School's 
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. 
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each 
displayed in a separate column. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each 
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

The School reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School. The General Fund 
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the 
Department of Public Instruction for specific operating needs of the public school system and is 
reported as a special revenue fund. 

Federal Grants Fund. The Federal Grants Fund includes grants from the federal government passed 
through the Department of Public Instruction for specifically identified programs. 

The School reports the following major enterprise fund: 

School Lunch. The School Lunch Fund is used to account for the school lunch program within the 
school system. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis 
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in 
which the School gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
exchange, include grants and donations. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the 
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School considers all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days 
after year-end. These could include federal, State, and county grants, and some charges for services. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are 
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
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Under the terms of grant agreements, the School funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are 
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is 
the School's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, and then 
general revenues. 

D. Budgetary Data 

An annual budget is adopted on a unit-wide level rather than by individual funds. All budgets are 
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

The governing board has voluntarily established the policy, as a sound business practice, that 
expenditures may not exceed appropriations, for all of the School's funds, based on the adopted 
budget and subsequent amendments. During the year, several amendments to the original budget 
were necessary, the effects of which were not material. The budget presented in these financial 
statements represents the budget of the School at June 30, 2016. All appropriations lapse at year 
end. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the School are made in a local bank, whose accounts are FDIC insured. Also, the 
School may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, and certificates 
of deposit. The School does not have a custodial risk policy. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to 
maximize investment income. All cash and investments with original maturities of three months or 
less are considered cash and cash equivalents. The School does not have a deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk. 

3. Capital Assets 

The School's donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated 
fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at 
acquisition value. All other capital assets are recorded at original cost. The total of these estimates is 
not considered large enough that any errors would be material when capital assets are considered as 
a whole. 

It is the policy of the School to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $5,000 with an 
estimated useful life of three or more years. In addition, other items which are purchased and used 
in large quantities such as student desks and office furniture are capitalized. Improvements are 
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capitalized and depreciated over the remammg useful lives of the related capital assets. All 
depreciable assets are depreciated using the straight-line method of depreciation. The cost of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 

Leasehold improvements 
Classroom furniture and equipment 
Motor vehicles 
Security system 
Computer equipment 

4. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

Years 
7-39 

7 
5 
5 
5 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The School has no items that meet this criterion. 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, represents acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as revenue until then. The School has no items that meet the criterion for this category. 

5. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net 
position. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of debt issued as 
other financing sources. 

6. Compensated Absences 

Employees do not accumulate vacation pay. The policy of the School provides for five days of sick 
leave for teachers and they can carryover. Unused time is not compensated. 

7. Net Position/Fund Balances 

Net Position 

Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and umestricted. Restricted net position represents 
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 
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Fund Balance 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Prepaid items - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents 
the year-end balance of prepaid fuel which is not a spendable resource. 

Restricted Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes 
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law. 

Committed Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose 
imposed by majority vote of School's governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). 
Any changes or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action by the governing bodies 
that approved the original action. 

Assigned Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that Torchlight Academy intends to use for specific 
purposes. 

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next 
year's budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body 
approves the appropriation; however the budget ordinance authorizes the Finance Officer to 
modify the appropriations by resource or appropriation within funds up to $2,500. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another fund 
or restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

Torchlight Academy has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with 
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond 
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education funds, board of education funds. 
For purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance 
first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned 
fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best 
interest of the School. 
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8. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between governmental funds' total 
fund balance and governmental activities' net position as reported in the government-wide statement 
of net position. The net adjustment of $163,425 consists of several elements as follows: 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
are therefore not reported in the funds (total capital assets on government- $537,846 
wide statement in governmental activities column). 

Less accumulated depreciation (374,421) 

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, 
do not require current resources to pay and are therefore not reported in the 
fund statements: 

Bonds, leases, and installment financing -
Proceeds from sale of assets -
Accrued interest payable -

Total adjustment $163 425 

F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

1. Funding 

The Torchlight Academy is funded by the State Board of Education, receiving (i) an amount equal 
to the average per pupil allocation for the average daily membership (ADM) from the local school 
administrative unit allotments in which the school is located (i.e. Wake County Board of Education) 
for each child attending the School except for the allocation for children with special needs and (ii) 
an additional amount for each child attending the School who is a child with special needs [G.S. 
115C-238.29H(a)]. Additionally, the appropriate local school administrative unit(s) transfers to the 
School, for each student who resides in the local administrative unit and attends the charter school, 
an amount equal to the per pupil local current expense appropriation to the respective local school 
administrative unit for the fiscal year. [G.S. 115C-238.29H(b)]. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016, the Torchlight Academy received funding from the Board of Education for Wake County 
Schools, Durham County, Franklin County, and Johnston County. 

Furthermore, Torchlight Academy has received donations of cash and/or equipment from private 
organizations. The cash has been used for the purchase of new equipment for the School's facilities. 

2. Reconciliation between government-wide and fund statements 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance is 
followed by a reconciliation between the change in governmental funds' fund balance and the 
change in governmental activities' net position as reported on the government-wide statement of 
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activities. The net difference of ($46,671) between the two amounts consists of the following 
elements: 

DESCRIPTION 

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as 
assets on the statement of activities. 

Depreciation expense that is recorded on the statement of activities but not in 
the fund statements. 

New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund 
statements but has not effect on the statement of activities, only the statement of 
net position. 

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund 
statements but again affect only the statement of net position in the government-
wide statements. 

Expenses reported on the statement of activities that do not require the use of 
current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements. 

Other 
Loss on sale of assets 

Total 

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Violation of State General Statutes 

1. None 

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Position of Individual Funds 

AMOUNT 

$-

(46,671) 

-

-

-
-

(~46.671) 

The School Lunch Fund has a deficit balance of $15,444. This was created because the General 
Fund paid expenses for the lunch fund. We recommend the school transfer the funds in the current 
year to correct this deficit balance. 

The School will make this transfer in the current year. The School will also transfer the additional 
amount due to the General Fund from the June 30, 2016 year end in order to prevent this from 
happening in the June 30, 2017 financial statements. 

C. Payroll Tax Penalties 

During the current year the School paid $54.45 in payroll tax penalties. This was for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2014 that the school was disputing. IRS drafted their bank account and the school 
has been unable to resolve the dispute. 

The School is not going to pursue the issue any further as the amount is not material. 
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III. Detail Notes on All Funds 

A. Assets 

1. Deposits 

At June 30, 2016, the School had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a carrying amount 
of $241,399. The bank balance with the financial institutions was $259,932, of which $259,932 was 
covered by federal depository insurance. The School does not have a deposit policy for custodial 
credit risk. 

2. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

Ending Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Equipment & furniture 
Computer equipment 
Security system 
Vehicles 
Leasehold improvements 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

$ 

222,870 
24,993 
13,335 

115,616 
161,032 
537,846 

Equipment & furniture 139,491 
Computer equipment 24,993 
Security system 13,335 
Vehicles 85,514 
Leasehold improvements 64,417 

$ 

Total accumulated depreciation 327,750 $ 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 210,096 
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 210,096 ======== 

29,503 

11,034 
6,134 

$ 

46,671 $ 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Instructional programs 
Supporting services 

$ 29,503 
17,168 

$46,671 
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$ 

222,870 
24,993 
13,335 

115,616 
161,032 
537,846 

168,994 
24,993 

13,335 
96,548 
70,551 

374,421 

163,425 
$ 163,425 



B. Liabilities 

1. Pension Plan Obligations 

a. Retirement Plan 

The School has adopted a 401(K) defined contribution plan for the benefit of the employees. 
The School matches employee contributions up to 25% of employee contributions up to 4% of 
compensation. At June 30, 2016, all eligible employees of the School were included in the plan. 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the pension cost to the School was $1,625. 

The School adopted a Non-Qualified Annuity Plan for the Executive Director and the School 
Principal in 2010. Contributions to the annuity for the year ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was 
$0 and $40,000 respectively. 

Effective July 1, 2015, all employees except for six that hold HBl Visa's became employees of 
the management company. As these employees obtain green cards, they will become employees 
of the management company as well. 

b. Post Employment Benefits 

Torchlight Academy does not offer post-employment benefits. 

2. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The balance in deferred inflows ofresources at year-end is composed of the following: 

Unavailable 

Revenue 
Sales Tax Refund Receivable $ 

3. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains 
general liability and errors and omissions insurance coverage of $1 million per occurrence with a 
commercial carrier. 

The School carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not exceeded coverage in any of 
the past two fiscal years. Because the School is not in a flood plain area that has been designated by 
FEMA, the School does not carry flood insurance. 
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4. Claims and Judgments 

At June 30, 2016, the School was not involved in any legal proceedings. 

5. Long-Term Obligations 

The School has no long term debt. 

6. Related Party Transactions 

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School engaged in the following related party transactions: 

Employees and Officers: 

The Chair of the board of directors is also the spouse of one of the members of the board of 
directors. No monetary transactions with these individuals occurred. 

C. Interfund Balances and Activity 

Due to the General Fund from the Proprietary Fund to reimburse the fund for food 
purchased during the fiscal year. 

D. Fund Balance 

$12.468 

Torchlight Academy has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: federal funds, 
State funds, local non-School funds, Torchlight Academy funds. For purposes of fund balance 
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balances, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the School. 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General fund balance that is available for appropriation. 

Total fund balance 
Less: 

Prepaid expenses 
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2017 budget 

Remaining Fund Balance 
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IV. Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The School has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under 
the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor 
agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 

V. Commitments and Contingencies 

The School has entered into a services agreement (the agreement) with Torchlight Academy School, 
LLC (TAS) effective July 1, 2015 which requires TAS to provide administration, strategic planning, 
and all labor, materials, equipment, and supervision necessary for the provision of educational 
services to students. As part of the consideration received under the agreement, TAS also provides 
the facility in which the School operates. The fee for these services are 100% of all revenues 
received by the School. The agreement will continue until termination of charter, inclusive of any 
charter renewals, unless at least 90 days written notice of intent to terminate or renegotiate is given 
by either the School or TSA. 

VI. Contracted Service Fee 

TAS has informed the School that the contracted service fee recognized in the Statement of 
Activities for the year ended June 30, 2016, includes payment of the following: 

Instructional services: 

Regular Instructional Services 

Special Population Services 

Alternative Programs and Services 

School Leadership Services 

School Based Support Services 

Total instructional services 

System-wide support services: 

Technology Support Services 

Operational Support Services 

Financial and Human Resource Services 

Policy, Leadership, and Public Relations Services 

Management Fee 

Total system-wide support services 

Nutritional Services 

Total Contracted Service Fee 
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$ 

$ 

1,335,946 

143,660 

330,499 

328,719 

5,284 

2,144,108 

71,239 

590,598 

44,711 

697,883 

873,106 

2,277,537 

332,541 

$ 4,754,186 



Contracted Service Fee reconciliation to Statement of Activities: 

Contracted Service Fee 

School Expense 

Instructional 

System-wide Support 

Nutritional Services 

Total Primary Government Expenses per Statement of Activities 
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$ 4,754,186 

271,126 

25,730 

16,956 

$ 5,067,998 



Torchlight Academy 
All Fund Types 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Revenues: 

State of North Carolina 

Board(s) of Education: 

Durham County Schools 

Franklin County Schools 

Wake County Schools 

Johnston County Schools 

Vance County Schools 

U.S. Government 

Donations 

Food sales 

Others 

Total 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Instructional services: 

Regular curricular services 

Special populations services 

Alternative programs and services 

School leadership services 

Co-Curricular Services 

School-Based Support 

Services 

Total instructional programs 

System-wide support services: 

Support and decvelopment services 

Special popilation support and 

development services 

Technology support services 

Operational support services 

Financial and human resource 

services 

Policy, leadership and public 

relations services 

Nutritional services 

Total support services 

$ 

31 

Final 

Budget 

2,660,149 $ 

4,668 

1,128,990 

11,680 

281,301 

27,324 

4,114,112 

3,766,842 

25,000 

2016 

Actual 

2,784,730 

9,404 

308 

1,165,159 

3,524 

6 

368,010 

6,281 

34,235 

4,371,657 

4,173,353 

129,723 

233,018 

50,892 

4,586,986 

(200) 

2,930 

5,832 

8,562 

Statement 1 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

$ 124,581 

4,736 

308 

36,169 

(8, 156) 

6 

86, 709 

6,281 

6,911 

257,545 

(820,144) 

16,438 



Torchlight Academy 
All Fund Types 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

School Lunch Fund 

Contracted Services 

Food purchases 

Other 
Total school lunch fund 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest and other charges 

Total debt service 

Total expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Loan proceeds 

Federal reimbursements 

Total other financing sources and 
(uses) 

Excess of revenue over 

expenditures $ 

32 

Final 
Budget 

256,418 

143,000 

59,950 

1,478 

61,428 

4,252,688 

256,418 

256,418 

117,842 

2016 

Actual 

408,823 

16,956 

425,779 

5,021,327 

419,498 

419,498 

$ (230,172) 

Statement 1 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

(408,823) 

(16,956) 

(169,361) 

143,000 

59,950 

1,478 

61,428 

(768,639) 

163,080 

163,080 

$ (348,014) 



DLK Darren L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Certified Public Accountant dkeller@dlkcpapa.com 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~~~· 

P.O. Box 1028, Kings Mountain, NC 28086 
(704) 739-0771 • (704) 739-6122 Fax 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, and each major fund, of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Torchlight Academy, 
Raleigh, North Carolina's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, 
North Carolina's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North 
Carolina's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
October 2, 2016 

34 



DLK Darren L. KeHer, CPA, PA 
Certified Public Accountant dkeller@dlkcpapa.com 

P.O. Box 1028, Kings Mountain, NC 28086 
(704) 739-0771 • (704) 739-6122 Fax 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal program 

We have audited Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued 
by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, 
North Carolina's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 
federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal program 

In our opinion, Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
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not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
October 2, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major state programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2016. Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major state programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 
state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and applicable sections of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, Uniform 
Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for 
each major state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
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Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
October 2, 2016 
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Financial Statements 

TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 
to GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weaknesses( es) identified? 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements notes 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major Federal programs: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

_LNo 

_Yes _LNone Reported 

_Yes _x_No 

__ Yes 

__ Yes _LNone Reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major Federal programs: Unmodified for all federal 
programs. 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major Federal programs: 

CFDA No. Program Name 

10.555 National School Breakfast and Lunch Program 

__ Yes 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? 

State Awards 

Internal control over major State programs: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act 

Identification of major State programs: 

Program Name 

State Public School Fund 

__ Yes 
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_LNo 
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TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None reported 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported 

Section IV-State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported 
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Finding: 

Status: 

TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDITING FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

None 

N/A 
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TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program Title 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Pass-through 
Grantor's 
Number Expenditures 

FEDERAL GRANTS: 

U.S. Department of Education 
Cash Assistance 
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction 

Special Education-Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)­
Education of the Handicapped 

Title I, Part A: 
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies (Title I, Part A) 

Improving Teaqcher Quality State Grants 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

School Nutrition Program (Note 3) 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 

Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities) 

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction: 

National School Lunch Program 

Cash Assistance 

Passed through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction 

National School Breakfast & Lunch Program 
Total School Nutrition Program 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 

State Grants: 
Cash Assistance 

84.027 PRC 060 $ 129,723 

84.010 PRC 050 228,000 

84.367 PRC 103 10,287 

10.555 PRC 035 16,956 

10.555 PRC 035 402,541 
419,497 

787,507 

N.C. Department of Public Instruction 
State Public School Fund 2,767,329 

TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTANCE $ 3,554,836 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal and State Awards (SEFSA) includes the Federal and 
State grant activity of Torchlight Academy under the programs of the federal government and the State of North 
Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Torchlight Academy, it is not intended to and does 
not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Torchlight Academy. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Cluster of Programs 

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Public Instruction and are treated separtely for state audit 
requirement purposes: School Nutrition Program. 
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DLK Darren L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Certified Public Accountant dkeller@dlkcpapa.com 

P.O. Box 1028, Kings Mountain, NC 28086 
(704) 739-0771., (704) 739-6122 Fax 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Torchlight Academy's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of Torchlight Academy, 
Raleigh, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 3-10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's basic financial statements. The combining and individual non­
major fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and 
State Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act and is also not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. 

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, as well as 
the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, 
budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 7, 2017, on our 
consideration of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
September 7, 2017 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2017 

As management of Torchlight Academy, we offer readers of Torchlight Academy's audited 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
Torchlight Academy for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to read 
the information presented herein in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in the School's :financial statements, which follow this narrative. Effective July 
1, 2015 the School entered into a services agreement with Torchlight Academy School, 
LLC (TAS) which requires TAS to provide administration, strategic planning, and all labor, 
materials, equipment, and supervision necessary for the provision of educational services 
to students. TAS also provides the facility in which the school operates as a part of the fee 
received. The fee for this agreement is 100% of the school's revenue from whatever source 
derived. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the Torchlight Academy exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows 
at the close of the fiscal year by $257,418 (net position). 

• The school's total net position decreased by $210,631. 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, Torchlight Academy's governmental funds 

reported combined ending fund balances of $110,336 a decrease of $209,732. 
• The 2015-2016 ADM was 520 and the 2016-2017 ADM is 570. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Torchlight 
Academy's basic financial statements. The School's basic financial statements consist of 
three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 
and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements 
present two distinct financial perspectives of the School through the use of government­
wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, 
this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's 
understanding of the financial condition of Torchlight Academy. 
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Figure 1 
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Notes to the 

Financial 
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The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the 
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term 
information about the School's financial status. 

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These 
statements focus on the activities of the individual segments of the School's government. 
These statements are more detailed than the government-wide financial statements. There 
are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; and 
2) the proprietary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements are the Notes to the Financial 
Statements (i.e. "Notes"). The Notes offer a detailed explanation of the data contained in 
those statements. Next, supplemental information is provided to show details about the 
School's funds. Budgetary information for the School also can be found in this section of 
the statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad 
overview of the School's finances, similar in format to the financial statements of a private­
sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information 
about the School's financial status, as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the School's net position and how they have 
changed. Net position is the difference between the School's total assets and total liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the School's 
financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental 
activities; and 2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the 
School's basic functions such as instructional services and business services. These 
functions are funded almost entirely through state, county, and federal educational funds. 
The business-type activities are those services that the School charges its students and other 
customers. This includes the Food Lunch Program services carried out by Torchlight 
Academy. 

The government-wide financial statements are enumerated in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this 
report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the School's most significant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Torchlight Academy, like all 
other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect 
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related statutory requirements, such as the 
North Carolina General Statutes or the School's budget ordinance, where and when 
applicable. All of the funds of Torchlight Academy can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the School's 
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets 
can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and monies remaining at year-end that 
will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using the 
modified accrual accounting method, which provides a short-term spending focus. The 
governmental fund financial statements assist the reader in determining whether there has 
been an increase or a decrease in the financial resources available to finance the School's 
programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of 
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a 
reconciliation, which is an integral part of the fund financial statements. 
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Torchlight Academy adopts an annual budget for each of its funds, although it is not 
required to do so by the General Statutes. Because the budget is not legally required by 
the Statutes, the budgetary comparison statements are not included in the basic financial 
statements, but are part of the supplemental statements and schedules that follow the notes. 
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the faculty, 
management, and the Board of Directors of the School in determining what activities will 
be pursued and what services will be provided by the School during the year. It also 
authorizes the School to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period 
activities. The budgetary statement provided for each of the funds demonstrates how well 
the School has complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the School has 
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. 

Proprietary Funds - Torchlight Academy has one proprietary fund, which is an enterprise 
fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Torchlight Academy uses 
enterprise funds to account for the school lunch program. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information essential 
to facilitating a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 19 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a school's 
financial condition. The assets of Torchlight Academy exceeded liabilities by $257,418 as 
of June 30, 2017. As of June 30, 2016, the net position of Torchlight Academy stood at 
$468,049. The School's net position decreased by $210,631 for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2017, compared to a decrease of$276,843 in 2016. One of the largest portions $122,884 
reflects the School's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and improvements, 
instructional equipment, and vehicles) less any related debt still outstanding that was issued 
to acquire those items. Torchlight Academy uses these capital assets to provide services to 
its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
Torchlight Academy's net investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding 
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, 
since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The remaining balance 
of $134,534 is unrestricted. In 2016, the amount of net investment in capital assets net of 
related debt was $163,425. The remaining $304,624 was unrestricted net position for that 
year. 
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Current and other assets 
Due from other governments 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 

Total Assets 

Other Liabilities 
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Torchlight Academy 

June 30, 2017 

Figure 2 
Torchlight Academy's Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-T x:pe Activities 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

$ 122,051 $ 254,445 $ 4,816 $ 4,094 
99,000 94,587 31,850 48,899 

122,884 163,425 
343,935 512,457 36,666 52,993 

$ 110,715 $ 28,964 $ 12,468 $ 68,437 

110,715 28,964 12,468 68,437 

$ $ $ $ 

$ 122,884 $ 163,425 $ $ 
110,336 320,068 24,198 {15,444} 

$ 233,220 $ 483,493 $ 24,198 $ {15,444} 

Total 
2017 2016 

$ 126,867 $ 258,539 
130,850 143,486 
122,884 163,425 
380,601 565,450 

$ 123,183 $ 97,401 

123,183 97,401 

$ 10,000 $ 

$ 122,884 $ 163,425 
134,534 304,624 

$ 257,418 $ 468,049 

Several aspects of the School's financial operations influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net position: 

• The School applied for and was awarded several federal grants to assist with 
meeting the educational needs of the student population. 

• The School paid for salaries and benefits of six employees from fund balance. 
• The School entered into an agreement with a management company in the prior 

fiscal year. 
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Figure 3 
Torchlight Academy's Changes in Net Position 

Governmm1al Adi\ities Business-Type Activities Total 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Donations and Other Revmues $62,639 $51,636 $ $ $62,6:ll $ 51,636 

Charges for Services 8,619 6281 8,619 

Operating Grants and Contributions 420,324 419,498 420,324 419,498 

County, Slate, and Federal Funds 4,EB6,256 4,313,740 4,586,263 4,313,740 

Total reva, ues 4,648,895 4,365,376 428,943 425,779 5,077,838 4,784,874 

Instructional Services 4,ffi6,085 4,616,489 4,886,0ffi 4,616,489 

S~tem-wide support services 13,083 25,730 13,083 25,730 

Sdl ool Lunch 389,301 425,779 389,301 425,779 

Interest on long-term debt 0 0 

Total expenses 4,839,168 4,642,219 389,301 425,779 5,288,469 5,067,938 

lncroose in net position $ (250,273) -276,843 39,642 (210,631) -276,843 

Transfers 

Net position, .Ally 1 483,493 760,336 (15,444) (15,444) '68,049 744,892 

Net position,June30 $233,Z20 $483,493 $ 24,193 $ (15,444) $257,418 $468,049 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the School's net position 
by $250,273. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities of Torchlight Academy's net position 
increased the net position by $39,642. 

Financial Analysis of the School's Funds 

As noted earlier, Torchlight Academy uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of Torchlight Academy's governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable financial 
resources. Such information is useful in assessing Torchlight Academy's financing 
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Torchlight Academy. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $110,336. 
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Proprietary Funds. The School's proprietary fund provides the same type of information 
found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of 
the School Food Service Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $24,198. Other 
factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion 
of the School's business-type activities. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. Torchlight Academy's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2017, totals $122,884 (net of accumulated 
depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, instructional 
equipment, and vehicles. 

Figure 4 
Torchlight Academy's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Activities Business-T~e Activities Total 
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Classroom Equipment 

Computer Equipment 

Lease hold Im pr ovem ents 

Security System 

$ 25,917 

84,347 

$ 53,876 

90,481 

$ $ $ 25,917 $ 53,876 

84,347 90,481 

Vehicles 
Total 

12,620 19,068 12,620 19,068 

$ 122,884 $163,425 $ $ $ 122,884 $ 163,425 

Additional information about the School's capital assets can be found in Note III.A.2 of 
the Basic Financial Statements. 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2017, Torchlight Academy had no outstanding debt. 
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Economic Factors 
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June 30, 2017 

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the School: 

• The improving academic performance of Torchlight Academy student body has 
formed a reputation of excellence that ensures a solid foundation for maintained 
enrollment and consequent stream. of funding per pupil amounts. 

• The School has improved its facilities, which will not only cement excitement and 
a feeling of permanence in the comm.unity, but should also strengthen the school 
financially. 

• The School received a ten year renewal of its charter effective July 1, 2014. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the School's finances for those with an 
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or 
requests for additional information should be directed to the Executive Director, Torchlight 
Academy, 3211 Bram.er Drive, Raleigh, North Carolina 27604. (919) 850-9960 
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Exhibit 1 
Torchlight Academy 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,583 $ 4,816 $ 114,399 
Receivables (net) 
Due from other governments 99,000 31,850 130,850 
Due from (to) other funds 12,468 (12,468) 
Prepaid expense 
Capital assets (Note 1 ): 

Land, improvements, and construction in 
progress 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 122,884 122,884 
Total capital assets 122,884 122,884 

Total assets 343,935 24,198 368,133 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 100,098 100,098 
Bank line of credit 
Payroll Taxes payable 10,617 10,617 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 110,715 110,715 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 122,884 122,884 
Unrestricted 110,336 24,198 134,534 
Total net position $ 233,220 $ 24,198 $ 257,418 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 2 
Torchlight Academy 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 
Primary Government 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 
Primary government: 
Governmental Activities: 

Instructional services $ 4,886,085 $ $ $ $ (4,886,085) $ $ (4,886,085) 
System-wide support services 13,083 (13,083) (13,083) 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 4,899,168 (4,899,168) (4,899,168) 

Business-type activities: 
School Lunch 389,301 8,619 420,324 39,642 39,642 

Total business-type activities 389,301 8,619 420,324 39,642 39,642 
Total primary government $ 5,288,469 $ 8,619 $ 420,324 $ (4,899,168) 39,642 (4,859,526) 

General revenues: 
Unrestricted LEA appropriations 1,282,245 1,282,245 
Unrestricted State appropriations 3,003,087 3,003,087 
Unrestricted Federal appropriations 300,924 300,924 
Donations - general 
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 62,639 62,639 

Loss on abandonment of assets 
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 4,648,895 4,648,895 
Change in net position (250,273) 39,642 (210,631) 

Net position-beginning 483,493 (15,444) 468,049 
Net position-ending $ 233,220 $ 24,198 $ 257,418 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Bank line of credit 
Payroll Taxes Payable 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaid expenses 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 

Torchlight Academy 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2017 

Major Funds 

State Public 
General School 

Federal Grants 
Fund 

$ 109,583 $ $ 

99,000 
12,468 

$ 221,051 $ $ 

$ 100,098 $ $ 

10,617 
110,715 

110,336 
110,336 

$ 221,051 $ $ 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds. 
Liabilities for earned but unavailable revenues in fund 
statements. 
Some liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued 
interest, are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds (Note 5). 
Net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 3 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 109,583 

99,000 
12,468 

$ 221,051 

$ 100,098 

10,617 
110,715 

110,336 
110,336 

122,884 

$ 233,220 



Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Major Funds 

State Public Federal Grants 
General School Fund 

REVENUES 
State of North Carolina $ $ 3,003,087 $ 
Cumberland County 781 
Durham County Schools 12,884 
Franklin County Schools 5,351 
Wake County Schools 1,255,473 
Johnston County Schools 5,837 
Orange County 1,919 
U.S. Government 300,924 
Contributions and donations 
other 62,639 

Total revenues 1,344,884 3,003,087 300,924 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instructional services: 1,554,115 3,003,087 300,924 
System-wide support services 501 

Capital outlay: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Total expenditures 1,554,616 3,003,087 300,924 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (209,732} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Issuance of capital lease 
Loan proceeds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net change in fund balance (209,732) 

Fund balances-beginning 320,068 
Fund balances-ending $ 110,336 $ $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 4 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,003,087 
781 

12,884 
5,351 

1,255,473 
5,837 
1,919 

300,924 

62,639 
4,648,895 

4,858,126 
501 

4,858,627 

(209,732) 

(209,732) 
320,068 

$ 110,336 



Exhibit 5 
Torchlight Academy 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation 
exceeded capital outlay in the current period 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 
provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds. 
Proceeds from sale of assets 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the 
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction has any effect on net position. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance 
costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt 
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is 
the net effect of these differences in the treatment of 
long-term debt and related items. 

Difference in accrued interest payable and interest 
expensed on fund statements 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Other 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

15 

$ (209,732) 

(40,541) 

$ (250,273) 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other governments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets: 

Furniture and office equipment, net 
Computer equipment, net 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2017 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

16 

$ 

$ 
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$ 

School lunch 

4,816 
31,850 
36,666 

36,666 

12,468 
12,468 

12,468 

24,198 
24,198 
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Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Food Sales 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Contracted services 
Materials and supplies 
Other 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Capital contributions 
Federal reimbursements 

Change in net position 
Total net position - beginning 
Total net position - ending 

$ 

$ 

School lunch 

8,619 
8,619 

373,460 
15,841 

389,301 
(380,682) 

420,324 
39,642 

(15,444) 
24,198 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Torchlight Academy 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for goods and services 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Federal reimbursements 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfers in (out) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

$ 

School Lunch 

8,619 
(428,221) 
(419,602) 

420,324 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 722 
Balances-beginning of the year 4,094 
Balances-end of the year $ 4,816 

========== 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities 
Operating income _$-'---__ .,_(3_8_0-'--,6_8_2_,_) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in due from other governments 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 

17,049 
(55,969) 

Total adjustments (38,920) 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ (419,602) 

============:::!::: 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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The Torchlight Academy, North Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Torchlight Academy, North Carolina (School) conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. Charter schools are 
established by non-profit entities. Because of the authority of the State Board of Education (SBE) to 
unilaterally abolish a school with all the assets reverting to a local education agency, the charter 
schools in North Carolina follow the governmental reporting model, as used by local education 
agencies. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Torchlight Academy is a public school operated by a local non-profit corporation, serving 
approximately 540 students. The School operates under an approved charter received from the SBE, 
and applied for under the provisions of General Statute (G.S.) l 15C-238.29B. G.S. 115C-
238.29F(f)(l) states that a charter school shall be subject to the audit requirements adopted by the 
SBE, which includes the audit requirements established by G.S. 115C-447 of the School Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act (SBFCA). G.S. 115C-447 also requires financial statements to be prepared in 
accordance with GAAP. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the School. These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the School. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues, and other non­
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the School and for each function of the School's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) 
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. 
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Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the School's 
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. 
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each 
displayed in a separate column. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives ·up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

The School reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School. The General Fund 
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. 

State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the Department 
of Public Instruction for specific operating needs of the public school system and is reported as a 
special revenue fund. 

Federal Grants Fund. The Federal Grants Fund includes grants from the federal government passed 
through the Department of Public Instruction for specifically identified programs. 

The School reports the following major enterprise fund: 

School Lunch. The School Lunch Fund is used to account for the school lunch program within the 
school system. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which 
the School gives ( or receives) value without directly receiving ( or giving) equal value in exchange, 
include grants and donations. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School considers all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after 
year-end. These could include federal, State, and county grants, and some charges for services. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest 
on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized 
as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under 
capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
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Under the terms of grant agreements, the School funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there 
are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the School's 
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, and then general revenues. 

D. Budgetary Data 

An annual budget is adopted on a unit-wide level rather than by individual funds. All budgets are 
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

The governing board has voluntarily established the policy, as a sound business practice, that 
expenditures may not exceed appropriations, for all of the School's funds, based on the adopted 
budget and subsequent amendments. During the year, several amendments to the original budget 
were necessary, the effects of which were not material. The budget presented in these financial 
statements represents the budget of the School at June 30, 2017. All appropriations lapse at year end. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the School are made in a local bank, whose accounts are FDIC insured. Also, the 
School may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, and certificates 
of deposit. The School does not have a custodial risk policy. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to 
maximize investment income. All cash and investments with original maturities of three months or 
less are considered cash and cash equivalents. The School does not have a deposit policy for custodial 
credit risk. 

3. Capital Assets 

The School's donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at 
acquisition value. All other capital assets are recorded at original cost. The total of these estimates is 
not considered large enough that any errors would be material when capital assets are considered as 
a whole. 

It is the policy of the School to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $5,000 with an estimated 
useful life of three or more years. In addition, other items which are purchased and used in large 
quantities such as student desks and office furniture are capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. All depreciable assets are 
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depreciated using the straight-line method of depreciation. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 

Leasehold improvements 
Classroom furniture and equipment 
Motor vehicles 
Security system 
Computer equipment 

4. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

Years 
7-39 

7 
5 
5 
5 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The School has no items that meet this criterion. 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, represents acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as revenue until then. The School has no items that meet the criterion for this category. 

5. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of debt issued as 
other financing sources. 

Torchlight Academy has no long term debt. 

6. Compensated Absences 

Employees do not accumulate vacation pay. The policy of the School provides for five days of sick 
leave for teachers and they can carryover. Unused time is not compensated. 

22 



7. Net Position/Fund Balances 

Net Position 

Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints 
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 

Fund Balance 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Prepaid items - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents 
the year-end balance of prepaid fuel which is not a spendable resource. 

Restricted Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes 
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law. 

Committed Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose imposed 
by majority vote of School's governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any 
changes or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action by the governing bodies that 
approved the original action. 

Assigned Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that Torchlight Academy intends to use for specific 
purposes. 

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year's 
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves 
the appropriation; however the budget ordinance authorizes the Finance Officer to modify the 
appropriations by resource or appropriation within funds up to $2,500. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another fund or 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

Torchlight Academy has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, 
federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education funds, board of education funds. For purposes 
of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed 
in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The 
Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the School. 
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8. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between governmental funds' total 
fund balance and governmental activities' net position as reported in the government-wide statement 
of net position. The net adjustment of $122,884 consists of several elements as follows: 

DESCRIPTION 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources are 
therefore not reported in the funds (total capital assets on government-wide 
statement in governmental activities column). 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, 
do not require current resources to pay and are therefore not reported in the 
fund statements: 

Bonds, leases, and installment financing 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Accrued interest payable 

Total adjustment 

F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

1. Funding 

AMOUNT 

$416,742 

(293,858) 

-
-
-

t122 884 

The Torchlight Academy is funded by the State Board of Education, receiving (i) an amount equal to 
the average per pupil allocation for the average daily membership (ADM) from the local school 
administrative unit allotments in which the school is located (i.e. Wake County Board of Education) 
for each child attending the School except for the allocation for children with special needs and (ii) 
an additional amount for each child attending the School who is a child with special needs [G.S. 
115C-238.29H(a)]. Additionally, the appropriate local school administrative unit(s) transfers to the 
School, for each student who resides in the local administrative unit and attends the charter school, 
an amount equal to the per pupil local current expense appropriation to the respective local school 
administrative unit for the fiscal year. [G.S. 115C-238.29H(b)]. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016, the Torchlight Academy received funding from the Board of Education for Wake County 
Schools, Durham County, Franklin County, Orange County, and Johnston County. 

Furthermore, Torchlight Academy has received donations of cash and/or equipment from private 
organizations. The cash has been used for the purchase of new equipment for the School's facilities. 
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2. Reconciliation between government-wide and fund statements 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance is followed 
by a reconciliation between the change in governmental funds' fund balance and the change in 
governmental activities' net position as reported on the government-wide statement of activities. The 
net difference of ($40,541) between the two amounts consists of the following elements: 

DESCRIPTION 

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as 
assets on the statement of activities. 

Depreciation expense that is recorded on the statement of activities but not in 
the fund statements. 

New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund 
statements but has not effect on the statement of activities, only the statement of 
net position. 

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund 
statements but again affect only the statement of net position in the government-
wide statements. 

Expenses reported on the statement of activities that do not require the use of 
current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements. 

Other 
Loss on sale of assets 

Total 

IL Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Violation of Finance Related Provisions 

None 

III. Detail Notes on All Funds 

A. Assets 

1. Deposits 

AMOUNT 

$-

(40,541) 

-

-

-
-

(~40 541) 

At June 30, 2017, the School had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a carrying amount 
of $114,399. The bank balance with the financial institutions was $122,765, of which $122,765 was 
covered by federal depository insurance. The School does not have a deposit policy for custodial 
credit risk. 
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2. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ $ $ 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Equipment & furniture 222,870 16,844 
Computer equipment 24,993 24,993 
Security sys tern 13,335 13,335 
Vehicles 115,616 54,791 

Leasehold improvements 161 032 11141 
Total capital assets being depreciated 537,846 121,104 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Equipment & furniture 168,994 27,959 16,844 
Computer equipment 24,993 24,993 

Security system 13,335 13,335 
Vehicles 96,548 6,448 54,791 
Leasehold improvements 70,551 6,134 11,141 
Total accumulated depreciation 374,421 $ 40,541 $ 121,104 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 163,425 
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 163,425 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Instructional programs 
Supporting services 

B. Liabilities 

1. Pension Plan Obligations 

a. Retirement Plan 

$27,959 
12,582 

$40,541 

Ending 
Balances 

$ 

206,026 

60,825 

149 891 
416,742 

180,109 

48,205 
65,544 

293,858 

122,884 
$ 122,884 

The School has adopted a 401(K) defined contribution plan for the benefit of the employees. The 
School matches employee contributions up to 25% of employee contributions up to 4% of 
compensation. At June 30, 2017, all eligible employees of the School were included in the plan. 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the pension cost to the School was $0. 

Effective July 1, 2015, all employees except for six that hold HBl Visa's became employees of 
the management company. As these employees obtain green cards, they will become employees 
of the management company as well. 
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b. Post Employment Benefits 

Torchlight Academy does not offer post-employment benefits. 

2. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains 
general liability and errors and omissions insurance coverage of $1 million per occurrence with a 
commercial carrier. 

The School carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not exceeded coverage in any of 
the past two fiscal years. Because the School is not in a flood plain area that has been designated by 
FEMA, the School does not carry flood insurance. 

3. Claims and Judgments 

At June 30, 2017, the School was not involved in any legal proceedings. 

4. Long-Term Obligations 

The School has no long term debt. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the School engaged in the following related party transactions: 

Employees and Officers: 

The Chair of the board of directors is also the spouse of one of the members of the board of directors. 
No monetary transactions with these individuals occurred. 

C. Interfund Balances and Activity 

Due to the General Fund from the Proprietary Fund to reimburse the fund for food 
purchased during the prior fiscal year. 
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D. Fund Balance 

Torchlight Academy has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: federal funds, 
State funds, local non-School funds, Torchlight Academy funds. For purposes of fund balance 
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balances, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the School. 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General 
fund balance that is available for appropriation. 

Total fund balance 
Less: 

Prepaid expenses 
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2018 budget 

Remaining Fund Balance 

IV. Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

$ 110,336 

$ 110,336 

The School has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under 
the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. 
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in 
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 

V. Commitments and Contingencies 

The School has entered into a services agreement (the agreement) with Torchlight Academy School, 
LLC (TAS) effective July 1, 2015 which requires TAS to provide administration, strategic planning, 
and all labor, materials, equipment, and supervision necessary for the provision of educational 
services to students. As part of the consideration received under the agreement, TAS also provides 
the facility in which the School operates. The fee for these services are 100% of all revenues received 
by the School. The agreement will continue until termination of charter, inclusive of any charter 
renewals, unless at least 90 days written notice of intent to terminate or renegotiate is given by either 
the School or TSA. 
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VI. Contracted Service Fee 

TAS has informed the School that the contracted service fee recognized in the Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30, 2017, includes payment of the following: 

Instructional services: 

Regular Instructional Services 

Special Population Services 

Alternative Programs and Services 

School Leadership Services 

School Based Support Services 

Total instructional services 

System-wide support services: 

Technology Support Services 

Operational Support Services 

Financial and Human Resource Services 

Policy, Leadership, and Public Relations Services 

Management Fee 

Total system-wide support services 

Nutritional Services 

Total Contracted Service Fee 

Contracted Service Fee reconciliation to Statement of Activities: 

Contracted Service Fee 

School Expense 

Instructional 

System-wide Support 

Nutritional Services 

Total Primary Government Expenses per Statement of Activities 
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$ 

$ 

1,604,672 

126,794 

380,575 

144,119 

1,977 

2,258,137 

80,753 

673,360 

51,839 

552,835 

939,102 

2,297,889 

404,704 

$ 4,960,730 

$ 4,960,730 

258,775 

12,582 

15,841 

$ 5,247,928 



Torchlight Academy 
All Fund Types 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Revenues: 
State of North Carolina 
Board(s) of Education: 

Cumberland County 
Durham County Schools 
Franklin County Schools 
Wake County Schools 
Johnston County Schools 
Orange County 

U.S. Government 
Donations 
Food sales 
Others 

Total 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instructional services: 
Regular curricular services 
Special populations services 
Alternative programs and services 
School leadership services 
Co-Curricular Services 
School-Based Support 

Services 
Total instructional programs 

System-wide support services: 
Support and decvelopment services 
Special popilation support and 

development services 
Technology support services 
Operational support services 
Financial and human resource 

services 
Policy, leadership and public 

relations services 
Nutritional services 

Total support services 

$ 

30 

Final 
Budget 

2,931,485 $ 

5,144 

1,244,147 
12,872 

281,301 

30,111 
4,505,060 

2017 

Actual 

3,003,087 

781 
12,884 

5,351 
1,255,473 

5,837 
1,919 

300,924 

8,619 
62,639 

4,657,514 

4,447,002 
80,982 

274,832 
55,310 

4,858,126 

480 

21 
501 

Statement 1 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

$ 71,602 

7,740 
5,351 

11,326 
(7,035) 
1,919 

19,623 

8,619 
32,528 

151,673 

(4,858,126) 

(501) 



Torchlight Academy 
All Fund Types 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

School Lunch Fund 
Contracted Services 
Food purchases 
Other 

Total school lunch fund 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Total debt service 

Total expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Loan proceeds 
Federal reimbursements 

Total other financing sources and 
(uses) 

Excess of revenue over 
expenditures $ 

31 

Final 
Budget 

4,570,564 

282,572 

282,572 

217,068 

2017 

Actual 

373,460 
15,841 

389,301 

5,247,928 

420,324 

420,324 

$ (170,090) 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

(373,460) 
(15,841) 

(389,301) 

(677,364) 

137,752 

137,752 

$ (387,939) 

Statement 1 



DL Darren L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Certified Public Accountant dkeller@dlkcpapa.com 

P.O. Box 1028, Kings Mountain, NC 28086 
(704) 739-0771 • (704) 739-6122 Fax 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund, of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, 
North Carolina's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 7, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North 
Carolina's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express. an opinion on the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North 
Carolina's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

0~ L I~ C f1A-1P/.\-
I 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
September 7, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 

To the Board of Directors 
Torchlight Academy 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major state programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2017. Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major state programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 
state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's major 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
applicable sections of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, Uniform 
Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Torchlight 
Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, complied, in ail material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
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expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Torchlight Academy, Raleigh, North Carolina's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Darrell L. Keller, CPA, PA 
Kings Mountain, North Carolina 
September 7, 2017 
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Financial Statements 

TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 
to GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

* 

* 

Material weaknesses( es) identified? 

Significant Deficiency( s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements notes 

Federal Awards 

There were no major federal programs. 

State Awards 

Internal control over major State programs: 

* 

* 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency( s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

_Yes 

_Yes 

_Yes 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act 

Identification of major State programs: 

Program Name 

State Public School Fund 

Yes 
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_x__No 

_x__None Reported 

_x_No 

_x__None Reported 

_x_No 



TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None reported 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported 

Section IV-State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported 
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Finding: 

Status: 

TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDITING FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

None 

N/A 
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TORCHLIGHT ACADEMY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

FEDERAL GRANTS: 

Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Education 
Cash Assistance 

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction 
Special Education-Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)­

Education of the Handicapped 

Title I, Part A: 
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies {Title I, Part A) 

Improving Teaqcher Quality State Grants 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
School Nutrition Program (Note 3) 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 

Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities) 
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction: 

National School Lunch Program 

Cash Assistance 
Passed through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction: 

National School Breakfast & Lunch Program 
Total School Nutrition Program 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 

STATE GRANTS: 
Cash Assistance 

N.C. Department of Public Instruction 
State Public School Fund 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

84.027 

84.010 

84.367 

10.555 

10.555 

Pass-through 
Grantor's 
Number 

PRC 060 

PRC 050 

PRC 103 

PRC 035 

PRC 035 

$ 

Expenditures 

80,982 

215,647 

4,295 

15,841 

404,483 
420,324 

721,248 

3,003,087 

TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTANCE $ 3,724,335 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards: 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal and State Awards (SEFSA) includes the Federal and 
State grant activity of Torchlight Academy under the programs of the federal government and the State of North 
Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this SE FSA is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. BecausE 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Torchlight Academy, it is not intended to and does 
not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Torchlight Academy. 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Note 3. Cluster of Programs 

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Public Instruction and are treated separtely for state audit 
requirement purposes: School Nutrition Program. 
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